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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)
VISA INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)

December 31, 
2021

September 30, 
2021

  (in millions, except per share data)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,720 $ 16,487 
Restricted cash equivalents—U.S. litigation escrow 1,144 894 
Investment securities 1,201 2,025 
Settlement receivable 1,788 1,758 
Accounts receivable 2,168 1,968 
Customer collateral 2,284 2,260 
Current portion of client incentives 1,334 1,359 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,267 856 

Total current assets 25,906 27,607 
Investment securities 2,087 1,705 
Client incentives 3,290 3,245 
Property, equipment and technology, net 2,908 2,715 
Goodwill 16,555 15,958 
Intangible assets, net 27,272 27,664 
Other assets 3,911 4,002 

Total assets $ 81,929 $ 82,896 
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 252 $ 266 
Settlement payable 2,774 2,443 
Customer collateral 2,284 2,260 
Accrued compensation and benefits 725 1,211 
Client incentives 5,294 5,243 
Accrued liabilities 2,965 2,334 
Current maturities of debt 3,247 999 
Accrued litigation 1,027 983 

Total current liabilities 18,568 15,739 
Long-term debt 17,673 19,978 
Deferred tax liabilities 6,078 6,128 
Other liabilities 3,416 3,462 

Total liabilities 45,735 45,307 
Equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 25 shares authorized and 5 shares issued and outstanding as follows:

Series A convertible participating preferred stock, less than one shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and
September 30, 2021 (the “series A preferred stock”) 430 486 

Series B convertible participating preferred stock, 2 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and September 30,
2021 (the “series B preferred stock”) 1,045 1,071 

Series C convertible participating preferred stock, 3 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and September 30,
2021 (the “series C preferred stock”) 1,520 1,523 

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,001,622 shares authorized, 1,661 and 1,677 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and September 30, 2021 respectively — — 

Class B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 622 shares authorized, 245 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and
September 30, 2021 — — 

Class C common stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,097 shares authorized, 10 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 and
September 30, 2021 — — 

Right to recover for covered losses (111) (133)
Additional paid-in capital 18,776 18,855 
Accumulated income 14,606 15,351 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net:

Investment securities (9) (1)
Defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans (47) (49)
Derivative instruments (171) (257)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 155 743 

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net (72) 436 
Total equity 36,194 37,589 
Total liabilities and equity $ 81,929 $ 82,896 

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
 2021 2020
 (in millions, except per share data)
Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 

Operating Expenses
Personnel 1,125 981 
Marketing 280 205 
Network and processing 190 173 
Professional fees 100 83 
Depreciation and amortization 198 197 
General and administrative 242 203 
Litigation provision 148 1 
Total operating expenses 2,283 1,843 
Operating income 4,776 3,844 

Non-operating Income (Expense)
Interest expense, net (134) (136)
Investment income and other 255 40 
Total non-operating income (expense) 121 (96)
Income before income taxes 4,897 3,748 
Income tax provision 938 622 
Net income $ 3,959 $ 3,126 

Basic Earnings Per Share
Class A common stock $ 1.84 $ 1.42 
Class B common stock $ 2.98 $ 2.31 
Class C common stock $ 7.35 $ 5.69 

Basic Weighted-average Shares Outstanding
Class A common stock 1,669 1,694 
Class B common stock 245 245 
Class C common stock 10 11 

Diluted Earnings Per Share
Class A common stock $ 1.83 $ 1.42 
Class B common stock $ 2.98 $ 2.31 
Class C common stock $ 7.34 $ 5.68 

Diluted Weighted-average Shares Outstanding
Class A common stock 2,159 2,200 
Class B common stock 245 245 
Class C common stock 10 11 

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(UNAUDITED)

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
  (in millions)
Net income $ 3,959 $ 3,126 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Investment securities:
Net unrealized gain (loss) (10) (1)
Income tax effect 2 — 

Defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans:
Net unrealized actuarial gain (loss) and prior service credit (cost) 1 (1)
Income tax effect — 1 
Reclassification adjustments 1 3 
Income tax effect — (1)

Derivative instruments:
Net unrealized gain (loss) 114 (297)
Income tax effect (22) 63 
Reclassification adjustments (6) (18)
Income tax effect — 5 

Foreign currency translation adjustments (588) 1,046 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (508) 800 
Comprehensive income $ 3,451 $ 3,926 

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended December 31, 2021
 Preferred Stock Common Stock

Preferred
Stock

Right to
Recover

for
Covered
Losses

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated 
Income

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
 Income (Loss),

Net
Total 
Equity 

Series 
A

Series
B

Series
C Class A Class B Class C

 (in millions, except per share data)
Balance as of September
30, 2021 — 2 3 1,677 245 10 $ 3,080 $ (133) $ 18,855 $ 15,351 $ 436 $ 37,589 

Net income 3,959 3,959 
Other comprehensive

income (loss), net of tax (508) (508)
Comprehensive income 3,451 
VE territory covered losses

incurred (7) (7)
Recovery through

conversion rate
adjustment (29) 29 — 

Conversion of series A
preferred stock upon
sales into public market — 1 (56) 56 — 

Conversion of class C
common stock upon
sales into public market — — — 

Share-based
compensation, net of
forfeitures 128 128 

Vesting of restricted stock
and performance-based
shares 2 — 

Restricted stock and
performance-based
shares settled in cash for
taxes — (113) (113)

Cash proceeds from
issuance of class A
common stock under
employee equity plans 59 59 

Cash dividends declared
and paid, at a quarterly
amount of $0.375 per
class A common stock (809) (809)

Repurchase of class A
common stock (19) (209) (3,895) (4,104)

Balance as of December
31, 2021 — 2 3 1,661 245 10 $ 2,995 $ (111) $ 18,776 $ 14,606 $ (72) $ 36,194 

Increase, decrease or balance is less than one million shares.

(1)

(1)

(1) (1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY—(Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended December 31, 2020
 Preferred Stock Common Stock

Preferred
Stock

Right to
Recover

for
Covered
Losses

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated 
Income

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
 Income (Loss),

Net
Total 
Equity 

Series 
A

Series
B

Series
C Class A Class B Class C

 (in millions, except per share data)
Balance as of September
30, 2020 — 2 3 1,683 245 11 $ 5,086 $ (39) $ 16,721 $ 14,088 $ 354 $ 36,210 

Net income 3,126 3,126 
Other comprehensive

income (loss), net of tax 800 800 
Comprehensive income 3,926 
Adoption of new accounting

standards 3 3 
VE territory covered losses

incurred (10) (10)
Recovery through

conversion rate
adjustment (15) 15 — 

Conversion of series A
preferred stock upon
sales into public market — 20 (1,388) 1,388 — 

Conversion of class C
common stock upon
sales into public market — — — 

Share-based
compensation, net of
forfeitures 122 122 

Vesting of restricted stock
and performance-based
shares 3 — 

Restricted stock and
performance-based
shares settled in cash for
taxes (1) (134) (134)

Cash proceeds from
issuance of class A
common stock under
employee equity plans — 61 61 

Cash dividends declared
and paid, at a quarterly
amount of $0.32 per
class A common stock (703) (703)

Repurchase of class A
common stock (9) (95) (1,701) (1,796)

Balance as of December
31, 2020 — 2 3 1,696 245 11 $ 3,683 $ (34) $ 18,063 $ 14,813 $ 1,154 $ 37,679 

Increase, decrease or balance is less than one million shares.

(1)

(1)

(1) (1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
  (in millions)
Operating Activities
Net income $ 3,959 $ 3,126 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Client incentives 2,371 1,858 
Share-based compensation 128 122 
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment, technology and intangible assets 198 197 
Deferred income taxes (15) 5 
VE territory covered losses incurred (7) (10)
(Gains) losses on equity investments, net (231) (16)
Other (32) 41 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Settlement receivable (76) (244)
Accounts receivable (213) (108)
Client incentives (2,339) (1,485)
Other assets (163) 235 
Accounts payable (9) (39)
Settlement payable 409 194 
Accrued and other liabilities 206 (357)
Accrued litigation 46 (6)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,232 3,513 
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, equipment and technology (173) (160)
Investment securities:

Purchases (951) (1,315)
Proceeds from maturities and sales 1,374 2,163 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (832) (75)
Purchases of / contributions to other investments (37) (18)
Other investing activities 72 44 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (547) 639 
Financing Activities
Repurchase of class A common stock (4,104) (1,796)
Repayments of debt — (3,000)
Dividends paid (809) (703)
Cash proceeds from issuance of class A common stock under employee equity plans 59 61 
Restricted stock and performance-based shares settled in cash for taxes (113) (134)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (4,967) (5,572)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents (194) 304 
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents (1,476) (1,116)
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents at beginning of period 19,799 19,171 
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents at end of period $ 18,323 $ 18,055 
Supplemental Disclosure
Cash paid for income taxes, net $ 268 $ 252 
Interest payments on debt $ 244 $ 281 
Accruals related to purchases of property, equipment and technology $ 53 $ 13 

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. Visa Inc. (“Visa” or the “Company”) is a global payments technology company that facilitates global commerce and money movement
across more than 200 countries and territories. Visa and its wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries operate one of the world’s largest electronic payments
network  — VisaNet  — which provides transaction  processing services  (primarily  authorization,  clearing and settlement).  The Company offers  products
and solutions that facilitate secure, reliable and efficient money movement for all participants in the ecosystem. Visa is not a financial institution and does
not issue cards, extend credit or set rates and fees for account holders of Visa products. In most cases, account holder and merchant relationships belong
to, and are managed by, Visa’s financial institution clients.

Consolidation  and  basis  of  presentation. The  accompanying  unaudited  consolidated  financial  statements  include  the  accounts  of  Visa  and  its
consolidated entities and are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The
Company  consolidates  its  majority-owned  and  controlled  entities,  including  variable  interest  entities  (“VIEs”)  for  which  the  Company  is  the  primary
beneficiary.  The  Company’s  investments  in  VIEs  have  not  been  material  to  its  unaudited  consolidated  financial  statements  as  of  and  for  the  periods
presented. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial  statements  are presented in  accordance with  the U.S.  Securities  and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”)  requirements  for  Quarterly  Reports  on  Form  10-Q  and,  consequently,  do  not  include  all  of  the  annual  disclosures  required  by  U.S.  GAAP.
Reference  should  be  made  to  the  Visa  Annual  Report  on  Form  10-K  for  the  year  ended  September  30,  2021  for  additional  disclosures,  including  a
summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all normal recurring adjustments necessary for
a fair presentation of the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year.

Use  of  estimates. The  preparation  of  the  accompanying  unaudited  consolidated  financial  statements  in  conformity  with  U.S.  GAAP  requires
management  to  make  estimates  and  assumptions  about  future  events.  These  estimates  and  assumptions  affect  the  reported  amounts  of  assets  and
liabilities  and  disclosure  of  contingent  assets  and  liabilities  at  the  date  of  the  unaudited  consolidated  financial  statements  and  reported  amounts  of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates may change as new events occur and additional information is obtained, and will be
recognized in the period in which such changes occur.  Future actual  results could differ  materially  from these estimates.  As the effects of  the evolving
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic continue, much remains uncertain. There have been no comparable recent events and as a result the ultimate impact
of  COVID-19  and  the  extent  to  which  COVID-19  and  new  variants  continue  to  impact  the  Company’s  business,  results  of  operations  and  financial
condition will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and difficult to predict.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2019, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2019-12, which simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles in the existing guidance and making other minor improvements. The
Company adopted this guidance effective October 1, 2021. The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-01, which clarifies that an entity should consider observable transactions that require it to either apply
or  discontinue  the  equity  method of  accounting  for  purposes  of  applying  the  fair  value  measurement  alternative.  The Company adopted this  guidance
effective October 1, 2021. The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)—(Continued)

Note 2—Acquisitions

Closed Acquisition

On December 20, 2021, Visa acquired The Currency Cloud Group Limited (“Currencycloud”), a UK-based global platform that enables banks and
fintechs to provide innovative foreign exchange solutions for cross-border payments, for a total purchase consideration of $893 million (which includes the
fair value of Visa’s previously held equity interest in Currencycloud). As a result of this transaction closing days before the quarter-end, the initial allocation
of  the  purchase  price  has  not  yet  been  completed.  On  a  provisional  basis,  the  Company  allocated  $210  million  to  technology,  intangible  assets  and
deferred  tax  liabilities  and  $683  million  to  goodwill.  The  Company  expects  to  finalize  the  purchase  price  allocation  once  the  information  required  to
complete the accounting is available, but no later than one year from the acquisition date.

Pending Acquisition

On June 24, 2021, Visa entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Tink AB (“Tink”) for €1.8 billion, inclusive of cash and retention incentives. Tink
is a European open banking platform that enables financial institutions, fintechs and merchants to build tailored financial management tools, products and
services  for  European  consumers  and  businesses  based  on  their  financial  data.  This  acquisition  is  subject  to  customary  closing  conditions,  including
regulatory reviews and approvals.

Note 3—Revenues

The nature,  amount,  timing and uncertainty  of  the Company’s  revenues and cash flows and how they are affected by economic factors  are most
appropriately  depicted  through  the  Company’s  revenue  categories  and  geographical  markets.  The  following  tables  disaggregate  the  Company’s  net
revenues by revenue category and by geography:

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
(in millions)

Service revenues $ 3,193 $ 2,677 
Data processing revenues 3,614 3,033 
International transaction revenues 2,174 1,451 
Other revenues 449 384 
Client incentives (2,371) (1,858)
Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
(in millions)

U.S. $ 3,178 $ 2,667 
International 3,881 3,020 
Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)—(Continued)

Note 4—Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Restricted Cash Equivalents

The Company reconciles cash, cash equivalents,  restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents reported in the consolidated balance sheets that
aggregate to the beginning and ending balances shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows as follows:

December 31, 
2021

September 30, 
2021

(in millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,720 $ 16,487 
Restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents:

U.S. litigation escrow 1,144 894 
Customer collateral 2,284 2,260 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 175 158 

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents $ 18,323 $ 19,799 

Note 5—U.S. and Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plans

U.S. Retrospective Responsibility Plan

Under the terms of the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan, the Company maintains an escrow account from which settlements of, or judgments in,
certain litigation referred to as the “U.S. covered litigation” are paid. The accrual related to the U.S. covered litigation could be either higher or lower than
the U.S. litigation escrow account balance. See Note 13—Legal Matters.

The following table presents the changes in the restricted cash equivalents—U.S. litigation escrow account:

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
  (in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ 894 $ 901 

Deposits into the litigation escrow account 250 — 
Payments to opt-out merchants  and interest earned on escrow funds — (7)

Balance at end of period $ 1,144 $ 894 

These payments are associated with the interchange multidistrict litigation. See Note 13—Legal Matters.

Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plan

Visa Inc., Visa International and Visa Europe are parties to certain existing and potential litigation relating to the setting of multilateral interchange fee
rates in the Visa Europe territory (the “VE territory covered litigation”).  Under the terms of the Europe retrospective responsibility  plan, the Company is
entitled to recover certain losses resulting from VE territory covered litigation (the “VE territory covered losses”) through a periodic adjustment to the class
A  common  stock  conversion  rates  applicable  to  the  series  B  and  C  preferred  stock.  VE  territory  covered  losses  are  recorded  in  “right  to  recover  for
covered  losses”  within  stockholders’  equity  before  the  corresponding  adjustment  to  the  applicable  conversion  rate  is  effected.  Adjustments  to  the
conversion rate may be executed once in any six-month period unless a single, individual loss greater than €20 million is incurred, in which case, the six-
month limitation does not  apply.  When the adjustment  to  the conversion rate is  made,  the amount  previously  recorded in  “right  to  recover  for  covered
losses”  as  contra-equity  is  then  recorded  against  the  book  value  of  the  preferred  stock  within  stockholders’  equity.  During  the  three  months  ended
December  31,  2021,  the Company recovered $29 million of  VE territory  covered losses through adjustments  to  the class A common stock conversion
rates applicable to the series B and C preferred stock.

(1)

(1)
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)—(Continued)

The following table presents the activities related to VE territory  covered losses in preferred stock and “right  to recover for  covered losses”  within
stockholders’ equity:

Preferred Stock Right to Recover for
Covered LossesSeries B Series C

(in millions)
Balance as of September 30, 2021 $ 1,071 $ 1,523 $ (133)

VE territory covered losses incurred — — (7)
Recovery through conversion rate adjustment (26) (3) 29 

Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 1,045 $ 1,520 $ (111)

Preferred Stock Right to Recover for
Covered LossesSeries B Series C

(in millions)
Balance as of September 30, 2020 $ 1,106 $ 1,543 $ (39)

VE territory covered losses incurred — — (10)
Recovery through conversion rate adjustment (9) (6) 15 

Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 1,097 $ 1,537 $ (34)

VE territory covered losses incurred reflect settlements with merchants and additional legal costs. See Note 13—Legal Matters.

The following table presents  the as-converted value of  the preferred stock available to recover  VE territory  covered losses compared to the book
value of preferred stock recorded in stockholders’ equity within the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:

December 31, 2021 September 30, 2021
As-converted Value
of Preferred Stock Book Value of

Preferred Stock
As-converted Value
of Preferred Stock Book Value of

Preferred Stock
(in millions)

Series B preferred stock $ 3,371 $ 1,045 $ 3,493 $ 1,071 
Series C preferred stock 4,672 1,520 4,806 1,523 
Total 8,043 2,565 8,299 2,594 

Less: right to recover for covered losses (111) (111) (133) (133)
Total recovery for covered losses available $ 7,932 $ 2,454 $ 8,166 $ 2,461 

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. As-converted and book values are based on unrounded numbers.
As  of  December  31,  2021,  the  as-converted  value  of  preferred  stock  is  calculated  as  the  product  of:  (a)  2  million  and  3  million  shares  of  the  series  B  and  C preferred  stock
outstanding,  respectively;  (b)  6.271 and 6.829,  the  class  A common stock  conversion rate  applicable  to  the  series  B and C preferred stock  outstanding,  respectively;  and (c)
$216.71, Visa’s class A common stock closing stock price.
As of  September  30,  2021,  the  as-converted  value  of  preferred  stock  is  calculated  as  the  product  of:  (a)  2  million  and 3  million  shares  of  the  series  B and C preferred  stock
outstanding,  respectively;  (b)  6.321 and 6.834,  the  class  A common stock  conversion rate  applicable  to  the  series  B and C preferred stock  outstanding,  respectively;  and (c)
$222.75, Visa’s class A common stock closing stock price.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1),
(2) (1)

(1),
(3) (1)

(1)

(2)

(3)
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)—(Continued)

Note 6—Fair Value Measurements and Investments

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

 
Fair Value Measurements 

Using Inputs Considered as
 Level 1 Level 2

 
December 31, 

2021
September 30, 

2021
December 31, 

2021
September 30, 

2021
 (in millions)
Assets
Cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 11,084 $ 11,779 $ — $ — 
U.S. government-sponsored debt securities — — 541 100 
U.S. Treasury securities 1,075 2,400 — — 

Investment securities:
Marketable equity securities 481 490 — — 
U.S. government-sponsored debt securities — — 510 245 
U.S. Treasury securities 2,287 2,985 — — 

Other current and non-current assets:
Money market funds 4 4 — — 
Derivative instruments — — 408 410 

Total $ 14,931 $ 17,658 $ 1,459 $ 755 
Liabilities
Accrued compensation and benefits:

Deferred compensation liability $ 209 $ 167 $ — $ — 
Accrued and other liabilities:

Derivative instruments — — 62 109 
Total $ 209 $ 167 $ 62 $ 109 

Level 1 assets and liabilities. Money market funds, marketable equity securities and U.S. Treasury securities are classified as Level 1 within the fair
value  hierarchy,  as  fair  value  is  based  on  unadjusted  quoted  prices  in  active  markets  for  identical  assets  and  liabilities.  The  Company’s  deferred
compensation liability is measured at fair value based on marketable equity securities held under the deferred compensation plan.

Level 2 assets and liabilities. The fair value of U.S. government-sponsored debt securities, as provided by third-party pricing vendors, is based on
quoted prices in active markets for similar, not identical, assets. Derivative instruments are valued using inputs that are observable in the market or can be
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.

U.S.  government-sponsored  debt  securities  and  U.S.  Treasury  securities. As  of  December  31,  2021  and  September  30,  2021,  gross  unrealized
gains and losses were not material. As of December 31, 2021, $2.3 billion of the Company’s debt securities are due within one year and $2.1 billion is due
between one to five years.
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

Non-marketable  equity  securities. The  Company’s  non-marketable  equity  securities  are  investments  in  privately  held  companies  without  readily
determinable market values. These investments are classified as Level 3 due to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherent lack of liquidity and the
fact that inputs used to measure fair value are unobservable and require management’s judgment.

The following table summarizes the total carrying value of the Company’s non-marketable equity securities held as of December 31, 2021 including
cumulative unrealized gains and losses:

December 31, 
2021

(in millions)
Initial cost basis $ 893 
Adjustments:

Upward adjustments 818 
Downward adjustments (including impairment) (13)

Carrying amount, end of period $ 1,698 

Unrealized gains and losses included in the carrying value of the Company’s non-marketable equity securities still held as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 were as follows:

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
(in millions)

Upward adjustments $ 224 $ 14 
Downward adjustments (including impairment) $ — $ (2)

The Company recognized net unrealized gains on marketable and non-marketable equity securities still held as of quarter end of $172 million and
$29 million for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Non-financial assets and liabilities. Certain non-financial assets such as goodwill, intangible assets and property, equipment and technology are only
recognized at fair value if they are deemed to be impaired. As of December 31, 2021, there were no impairment indicators.

Other Fair Value Disclosures

Debt. Debt  instruments  are  measured  at  amortized  cost  on  the  Company’s  unaudited  consolidated  balance  sheets.  The  fair  value  of  the  debt
instruments, as provided by third-party pricing vendors, is based on quoted prices in active markets for similar, not identical, assets. If measured at fair
value in the financial statements, these instruments would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. As of December 31, 2021, the carrying value
and estimated fair value of debt was $20.9 billion and $22.5 billion, respectively. As of September 30, 2021, the carrying value and estimated fair value of
debt was $21.0 billion and $22.5 billion, respectively.

Other financial instruments not measured at fair value. At December 31, 2021, the carrying value of settlement receivable and payable and customer
collateral approximates fair value due to their generally short maturities. If measured at fair value in the financial statements, these financial instruments
would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 7—Debt

The Company had outstanding debt as follows:

December 31, 
2021

September 30, 
2021

Effective Interest
Rate

(in millions, except percentages)
2.15% Senior Notes due September 2022 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 2.30 %
2.80% Senior Notes due December 2022 2,250 2,250 2.89 %
3.15% Senior Notes due December 2025 4,000 4,000 3.26 %
1.90% Senior Notes due April 2027 1,500 1,500 2.02 %
0.75% Senior Notes due August 2027 500 500 0.84 %
2.75% Senior Notes due September 2027 750 750 2.91 %
2.05% Senior Notes due April 2030 1,500 1,500 2.13 %
1.10% Senior Notes due February 2031 1,000 1,000 1.20 %
4.15% Senior Notes due December 2035 1,500 1,500 4.23 %
2.70% Senior Notes due April 2040 1,000 1,000 2.80 %
4.30% Senior Notes due December 2045 3,500 3,500 4.37 %
3.65% Senior Notes due September 2047 750 750 3.73 %
2.00% Senior Notes due August 2050 1,750 1,750 2.09 %
Total debt 21,000 21,000 

Unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs (158) (161)
Hedge accounting fair value adjustments 78 138 

Total carrying value of debt $ 20,920 $ 20,977 

Reported as:
Current maturities of debt $ 3,247 $ 999 
Long-term debt 17,673 19,978 

Total carrying value of debt $ 20,920 $ 20,977 

Effective interest rates disclosed do not reflect hedge accounting adjustments.
Represents the change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements entered into on a portion of the outstanding senior notes.

Note 8—Settlement Guarantee Management

The Company indemnifies its clients for settlement losses suffered due to failure of any other client to fund its settlement obligations in accordance
with the Visa operating rules. This indemnification creates settlement risk for the Company due to the difference in timing between the date of a payment
transaction and the date of subsequent settlement.

Historically, the Company has experienced minimal losses as a result of its settlement risk guarantee. However, the Company’s future obligations,
which could be material under its guarantees, are not determinable as they are dependent upon future events.

The Company’s settlement exposure is limited to the amount of unsettled Visa payment transactions at any point in time, which vary significantly day
to day. During the three months ended December 31, 2021, the Company’s maximum daily settlement exposure was $112.7 billion and the average daily
settlement exposure was $72.4 billion.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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The Company maintains and regularly  reviews global  settlement  risk policies and procedures to manage settlement  exposure,  which may require
clients to post collateral if certain credit standards are not met. The Company held the following collateral to manage settlement exposure:

December 31, 
2021

September 30, 
2021

  (in millions)
Restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents $ 2,284 $ 2,260 
Pledged securities at market value 273 254 
Letters of credit 1,545 1,518 
Guarantees 765 758 
Total $ 4,867 $ 4,790 

Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity

As-converted class A common stock. The number of shares of each series and class, and the number of shares of class A common stock on an as-
converted basis were as follows:

December 31, 2021 September 30, 2021

Shares 
Outstanding

Conversion Rate
Into  

Class A 
Common Stock

As-converted
Class A

Common
Stock

Shares 
Outstanding

Conversion Rate
Into 

Class A 
Common Stock

As-converted
Class A

Common
Stock

(in millions, except conversion rate)
Series A preferred stock — 100.0000 6 — 100.0000 7 
Series B preferred stock 2 6.2710 16 2 6.3210 16 
Series C preferred stock 3 6.8290 22 3 6.8340 22 
Class A common stock 1,661 — 1,661 1,677 — 1,677 
Class B common stock 245 1.6181 397 245 1.6228 398 
Class C common stock 10 4.0000 40 10 4.0000 41 
Total 2,142 2,161 

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. As-converted class A common stock is calculated based on unrounded numbers.
The number of shares outstanding was less than one million.
Class A common stock shares outstanding reflect repurchases that settled on or before December 31, 2021 and September 30, 2021, respectively.
The class B to class A common stock conversion rate is presented on a rounded basis. Conversion calculations for dividend payments are based on a conversion rate rounded to
the tenth decimal.

Reduction in as-converted shares. Under the terms of the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan, when the Company funds the U.S. litigation escrow
account, the value of the Company’s class B common stock is subject to dilution through a downward adjustment to the conversion rate of the shares of
class B common stock to shares of class A common stock. Under the terms of the Europe retrospective responsibility plan, the Company is entitled to
recover VE territory covered losses through periodic adjustments to the class A common stock conversion rates applicable to the series B and C preferred
stock. The deposit and recovery have the same economic effect on earnings per share as repurchasing the Company’s class A common stock, because it
reduces the class B common stock and the series B and C preferred stock conversion rates and consequently, reduces the as-converted class A common
stock share count. See Note 5—U.S. and Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plans.

(1) (1)

(2) (2)

(3)
(4) (4)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
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The following table presents the reduction in the number of as-converted class B common stock after deposit into the U.S. litigation escrow account
for the three months ended December 31, 2021. There was no comparable adjustment recorded for class B common stock for the three months ended
December 31, 2020.

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 2021

(in millions, except per share data)
Reduction in equivalent number of class A common stock 1 
Effective price per share $ 217.61 
Deposits under the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan $ 250 

Effective price per share is calculated using the volume-weighted average price of the Company’s class A common stock over a pricing period in accordance with the Company’s
current certificate of incorporation.

The following table presents the reduction in the number of as-converted series B and C preferred stock after the Company recovered VE territory
covered losses through conversion rate adjustments:

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 2021

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 2020

Series B Series C Series B Series C
(in millions, except per share data)

Reduction in equivalent number of class A common stock — — — — 
Effective price per share $ 201.68 $ 201.68 $ 209.89 $ 209.89 
Recovery through conversion rate adjustment $ 26 $ 3 $ 9 $ 6 

The reduction in equivalent number of shares of class A common stock was less than one million shares.
Effective price per share for the quarter is calculated using the volume-weighted average price of the Company’s class A common stock over a pricing period in accordance with
the Company’s current certificates of designations for its series B and C preferred stock. Effective price per share is calculated using the weighted-average effective prices of the
respective adjustments made during the year.

Common stock repurchases. The following table presents share repurchases in the open market:

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
(in millions, except per share data)

Shares repurchased in the open market 19 9 
Average repurchase price per share $ 210.32 $ 201.73 
Total cost $ 4,104 $ 1,796 

Shares repurchased in the open market reflect repurchases that settled during the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. All shares repurchased in the
open market have been retired and constitute authorized but unissued shares.
Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Average repurchase price per share and total cost are calculated based on unrounded numbers.

In December 2021,  the Company’s board of  directors  authorized a new $12.0 billion share repurchase program. Previously,  in January 2021,  the
Company’s  board  of  directors  authorized  an  $8.0  billion  share  repurchase  program  (the  “January  2021  Program”).  These  authorizations  have  no
expiration date.  As of  December 31, 2021, the Company’s repurchase programs had remaining authorized funds of  $12.7 billion.  All  share repurchase
programs authorized prior to the January 2021 Program have been completed.

Dividends. On January 25, 2022, the Company’s board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.375 per share of class A common stock
(determined in the case of class B and C common stock and series A, B and C preferred stock on an as-converted basis), which will be paid on March 1,
2022,  to  all  holders  of  record  as  of  February  11,  2022.  The  Company  declared  and  paid  dividends  of  $809  million  and  $703  million  during  the  three
months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(1)

(1)

(1) (1) (1) (1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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Note 10—Earnings Per Share

Basic  earnings  per  share  is  computed  by  dividing  net  income  available  to  each  class  of  shares  by  the  weighted-average  number  of  shares  of
common stock outstanding and participating securities during the period. Participating securities include the Company’s series A, B and C preferred stock
and  restricted  stock  units  (“RSUs”)  that  contain  non-forfeitable  rights  to  dividends  or  dividend  equivalents.  Net  income  is  allocated  to  each  class  of
common  stock  and  participating  securities  based  on  its  proportional  ownership  on  an  as-converted  basis.  The  weighted-average  number  of  shares
outstanding of each class of common stock reflects changes in ownership over the periods presented. See Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding,
participating securities and, if  dilutive,  potential  class A common stock equivalent  shares outstanding during the period.  Dilutive class A common stock
equivalents may consist of: (1) shares of class A common stock issuable upon the conversion of series A, B and C preferred stock and class B and C
common stock based on the conversion rates in effect through the period, and (2) incremental shares of class A common stock calculated by applying the
treasury  stock  method  to  the  assumed  exercise  of  employee  stock  options,  the  assumed  purchase  of  stock  under  the  Company’s  Employee  Stock
Purchase Plan and the assumed vesting of unearned performance shares.

The following table presents earnings per share for the three months ended December 31, 2021:

 Basic Earnings Per Share Diluted Earnings Per Share

Income
Allocation

(A)

Weighted- 
Average 
Shares 

Outstanding (B)

Earnings per
Share =
(A)/(B)

Income
Allocation

(A)

Weighted- 
Average 
Shares 

Outstanding (B)  

Earnings per
Share =
(A)/(B)

(in millions, except per share data)
Class A common stock $ 3,065 1,669 $ 1.84 $ 3,959 2,159 $ 1.83 
Class B common stock 732 245 $ 2.98 $ 731 245 $ 2.98 
Class C common stock 74 10 $ 7.35 $ 74 10 $ 7.34 
Participating securities 88 Not presented Not presented $ 88 Not presented Not presented
Net income $ 3,959 

The following table presents earnings per share for the three months ended December 31, 2020:

 Basic Earnings Per Share Diluted Earnings Per Share

Income
Allocation

(A)

Weighted- 
Average 
Shares 

Outstanding (B)

Earnings per
Share =
(A)/(B)

Income
Allocation

(A)

Weighted- 
Average 
Shares 

Outstanding (B)  

Earnings per
Share =
(A)/(B)

(in millions, except per share data)
Class A common stock $ 2,410 1,694 $ 1.42 $ 3,126 2,200 $ 1.42 
Class B common stock 567 245 $ 2.31 $ 566 245 $ 2.31 
Class C common stock 61 11 $ 5.69 $ 61 11 $ 5.68 
Participating securities 88 Not presented Not presented $ 89 Not presented Not presented
Net income $ 3,126 

Net income is allocated based on proportional ownership on an as-converted basis. The weighted-average number of shares of as-converted class B common stock used in the
income allocation was 398 million for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The weighted-average number of shares of as-converted class C common stock
used in the income allocation was 40 million and 43 million for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The weighted-average number of shares of
preferred stock included within participating securities was 7 million and 21 million of as-converted series A preferred stock for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, 16 million of as-converted series B preferred stock for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and 22 million of as-converted series C preferred
stock for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Earnings per share is calculated based on unrounded numbers.
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding are calculated on an as-converted basis and include incremental common stock equivalents, as calculated under the treasury stock
method. The common stock equivalents are not material for the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(1) (2) (1) (2)

(3)

(4)

(1) (2) (1) (2)

(3)

(1)

(2)

(3)
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Note 11—Share-based Compensation

The Company granted the following equity awards to employees and non-employee directors under the 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan,
or the EIP, during the three months ended December 31, 2021:

Granted

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Value
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price
Non-qualified stock options 961,570 $ 43.16 $ 200.86 
Restricted stock units 2,655,547 $ 201.27 
Performance-based shares 440,722 $ 186.50 

Represents the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be earned.

Related  to  the  EIP,  the  Company recorded share-based  compensation  cost,  net  of  estimated  forfeitures,  of  $121 million  and $116 million  for  the
three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Note 12—Income Taxes

For the three months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the effective income tax rates were 19% and 17%, respectively.  The difference in the
effective tax rates is primarily due to an $81 million tax benefit recognized during the three months ended December 31, 2020 as a result of the conclusion
of audits by taxing authorities.

During the three months ended December 31, 2021, the Company’s gross unrecognized tax benefits increased by $78 million, of which $29 million
would favorably impact the effective tax rate, if  recognized. The change in unrecognized tax benefits is primarily related to various tax positions across
several jurisdictions.

The  Company’s  tax  filings  are  subject  to  examination  by  U.S.  federal,  state  and  foreign  taxing  authorities.  The  timing  and  outcome  of  the  final
resolutions  of  the  various ongoing income tax  examinations  are  highly  uncertain.  It  is  not  reasonably  possible  to  estimate  the increase or  decrease in
unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.

Note 13—Legal Matters

The Company is party to various legal and regulatory proceedings. Some of these proceedings involve complex claims that are subject to substantial
uncertainties  and  unascertainable  damages.  Accordingly,  except  as  disclosed,  the  Company  has  not  established  reserves  or  ranges  of  possible  loss
related to these proceedings, as at this time in the proceedings, the matters do not relate to a probable loss and/or the amount or range of losses are not
reasonably estimable. Although the Company believes that it has strong defenses for the litigation and regulatory proceedings described below, it could, in
the  future,  incur  judgments  or  fines  or  enter  into  settlements  of  claims  that  could  have  a  material  adverse  effect  on  the  Company’s  financial  position,
results of operations or cash flows. From time to time, the Company may engage in settlement discussions or mediations with respect to one or more of
its outstanding litigation matters, either on its own behalf or collectively with other parties.

The  litigation  accrual  is  an  estimate  and  is  based  on  management’s  understanding  of  its  litigation  profile,  the  specifics  of  each  case,  advice  of
counsel to the extent appropriate and management’s best estimate of incurred loss as of the balance sheet date.

(1)

(1)
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The following table summarizes the activity related to accrued litigation:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
  (in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ 983 $ 914 

Provision for uncovered legal matters 1 1 
Provision for covered legal matters 146 10 
Payments for legal matters (103) (16)

Balance at end of period $ 1,027 $ 909 

Accrual Summary—U.S. Covered Litigation

Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A. and Visa International are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the U.S. retrospective responsibility plan,
which the Company refers to as the U.S. covered litigation. An accrual for the U.S. covered litigation and a charge to the litigation provision are recorded
when a loss is deemed to be probable and reasonably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information, including
but not  limited to actions taken by the Company’s litigation committee.  The total  accrual  related to the U.S.  covered litigation could be either  higher or
lower  than  the  escrow  account  balance.  See  further  discussion  below  under U.S.  Covered  Litigation and Note  5—U.S.  and  Europe  Retrospective
Responsibility Plans.

The following table summarizes the accrual activity related to U.S. covered litigation:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
  (in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ 881 $ 888 

Provision for interchange multidistrict litigation 145 — 
Payments for U.S. covered litigation — (7)

Balance at end of period $ 1,026 $ 881 

During the quarter ended December 31, 2021, the Company recorded an additional accrual of $145 million and deposited $250 million into the U.S.
litigation  escrow  account  to  address  claims  of  certain  merchants  who  opted  out  of  the  Amended  Settlement  Agreement.  The  U.S.  covered  litigation
accrual balance is consistent with the Company’s estimate of its share of the lower end of a probable and reasonably estimable loss with respect to U.S.
covered litigation. While this estimate is consistent with the Company’s view of the current status of the litigation, the probable and reasonably estimable
loss  or  range  of  such  loss  could  materially  vary  based  on  developments  in  the  litigation.  The  Company  will  continue  to  consider  and  reevaluate  this
estimate in light of the substantial uncertainties with respect to the litigation. The Company is unable to estimate a potential loss or range of loss, if any, at
trial if negotiated resolutions cannot be reached.

Accrual Summary—VE Territory Covered Litigation

Visa Inc., Visa International and Visa Europe are parties to certain legal proceedings that are covered by the Europe retrospective responsibility plan.
Unlike  the  U.S.  retrospective  responsibility  plan,  the  Europe  retrospective  responsibility  plan  does  not  have  an  escrow  account  that  is  used  to  fund
settlements or judgments. The Company is entitled to recover VE territory covered losses through periodic adjustments to the conversion rates applicable
to the series B and C preferred stock. An accrual for the VE territory covered losses and a reduction to stockholders’ equity will be recorded when the loss
is deemed to be probable and reasonably estimable. See further discussion below under VE Territory Covered Litigation and Note 5—U.S. and Europe
Retrospective Responsibility Plans.
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The following table summarizes the accrual activity related to VE territory covered litigation:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020

(in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ 102 $ 21 

Provision for VE territory covered litigation 1 10 
Payments for VE territory covered litigation (102) (9)

Balance at end of period $ 1 $ 22 

U.S. Covered Litigation

Interchange Multidistrict Litigation (MDL) - Individual Merchant Actions

Visa  has  reached  settlements  with  a  number  of  merchants  representing  approximately  40%  of  the  Visa-branded  payment  card  sales  volume  of
merchants who opted out of the Amended Settlement Agreement with the Damages Class plaintiffs.

VE Territory Covered Litigation

Europe Merchant Litigation

Since  July  2013,  in  excess  of  800  Merchants  (the  capitalized  term  “Merchant,”  when  used  in  this  section,  means  a  merchant  together  with
subsidiary/affiliate companies that are party to the same claim) have commenced proceedings against Visa Europe, Visa Inc. and other Visa subsidiaries
in the UK, Belgium and Poland primarily relating to interchange rates in Europe and in some cases relating to fees charged by Visa and certain Visa rules.
As of the filing date, Visa has settled the claims asserted by over 150 Merchants, leaving more than 650 Merchants with outstanding claims. In addition,
over 30 additional Merchants have threatened to commence similar proceedings. Standstill agreements have been entered into with respect to some of
those threatened Merchant claims, several of which have been settled.

On November 26, 2021, with respect to certain pending Merchant claims, the UK Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT) found that UK and certain other
domestic  and  intra-European  Economic  Area  consumer  interchange  fees  before  the  introduction  of  the  Interchange  Fee  Regulation  (IFR)  were  a
restriction of competition,  but that the question of whether those fees are a restriction of competition after the introduction of the IFR would need to be
resolved at trial. Whether any interchange fees are exempt from the finding of restriction under applicable law and the assessment of damages, if any, will
also need to be considered at trial.

Other Litigation

German ATM Litigation

In December 2021 and January 2022, Visa was served with claims in Germany brought by German savings banks against Visa Europe and Visa Inc.
The banks claim that Visa’s ATM rules prohibiting the charging of access fees on domestic cash withdrawals are anti-competitive and they are seeking
damages.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Litigation

On  December  6,  2021,  an  amended  complaint  making  similar  allegations  regarding  the  setting  of  foreign  exchange  rates  was  filed  by  several
individuals  on  behalf  of  a  nationwide  class,  and/or  California,  Washington,  Massachusetts  or  New  Jersey  subclasses,  of  cardholders  who  made  a
transaction in a foreign currency. The amended complaint asserts claims for unjust enrichment and restitution as well as violations of the California Unfair
Competition Law, the Washington Consumer Protection Act, the Massachusetts Consumer Protection Act, and the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act. On
January 19, 2022, Visa filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This management’s discussion and analysis provides a review of the results of operations, financial condition and the liquidity and capital resources
of Visa Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Visa,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”) on a historical basis and outlines the factors that have affected recent earnings,
as  well  as  those  factors  that  may  affect  future  earnings.  The  following  discussion  and  analysis  should  be  read  in  conjunction  with  our  unaudited
consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Item 1—Financial Statements of this report.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 that relate to, among other things, the impact on our future financial position, results of operations and cash flows as a result of the ongoing effects
of the coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic, the measures taken in response, as well as the speed and strength of an economic recovery, including the
reopening of borders and resumption of international travel; prospects, developments, strategies and growth of our business; anticipated expansion of our
products  in  certain  countries;  industry  developments;  anticipated  timing  and  benefits  of  our  acquisitions;  expectations  regarding  litigation  matters,
investigations  and  proceedings;  timing  and  amount  of  stock  repurchases;  sufficiency  of  sources  of  liquidity  and  funding;  effectiveness  of  our  risk
management programs; and expectations regarding the impact of recent accounting pronouncements on our consolidated financial statements. Forward-
looking statements generally are identified by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “projects,” “could,” “should,”
“will,” “continue” and other similar expressions. All statements other than statements of historical fact could be forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of  the date they are made,  are not  guarantees of  future performance and are subject  to certain  risks,  uncertainties and other  factors,  many of
which are beyond our control and are difficult to predict. We describe risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in, or implied by, any of these forward-looking statements in our SEC filings, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended
September 30, 2021 and our subsequent reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K. Except as required by law, we do not intend to update or revise any forward-
looking statements as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Overview

Visa  is  a  global  payments  technology  company  that  facilitates  global  commerce  and  money  movement  across  more  than  200  countries  and
territories among a global network of consumers, merchants,  financial institutions and government entities through innovative technologies. We provide
transaction  processing  services  (primarily  authorization,  clearing  and  settlement)  to  our  financial  institutions  and  merchants  through  VisaNet,  our
advanced transaction processing network. We offer products and solutions that facilitate secure, reliable and efficient money movement for all participants
in the ecosystem.

Financial overview. A summary of our as-reported U.S. GAAP and non-GAAP operating results is as follows:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,

2021 2020
%

Change
(in millions, except percentages and per share data)

Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 24 %
Operating expenses $ 2,283 $ 1,843 24 %
Net income $ 3,959 $ 3,126 27 %
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.83 $ 1.42 29 %

Non-GAAP operating expenses $ 2,115 $ 1,828 16 %
Non-GAAP net income $ 3,901 $ 3,125 25 %
Non-GAAP diluted earnings per share $ 1.81 $ 1.42 27 %

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes are calculated based on unrounded numbers.
For a full reconciliation of our GAAP to non-GAAP financial results, see tables in Non-GAAP financial results below.

Coronavirus. As the effects of the evolving coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic continue, much remains uncertain. Our priority remains the safety of
our employees, clients and the communities in which we live and operate. We are taking a phased approach to reopening our offices, with most of our
employees currently working remotely. We continue to remain in close and regular contact with our employees, clients, partners and governments globally
to help them navigate these challenging times.

The  ongoing  effects  of  COVID-19  remain  difficult  to  predict  due  to  numerous  uncertainties,  including  the  transmissibility,  severity,  duration  and
resurgence of the outbreak, new variants of the virus, the uptake and effectiveness of health and safety measures or actions that are voluntarily adopted
by the public or required by governments or public health authorities, including vaccines and treatments, the speed and strength of an economic recovery,
including the reopening of borders and the resumption of international travel,  and the impact to our employees and our operations, the business of our
clients,  suppliers  and business  partners,  and other  factors  identified  in  Part  I,  Item 1A “Risk  Factors”  in  our Annual  Report  on Form 10-K for  the year
ended September 30 2021. We will continue to evaluate the nature and extent of the impact to our business.

Highlights for the first quarter of fiscal 2022. For the three months ended December 31, 2021, net revenues were $7.1 billion, an increase of 24%
over  the  prior-year  comparable  period,  primarily  due  to  the  growth  in  nominal  payments  volume,  processed  transactions  and  nominal  cross-border
volume,  partially  offset  by  higher  client  incentives.  During  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021,  exchange  rate  movements  and  our  hedging
program negatively impacted our net revenues growth by approximately one percentage point.

For the three months ended December 31, 2021, GAAP operating expenses were $2.3 billion, an increase of 24% over the prior-year comparable
period,  primarily  driven by higher  litigation provision,  higher  personnel  expenses reflecting our  strategy to invest  in  future growth and higher  marketing
expenses as we lapped planned reductions in spending in the prior year.

For  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021,  non-GAAP  operating  expenses  were  $2.1  billion,  an  increase  of  16%  over  the  prior-year
comparable period, primarily  due to higher personnel expenses reflecting our strategy to invest  in future growth and higher marketing expenses as we
lapped planned reductions in spending in the prior year.

(1)

(2)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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Closed acquisition. On December  20,  2021,  we  acquired  The  Currency  Cloud  Group  Limited  (“Currencycloud”),  a  UK-based  global  platform that
enables banks and fintechs to provide innovative foreign exchange solutions for cross-border payments, for a total purchase consideration of $893 million
(which includes the fair value of our previously held equity interest in Currencycloud).  See Note 2—Acquisitions to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements.

Pending acquisition. On June  24,  2021,  we  entered  into  a  definitive  agreement  to  acquire  Tink  AB (“Tink”)  for  €1.8  billion,  inclusive  of  cash  and
retention  incentives.  Tink  is  a  European  open  banking  platform  that  enables  financial  institutions,  fintechs  and  merchants  to  build  tailored  financial
management tools, products and services for European consumers and businesses based on their financial data. This acquisition is subject to customary
closing conditions, including regulatory reviews and approvals.

Interchange multidistrict litigation. During the three months ended December 31, 2021, we recorded an additional accrual of $145 million to address
claims associated with the interchange multidistrict litigation. We also deposited $250 million into the U.S. litigation escrow account. See Note 5—U.S. and
Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plans and Note 13—Legal Matters to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Common  stock  repurchases. In  December  2021,  our  board  of  directors  authorized  a  new $12.0  billion  share  repurchase  program. Previously, in
January  2021,  our  board  of  directors  authorized  an  $8.0  billion  share  repurchase  program.  During  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021,  we
repurchased 19 million shares of our class A common stock in the open market for $4.1 billion. As of December 31, 2021, our repurchase programs had
remaining authorized funds of $12.7 billion. See Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Non-GAAP  financial  results. We  use  non-GAAP  financial  measures  of  our  performance  which  exclude  certain  items  which  we  believe  are  not
representative of our continuing operations, as they may be non-recurring or have no cash impact, and may distort our longer-term operating trends. We
consider non-GAAP measures useful  to investors because they provide greater  transparency into management’s  view and assessment  of  our ongoing
operating performance.

• Gains and losses on equity investments. Gains and losses on equity investments include periodic non-cash fair value adjustments and gains and
losses upon sale of an investment. These long-term investments are strategic in nature and are primarily  private company investments.  Gains
and losses and the related tax impacts  associated with  these investments  are tied to the performance of  the companies that  we invest  in and
therefore do not correlate to the underlying performance of our business.

• Amortization  of  acquired  intangible  assets. Amortization  of  acquired  intangible  assets  consists  of  amortization  of  intangible  assets  such  as
developed technology, customer relationships and brands acquired in connection with business combinations executed beginning in fiscal 2019.
Amortization  charges  for  our  acquired  intangible  assets  are  non-cash  and  are  significantly  affected  by  the  timing,  frequency  and  size  of  our
acquisitions, rather than our core operations. As such, we have excluded this amount and the related tax impact to facilitate an evaluation of our
current operating performance and comparison to our past operating performance.

• Acquisition-related  costs. Acquisition-related  costs  consist  primarily  of  one-time transaction  and integration  costs  associated  with  our  business
combinations.  These  costs  include  professional  fees,  technology  integration  fees,  restructuring  activities  and  other  direct  costs  related  to  the
purchase and integration of acquired entities. It also includes retention equity and deferred equity compensation when they are agreed upon as
part of the purchase price of the transaction but are required to be recognized as expense post-combination. We have excluded these amounts
and the related tax impacts as the expenses are recognized for a limited duration and do not reflect the underlying performance of our business.

• Litigation provision. During the three months ended December 31, 2021, we recorded an additional accrual to address claims associated with the
interchange multidistrict litigation of $145 million, and related tax benefit of $32 million determined by applying applicable tax rates. Under the U.S.
retrospective responsibility plan, we recover the monetary liabilities related to the U.S. covered litigation through a downward adjustment to the
conversion rate of  our class B common stock to shares of  class A common stock.  See Note 5—U.S. and Europe Retrospective Responsibility
Plans and Note 13—Legal Matters to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Non-GAAP operating expenses, non-operating income (expense), income tax provision, effective income tax rate, net income and diluted earnings
per share should not be relied upon as substitutes for, or considered in isolation from, measures calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The following
tables reconcile our as-reported financial measures, calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP, to our respective non-GAAP financial measures:

Three Months Ended December 31, 2021

Operating
Expenses

Non-operating
Income

(Expense)
Income Tax
Provision

Effective Income
Tax Rate

Net 
Income

Diluted
Earnings Per

Share
(in millions, except percentages and per share data)

As reported $ 2,283 $ 121 $ 938 19.1 % $ 3,959 $ 1.83 
(Gains) losses on equity investments, net — (231) (42) (189) (0.09)
Amortization of acquired intangible assets (13) — 3 10 — 
Acquisition-related costs (10) — 2 8 — 
Litigation provision (145) — 32 113 0.05 
Non-GAAP $ 2,115 $ (110) $ 933 19.3 % $ 3,901 $ 1.81 

Three Months Ended December 31, 2020

Operating
Expenses

Non-operating
Income

(Expense)
Income Tax
Provision

Effective Income
Tax Rate

Net 
Income

Diluted
Earnings Per

Share
(in millions, except percentages and per share data)

As reported $ 1,843 $ (96) $ 622 16.6 % $ 3,126 $ 1.42 
(Gains) losses on equity investments, net — (16) (4) (12) (0.01)
Amortization of acquired intangible assets (12) — 3 9 — 
Acquisition-related costs (3) — 1 2 — 
Non-GAAP $ 1,828 $ (112) $ 622 16.6 % $ 3,125 $ 1.42 

Figures  in  the  table  may  not  recalculate  exactly  due  to  rounding.  Effective  income  tax  rate,  diluted  earnings  per  share  and  their  respective  totals  are  calculated  based  on
unrounded numbers.

Payments  volume  and  processed  transactions. Payments  volume  is  the  primary  driver  for  our  service  revenues,  and  the  number  of  processed
transactions is the primary driver for our data processing revenues.

Payments volume represents the aggregate dollar amount of purchases made with cards and other form factors carrying the Visa, Visa Electron, V
PAY  and  Interlink  brands  and  excludes  Europe  co-badged  volume.  Nominal  payments  volume  is  denominated  in  U.S.  dollars  and  is  calculated  each
quarter  by  applying  an  established  U.S.  dollar/local  currency  exchange  rate  for  each  local  currency  in  which  our  volumes  are  reported. Processed
transactions represent transactions using cards and other form factors carrying the Visa, Visa Electron, V PAY, Interlink and PLUS brands processed on
Visa’s networks.

(1) (1)

(1) (1)

(1)
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The following table presents nominal payments and cash volume:

U.S. International Visa Inc.
Three Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change 2021 2020 % Change
(in billions, except percentages)

Nominal payments volume
Consumer credit $ 480 $ 378 27 % $ 651 $ 574 13 % $ 1,131 $ 951 19 %
Consumer debit 640 555 15 % 690 585 18 % 1,330 1,140 17 %
Commercial 205 164 25 % 117 94 24 % 322 258 25 %
Total nominal payments volume $ 1,325 $ 1,097 21 % $ 1,458 $ 1,253 16 % $ 2,784 $ 2,349 18 %
Cash volume 180 165 9 % 496 482 3 % 676 647 5 %
Total nominal volume $ 1,506 $ 1,262 19 % $ 1,955 $ 1,734 13 % $ 3,460 $ 2,996 15 %

The following table presents the change in nominal and constant payments and cash volume:

International Visa Inc.

 
Three Months

Ended September 30,
2021 vs. 2020

Three Months
Ended September 30,

2021 vs. 2020
 Nominal Constant Nominal Constant
Payments volume growth
Consumer credit growth 13 % 11 % 19 % 17 %
Consumer debit growth 18 % 14 % 17 % 15 %
Commercial growth 24 % 21 % 25 % 24 %
Total payments volume growth 16 % 13 % 18 % 17 %
Cash volume growth 3 % 4 % 5 % 5 %
Total volume growth 13 % 11 % 15 % 14 %

Service  revenues in  a  given quarter  are  assessed based on nominal  payments  volume in  the prior  quarter.  Therefore,  service  revenues  reported  for  the  three months  ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, were based on nominal payments volume reported by our financial institution clients for the three months ended September 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively. On occasion, previously presented volume information may be updated. Prior-period updates are not material.
Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes and totals are calculated based on unrounded numbers.
Includes consumer prepaid volume and Interlink volume.
Includes large, medium and small business credit and debit, as well as commercial prepaid volume.
Cash volume generally consists of cash access transactions, balance access transactions, balance transfers and convenience checks.
Total nominal volume is the sum of total  nominal payments volume and cash volume. Total nominal volume is provided by our financial  institution clients,  subject to review by
Visa.
Growth on a constant-dollar basis excludes the impact of foreign currency fluctuations against the U.S. dollar.

The following table presents the number of processed transactions:

 

Three Months Ended 
December 31,

2021 2020
%

Change
(in millions, except percentages)

Visa processed transactions 47,558 39,213 21 %

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage change is calculated based on unrounded numbers. On occasion, previously presented information
may be updated. Prior period updates are not material.

(1) (1) (1)

(2) (2) (2)

(3)

(4)

(2)

(5)

(2),(6)

(1),(2) (1),(2)

(7) (7)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(1)

(2)
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(4)

(5)
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(7)

(1)

(1)
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Results of Operations

Net Revenues

The following table presents our net revenues earned in the U.S. and internationally:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,

  2021 2020
%

Change
  (in millions, except percentages)
U.S. $ 3,178 $ 2,667 19 %
International 3,881 3,020 28 %
Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 24 %

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes are calculated based on unrounded numbers.

Net revenues increased primarily due to the growth in nominal payments volume, processed transactions and nominal cross-border volume, partially
offset by higher client incentives.

Our net revenues are impacted by the overall strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar as payments volume and related revenues denominated
in  local  currencies  are  converted  to  U.S.  dollars.  During  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021,  exchange  rate  movements  and  our  hedging
program negatively impacted our net revenues growth by approximately one percentage point.

The following table presents the components of our net revenues:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,

  2021 2020
%

Change
  (in millions, except percentages)
Service revenues $ 3,193 $ 2,677 19 %
Data processing revenues 3,614 3,033 19 %
International transaction revenues 2,174 1,451 50 %
Other revenues 449 384 17 %
Client incentives (2,371) (1,858) 28 %
Net revenues $ 7,059 $ 5,687 24 %

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes are calculated based on unrounded numbers.

• Service revenues increased primarily due to 18% growth in nominal payments volume.

• Data processing revenues increased primarily due to overall growth in processed transactions of 21%.

• International transaction revenues increased primarily  due to growth in nominal  cross-border  volumes, excluding transactions within Europe, of
49%.

• Other revenues increased primarily due to higher consulting revenues and other value added services.

• Client incentives increased  primarily  due  to  growth  in  payments  volume.  The  amount  of  client  incentives  we  record  in  future  periods  will  vary
based on changes in performance expectations, actual client performance, amendments to existing contracts or execution of new contracts.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

28



Table of Contents

Operating Expenses

The following table presents the components of our total operating expenses:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,

2021 2020
%

Change
  (in millions, except percentages)
Personnel $ 1,125 $ 981 15 %
Marketing 280 205 36 %
Network and processing 190 173 9 %
Professional fees 100 83 19 %
Depreciation and amortization 198 197 1 %
General and administrative 242 203 19 %
Litigation provision 148 1 NM
Total operating expenses $ 2,283 $ 1,843 24 %

NM - Not meaningful
Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes are calculated based on unrounded numbers.

Total operating expenses increased primarily due to our planned reduction and delay of our spend as revenue was impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic in the first half of the prior year.

• Personnel expenses increased primarily due to higher headcount and compensation, reflecting our strategy to invest in future growth.

• Marketing expenses increased as we lapped planned reductions in spending in the prior year as well as higher spending in various campaigns.

• Network and processing expenses increased mainly due to higher continued technology and processing network investments to support growth.

• Professional fees increased primarily due to higher consulting fees as we lapped planned reductions in spending in the prior year.

• General  and  administrative  expenses increased  primarily  as  a  result  of  higher  usage  of  travel  related  card  benefits  and  unfavorable  foreign
currency fluctuations, partially offset by lower indirect taxes.

• Litigation provision increased  primarily  due  to  an  additional  $145  million  accrual  related  to  the  U.S.  covered  litigation.  See Note  5—U.S.  and
Europe Retrospective Responsibility Plans and Note 13—Legal Matters to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Non-operating Income (Expense)

The following table presents the components of our non-operating income (expense):

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,

2021 2020
%

Change
  (in millions, except percentages)
Interest expense, net $ (134) $ (136) (1 %)
Investment income and other 255 40 544 %
Total non-operating income (expense) $ 121 $ (96) (225 %)

Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Percentage changes are calculated based on unrounded numbers.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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• Interest  expense,  net decreased  primarily  as  a  result  of  lower  interest  expense  due  to  lower  outstanding  debt  and  derivative  instruments  that
lowered the cost of borrowing, partially offset by an increase in interest expense related to income tax liabilities.

• Investment income and other increased primarily due to higher gains on our equity investments.

Effective Income Tax Rate

The following table presents our effective income tax rates:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
Effective income tax rate 19 % 17 %

The difference in the effective tax rates is primarily due to an $81 million tax benefit recognized during the three months ended December 31, 2020
as a result of the conclusion of audits by taxing authorities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow Data

The following table summarizes our cash flow activity for the periods presented:

 
Three Months Ended 

December 31,
  2021 2020
  (in millions)
Total cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 4,232 $ 3,513 
Investing activities (547) 639 
Financing activities (4,967) (5,572)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents (194) 304 
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents $ (1,476) $ (1,116)

Operating activities. Cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended December 31, 2021 was higher than the prior-year comparable
period primarily due to growth in our underlying business, partially offset by higher client incentive payments.

Investing activities. Cash was used in investing activities for the three months ended December 31, 2021 as compared to cash provided by investing
activities during the prior-year comparable period, primarily due to higher cash paid for acquisitions and lower proceeds from sales and maturities, net of
purchases of investment securities. See Note 2—Acquisitions to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Financing activities. Cash  used  in  financing  activities  for  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021  was lower  than  the  prior-year  comparable
period primarily due to the absence of the principal debt payment made in the prior year, partially offset by higher share repurchases and higher dividends
paid. See Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Sources of Liquidity

Our  primary  sources  of  liquidity  are  cash  on  hand,  cash  flow  from  our  operations,  our  investment  portfolio  and  access  to  various  equity  and
borrowing arrangements.  Funds from operations are maintained in cash and cash equivalents and short-term or long-term investment securities based
upon  our  funding  requirements,  access  to  liquidity  from  these  holdings  and  the  returns  that  these  holdings  provide.  Based  on  our  current  cash  flow
budgets and forecasts of our short-term and long-term liquidity needs, we believe that our current and projected sources of liquidity will  be sufficient to
meet  our  projected  liquidity  needs  for  more  than  the  next  12  months.  We  will  continue  to  assess  our  liquidity  position  and  potential  sources  of
supplemental liquidity in view of our operating performance, current economic and capital market conditions and other relevant circumstances.

Uses of Liquidity

There has been no significant change to our primary uses of liquidity since September 30, 2021, except as discussed below.

Common stock repurchases. In December 2021, our board of directors authorized a new $12.0 billion share repurchase program. During the three
months  ended  December  31,  2021,  we  repurchased  19  million  shares  of  our  class  A  common  stock  in  the  open  market  for  $4.1  billion.  As  of
December  31,  2021,  our  repurchase  programs  had  remaining  authorized  funds  of  $12.7  billion.  See Note  9—Stockholders’  Equity to  our  unaudited
consolidated financial statements.

Dividends.  During  the  three  months  ended  December  31,  2021,  we  declared  and  paid  $809  million  in  dividends  to  holders  of  our  common  and
preferred  stock.  On  January  25,  2022,  our  board  of  directors  declared  a  cash  dividend  in  the  amount  of  $0.375  per  share  of  class  A  common  stock
(determined in the case of class B and C common stock and series A, B and C convertible participating preferred stock on an as-converted basis), which
will be paid on March 1, 2022, to all holders of record as of February 11, 2022. See Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements.  We  expect  to  continue  paying  quarterly  dividends  in  cash,  subject  to  approval  by  the  board  of  directors.  All  preferred  and  class  B  and  C
common stock will share ratably on an as-converted basis in such future dividends.

Senior notes.  Principal  payments  on  our  fixed-rate  senior  notes  of  $1.0  billion  and  $2.3  billion  are  due  in  September  2022  and  December  2022,
respectively, for which we have sufficient liquidity. See Note 7—Debt to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Litigation. During  December  2021,  we  deposited  $250  million  into  the  U.S.  litigation  escrow  account  to  address  claims  associated  with  the
interchange  multidistrict  litigation.  See Note  5—U.S.  and  Europe  Retrospective  Responsibility  Plans and Note  13—Legal  Matters to  our  unaudited
consolidated financial statements.

Closed acquisition.  On December 20, 2021, we acquired Currencycloud for a total  purchase consideration of $893 million (which includes the fair
value of our previously held equity interest in Currencycloud). See Note 2—Acquisitions to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Pending  acquisition. On  June  24,  2021,  we  entered  into  a  definitive  agreement  to  acquire  Tink  for  €1.8  billion,  inclusive  of  cash  and  retention
incentives. This acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions, including regulatory reviews and approvals.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-04, which provides optional
expedients and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions that reference the London Interbank Offered
Rate or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because of reference rate reform. Subsequently, the FASB also issued an amendment to this
standard.  The  amendments  in  the  ASU  are  effective  upon  issuance  through  December  31,  2022.  We  are  evaluating  the  effect  ASU  2020-04  and  its
subsequent amendment will have on our consolidated financial statements. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no significant changes to our market risks since September 30, 2021.
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ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of Visa Inc. at the end of the period covered by this report and, based on such evaluation, have concluded that the
disclosure controls and procedures of Visa Inc. were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of such date.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
our  first  quarter  of  fiscal  2022  that  have  materially  affected,  or  is  reasonably  likely  to  materially  affect,  the  Company’s  internal  control  over  financial
reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings.

Refer to Note 13—Legal Matters to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-Q for a description of the Company’s
current material legal proceedings. 

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.
For a discussion of the Company’s risk factors, see the information under the heading “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended September 30, 2021.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The table below presents our purchases of common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2021:

Period

Total Number  
of Shares 
Purchased

Average Purchase
Price  

per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares that

May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or Programs

(in millions, except per share data)
October 1 - 31, 2021 4 $ 220.89 4 $ 3,741 
November 1 - 30, 2021 9 $ 205.82 9 $ 1,905 
December 1 - 31, 2021 6 $ 208.72 6 $ 12,600 
Total 19 $ 210.05 19 

The figures in the table reflect transactions according to the trade dates. For purposes of our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-Q, the impact of
these repurchases is recorded according to the settlement dates.

See Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity to our unaudited consolidated financial statements for further discussion on our share repurchase programs.

(1) (1)

(1)
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ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None. 

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. Other Information.

None. 
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ITEM 6. Exhibits.

EXHIBIT INDEX

 

Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit 
Number Description of Documents Schedule/ Form File Number Exhibit Filing Date

10.1+ LIBOR Transition Amendment, dated October 18, 2021, by and
among Visa Inc., Visa International Service Association, Visa
U.S.A. Inc. and Visa Europe Limited, as borrowers, and Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent

10.2*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for the CEO for awards
granted after November 1, 2021

10.3*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Stock Option Award Agreement for the CEO for awards granted
after November 1, 2021

10.4*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Performance Share Award Agreement for the CEO for awards
granted after November 1, 2021

10.5*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for awards granted
after November 1, 2021

10.6*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Stock Option Award Agreement for awards granted after
November 1, 2021

10.7*+ Form of Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
Performance Share Award Agreement for awards granted after
November 1, 2021

10.8*+ Visa Inc. Executive Severance Plan, effective as of January 1,
2022

31.1+ Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive
Officer

31.2+ Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial
Officer

32.1+ Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive and Financial
Officer

101.INS+ Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does
not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags
are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH+ Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
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101.CAL+ Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF+ Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB+ Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE+ Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and
contained in Exhibit 101)

* Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
+ Filed or furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 

VISA INC.

Date: January 28, 2022 By:   /s/ Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.
Name:   Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.
Title:   Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: January 28, 2022 By: /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu
Name: Vasant M. Prabhu
Title: Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: January 28, 2022 By:   /s/ James H. Hoffmeister
Name:   James H. Hoffmeister
Title:   Global Corporate Controller, Chief Accounting Officer 

(Principal Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT 10.1
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EXHIBIT 10.1

LIBOR TRANSITION AMENDMENT

THIS LIBOR TRANSITION AMENDMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of October 18, 2021 (the “Amendment Effective Date”), is
entered into among Visa Inc., a Delaware corporation, Visa International Service Association, a Delaware corporation, Visa U.S.A. Inc., a
Delaware corporation, and Visa Europe Limited, a private company limited by shares incorporated under the laws of England and Wales
(collectively, the “Borrowers”), and BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the lenders from time to time party thereto (the “Lenders”), and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, have entered into that certain Amended and Restated Five Year Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of July 25, 2019 (as amended,
modified, extended, restated, replaced, or supplemented from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, certain loans and/or other extensions of credit (the “Loans”) under the Credit Agreement denominated in Sterling and, in
the case of Loans bearing interest at the Overnight Rate, Euros (collectively, the “Impacted Currencies”) incur or are permitted to incur interest
based on the London Interbank Offered Rate as administered by the ICE Benchmark Administration (“LIBOR”) in accordance with the terms
of the Credit Agreement;

WHEREAS, applicable parties under the Credit Agreement have determined in accordance with the Credit Agreement that, on and after
January 1, 2022, LIBOR for the Impacted Currencies should be replaced with a successor rate in accordance with the Credit Agreement and, in
connection therewith, the Administrative Agent has determined that certain conforming changes are necessary or advisable.

NOW, THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the  premises  and the  mutual  covenants  contained  herein,  and  for  other  good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms.  Capitalized  terms  used  herein  but  not  otherwise  defined  herein  (including  on  any  Appendix  attached  hereto)
shall have the meanings provided to such terms in the Credit Agreement, as amended by this Agreement.

2. Agreement.  Notwithstanding  any  provision  of  the  Credit  Agreement  or  any  other  document  related  thereto  (the  “Loan
Documents”) to the contrary, the parties hereto hereby agree that, on and after January 1, 2022, the terms set forth on Appendix A shall apply to
the Impacted Currencies. For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent provisions in the Credit Agreement apply to the Impacted Currencies and
such provisions are not specifically addressed by Appendix A, the provisions in the Credit Agreement shall continue to apply to the Impacted
Currencies.

3. Conflict  with Loan Documents.  In  the event  of  any conflict  between the terms of  this  Agreement  and the terms of  the Credit
Agreement or the other Loan Documents, the terms hereof shall control.

4. Conditions Precedent. This Agreement shall become effective, upon receipt by the Administrative Agent of counterparts of this
Agreement, properly executed by the Borrowers and the Administrative Agent.



5. Payment  of  Expenses.  The  Borrowers  agree  to  reimburse  the  Administrative  Agent  for  all  reasonable  fees,  charges  and
disbursements  of  the  Administrative  Agent  in  connection  with  the  preparation,  execution  and  delivery  of  this  Agreement,  including  all
reasonable  fees,  charges  and  disbursements  of  counsel  to  the  Administrative  Agent  (paid  directly  to  such  counsel  if  requested  by  the
Administrative Agent).

6. Miscellaneous.

(a) The  Loan  Documents,  and  the  obligations  of  the  Borrowers  under  the  Loan  Documents,  are  hereby  ratified  and
confirmed and shall remain in full force and effect according to their terms. This Agreement is a Loan Document.

(b) Each Borrower (i) acknowledges and consents to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, (ii) affirms all of its
obligations under the Loan Documents and (iii) agrees that this Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith do not
operate to reduce or discharge its obligations under the Loan Documents.

(c) Each Borrower represents and warrants that:

(i) The  execution,  delivery  and  performance  by  such  Borrower  of  this  Agreement  is  within  such  Borrower’s
corporate or other applicable organizational powers and has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate or other applicable
organizational action.

(ii) This  Agreement  has  been  duly  executed  and  delivered  by  such  Borrower,  and  constitutes  a  valid  and  binding
obligation of such Borrower, enforceable against it in accordance with the terms hereof, except as may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy,  insolvency or  similar  Laws affecting  the  enforcement  of  creditors’  rights  generally  and by  general  principles  of
equity.

(iii) The  execution  and  delivery  by  such  Borrower  of  this  Agreement  and  performance  by  such  Borrower  of  this
Agreement do not and will not violate (a) any Law, rule, regulation, order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree or award binding
on such  Borrower  or  any  of  its  Subsidiaries  that  would  reasonably  be  expected  to  have  a  Material  Adverse  Effect,  (b)  such
Borrower’s  articles  or  certificate  of  incorporation,  partnership  agreement,  certificate  of  partnership,  articles  or  certificate  of
organization, bylaws or operating or other similar governing document, as the case may be, or (c) the provisions of any material
indenture, instrument or agreement to which such Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or is subject, or by which it, or
its Property, is bound, or conflict with or constitute a default thereunder, or result in, or require, the creation or imposition of
any  Lien  on  the  Property  of  such  Borrower  or  any  of  its  Subsidiaries  pursuant  to  the  terms  of  any  such  material  indenture,
instrument or agreement, in each case, that would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(iv) Before  and  after  giving  effect  to  this  Agreement,  (A)  all  representations  and  warranties  of  such  Borrower  set
forth in the Loan Documents (other than Sections
5.5 and 5.7 of the Credit Agreement) are true and correct in all material respects (or, in the case of any such representation or
warranty already qualified as to materiality, in all respects) as of the Amendment Effective Date (except to the extent that such
representations  and  warranties  specifically  refer  to  an  earlier  date,  in  which  case  such  representation  or  warranty  shall  have
been true and correct in all material respects (or, in
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the case of any such representation or warranty already qualified as to materiality, in all respects) on and as of such earlier date),
and (B) no Event of Default exists.

(d) This  Agreement  may be in  the  form of  an electronic  record (in  “.pdf”  form or  otherwise)  and may be executed using
electronic signatures, which shall be considered as originals and shall have the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a paper
record.  This  Agreement  may  be  executed  in  as  many  counterparts  as  necessary  or  convenient,  including  both  paper  and  electronic
counterparts, but all such counterparts shall be one and the same Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the authorization under this
paragraph may include, without limitation, use or acceptance by the Administrative Agent of a manually signed Agreement which has
been converted into electronic form (such as scanned into “.pdf” format), or an electronically signed Agreement converted into another
format, for transmission, delivery and/or retention.

(e) Any  provision  of  this  Agreement  held  to  be  illegal,  invalid  or  unenforceable  in  any  jurisdiction,  shall,  as  to  such
jurisdiction,  be  ineffective  to  the  extent  of  such  illegality,  invalidity  or  unenforceability  without  affecting  the  legality,  validity  or
enforceability  of  the  remaining  provisions  hereof  and  the  illegality,  invalidity  or  unenforceability  of  a  particular  provision  in  a
particular jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

(f) The  terms  of  the  Credit  Agreement  with  respect  to  governing  law,  submission  to  jurisdiction,  waiver  of  venue  and
waiver of jury trial are incorporated herein by reference, mutatis mutandis, and the parties hereto agree to such terms.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Each of the parties hereto has caused a counterpart of this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first above written.

BORROWERS:    VISA INC.

By: /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu    
Name: Vasant M. Prabhu
Title: Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Colleen Ostrowski    
Name: Colleen Ostrowski
Title: Senior Vice President and Treasurer

VISA INTERNATIONAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu    
Name: Vasant M. Prabhu
Title: Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Colleen Ostrowski    
Name: Colleen Ostrowski
Title: Senior Vice President and Treasurer

VISA U.S.A. INC.

By: /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu    
Name: Vasant M. Prabhu
Title: Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Colleen Ostrowski    
Name: Colleen Ostrowski
Title: Senior Vice President and Treasurer

VISA EUROPE LIMITED

By: /s/ Charlotte Hogg    
Name: Charlotte Hogg
Title: Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Robert Livingston    
Name: Robert Livingston
Title: Chief Financial Officer

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT:    BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent

By: /s/ Anthea Del Bianco    
Name: Anthea Del Bianco
Title: Vice President



Appendix A

TERMS APPLICABLE TO ALTERNATIVE CURRENCY LOANS

1. Defined Terms. The following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

“Alternative Currency” means Sterling or Euros.

“Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate”  means,  for  any  day,  with  respect  to  any  extension  of  credit  under  the  Credit  Agreement
denominated in Sterling, the rate per annum equal to SONIA determined pursuant to the definition thereof plus the SONIA Adjustment;
provided,  that,  if  any  Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate  shall  be  less  than  zero,  such  rate  shall  be  deemed  zero  for  purposes  of  this
Agreement.  Any change in an Alternative Currency Daily Rate shall  be effective from and including the date of such change without
further notice.

“Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate  Advance”  means  an  Advance  that  bears  interest  at  a  rate  based  on  the  definition  of
“Alternative Currency Daily Rate.” All Alternative Currency Daily Rate Advances must be denominated in Sterling.

“Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate  Loan”  means  a  Loan  that  bears  interest  at  a  rate  based  on  the  definition  of  “Alternative
Currency Daily Rate.” All Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loans must be denominated in Sterling.

“Base Rate  Advance” means  a  Revolving Advance which,  except  as  otherwise  provided in  Section 2.14,  bears  interest  at  the
Base Rate. All Base Rate Advances shall be denominated in Dollars.

“Base Rate Loan” means a Loan which, except as otherwise provided in Section 2.14, bears interest at the Base Rate. All Base
Rate Loans shall be denominated in Dollars.

“Compensation Rate” means, for any day, (a) with respect to any amount denominated in Dollars, the greater of (i) the Federal
Funds Rate and (ii) an overnight rate determined by the Administrative Agent in accordance with banking industry rules on interbank
compensation,  (b)  with  respect  to  any  amount  denominated  in  Euro,  the  Daily  Floating  One  Month  Rate  and  (c)  with  respect  to  any
amount denominated in Sterling, SONIA.

“Conforming Changes”  means,  with  respect  to  the  use,  administration  of  or  any  conventions  associated  with  SONIA, or any
proposed  Successor  Rate  for  any  currency,  any  conforming  changes  to  the  definitions  of  “SONIA”,  “Interest  Period”,  timing  and
frequency of determining rates and making payments of interest and other technical, administrative or operational matters (including, for
the  avoidance  of  doubt,  the  definition  of  “Business  Day”,  timing  of  borrowing  requests  or  prepayment,  conversion  or  continuation
notices  and  length  of  lookback  periods)  as  may  be  appropriate,  in  good  faith  and  in  the  discretion  of  the  Administrative  Agent  in
consultation with the Borrowers, to reflect the adoption and implementation of such applicable rate(s) and to permit the administration
thereof  by  the  Administrative  Agent  in  a  manner  substantially  consistent  with  market  practice  for  such  currency  (or,  if  the
Administrative Agent determines in good faith that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible or
that  no  market  practice  for  the  administration  of  such  rate  for  such  currency  exists,  in  such  other  manner  of  administration  as  the
Administrative Agent determines in good faith is reasonably necessary in connection with the administration of this Agreement and any
other Loan Document).



“Currency  Reference  Rate”  means  any  of  the  Daily  Floating  One  Month  Rate,  the  Eurocurrency  Rate  or  the  Alternative
Currency Daily Rate.

“Eligible Currency” means, in respect of any Class, any currency other than Dollars (a) that is readily available, (b) that is freely
traded,  (c)  [reserved],  (d)  which  is  convertible  into  Dollars  in  the  international  interbank  market  and  (e)  as  to  which  an  Equivalent
Amount may be readily calculated. If, after the designation by the applicable Revolving Lenders of any currency as an Agreed Currency,
(x)  currency  control  or  other  exchange  regulations  are  imposed  in  the  country  in  which  such  currency  is  issued  with  the  result  that
different types of such currency are introduced, (y) such currency is, in the determination of the Administrative Agent, no longer readily
available or freely traded or (z) in the determination of the Administrative Agent, an Equivalent Amount of such currency is not readily
calculable, the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the applicable Revolving Lenders and Visa Inc., and such currency shall no
longer  be  an  Agreed  Currency  until  such  time  as  all  applicable  Revolving  Lenders  agree  to  reinstate  such  currency  as  an  Agreed
Currency  and  promptly,  but  in  any  event  within  five  Business  Days  of  receipt  of  such  notice  from  the  Administrative  Agent,  the
applicable  Borrower  shall  repay  all  Loans  in  such  affected  currency  or  convert  such  Loans  into  Loans  in  Dollars  or  another  Agreed
Currency, subject to the other terms set forth in Article II.

“Interest Payment Date” means, as to any Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan, the last day of each calendar month and the
applicable maturity date set forth in the Credit Agreement.

“Interest Period” means, with respect to a Eurocurrency Rate Advance denominated in any Agreed Currency, a period of one,
three  or  six  months,  provided  that  such  Interest  Periods  shall  be  available  only  if  quotations  for  such  Interest  Periods  are  at  the  time
available  as  provided  herein)  commencing  on  a  Business  Day selected  by  the  applicable  Borrower  pursuant  to  this  Agreement.  Such
Interest  Period  shall  end  on  the  day  which  corresponds  numerically  to  such  date  one,  three  or  six  months  thereafter,  as  applicable;
provided that if there is no such numerically corresponding day in such next, third or sixth succeeding month, as applicable, such Interest
Period  shall  end  on  the  last  Business  Day  of  such  next,  third  or  sixth  succeeding  month,  as  applicable.  If  an  Interest  Period  would
otherwise end on a day which is not a Business Day, such Interest Period shall end on the next succeeding Business Day; provided that if
said next succeeding Business Day falls in a new calendar month, such Interest Period shall end on the immediately preceding Business
Day.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  no  Borrower  may  select  any  Interest  Period  for  a  Revolving  Loan  that  extends  beyond  the
scheduled Termination Date.

“Overnight Rate” means, for each Tranche B Same Day Multi-Currency Advance and each Swing Loan denominated in Euros,
the rate per annum determined as of the date such Tranche B Same Day Multi-Currency Advance or Swing Loan is made equal to the
Euro Short Term Rate (“€STR”) as administered by European Central Bank (or any other person which takes over the administration of
that rate, the “€STR Administrator”) displayed on the European Central Bank’s website, currently at http://www.ecb.europa.eu, or any
successor source for €STR identified as such by the €STR Administrator from time to time on the Business Day preceding the date of
determination; provided, that if the Overnight Rate is less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement.
If on any day €STR has not been published on the €STR Administrator’s Website, then €STR for such day will be €STR as published in
respect of the first preceding Business Day for which €STR was published on the €STR Administrator’s Website.



“Same Day Rate” means, for any day (a) with respect to each Same Day Dollar Advance, the rate per annum equal to the greater
of (i) the Federal Funds Rate and (ii) the Daily Floating One Month Rate, (b) with respect to each Tranche B Same Day Multi-Currency
Advance  and  each  Swing  Loan  denominated  in  Euros,  the  rate  per  annum equal  to  the  Overnight  Rate  and  (c)  with  respect  to  each
Tranche  B  Same  Day  Multi-Currency  Advance  and  each  Swing  Loan  denominated  in  Sterling,  the  rate  per  annum  equal  to  the
Alternative Currency Daily Rate.

“SONIA”  means,  with  respect  to  any  applicable  determination  date,  the  Sterling  Overnight  Index  Average  Reference  Rate
published on the fifth Business Day preceding such date on the applicable Reuters screen page (or such other commercially available
source providing such quotations as may be designated by the Administrative Agent from time to time); provided however that if such
determination date is not a Business Day, SONIA means such rate that applied on the first Business Day immediately prior thereto.

“SONIA Adjustment” means, with respect to SONIA, 0.0326% per annum.

“Successor Rate” means the Reference Rate Successor Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement.

“Type”  means,  with  respect  to  any  Revolving  Advance,  its  nature  as  a  Base  Rate  Advance,  a  Same  Day  Dollar  Advance,  a
Eurocurrency Rate Advance, Alternative Currency Daily Rate Advance or, in the case of Tranche B Advance, a Tranche B Same Day
Multi- Currency Advance.

2. Terms Applicable to Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loans. From and after January 1, 2022, the parties hereto agree as follows:

(a) Alternative Currencies. (i) No Alternative Currency shall be considered a currency for which there is a published LIBOR
rate,  and  (ii)  any  request  for  a  new Loan  denominated  in  Sterling,  or  to  continue  an  existing  Loan  denominated  in  Sterling,  shall  be
deemed to be a request for a new Loan bearing interest at the Alternative Currency Daily Rate; provided, that, to the extent any Loan
denominated  in  Sterling  bearing  interest  at  the  Eurocurrency  Rate  is  outstanding  on  the  Amendment  Effective  Date,  such  Loan  shall
continue to bear interest at the Eurocurrency Rate until the end of the current Interest Period or payment period applicable to such Loan
unless, in the case of a Loan that bears interest at a daily floating rate, such daily floating rate is no longer representative or being made
available,  in  which  case  such  Loan  shall  bear  interest  at  the  applicable  Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate  immediately  upon  the
effectiveness of this Agreement.

(b) References to Eurocurrency Rate and Eurocurrency Rate Loans in the Credit Agreement and Loan Documents.

(i) References to the Eurocurrency Rate and Eurocurrency Rate Loans in provisions of the Credit Agreement and the
other  Loan  Documents  that  are  not  specifically  addressed  herein  (other  than  the  definitions  of  Eurocurrency  Rate  and
Eurocurrency Rate Loan) shall be deemed to include Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loans.

(ii) For  purposes  of  any  requirement  for  a  Borrower  to  compensate  Lenders  for  losses  in  the  Credit  Agreement
resulting from any continuation, conversion, payment or prepayment of any Alternative Currency Loan on a day other than the
last day of any



Interest Period (as defined in the Credit Agreement), references to the Interest Period (as defined in the Credit Agreement) shall
be deemed to include any relevant interest payment date or payment period for an Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan.

(c) Interest Rates. The Administrative Agent does not warrant, nor accept responsibility, nor shall the Administrative
Agent have any liability with respect to the administration, submission or any other matter related to the rates in the definition
of “Alternative Currency Daily Rate” or with respect to any rate (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the selection of such rate and
any related spread or other adjustment) that is an alternative or replacement for or successor to any such rate or the effect of any of the
foregoing, or of any Conforming Changes.

(d) Borrowings and Continuations of Alternative Currency Loans. In addition to any other borrowing requirements set forth
in the Credit Agreement:

(i) Conforming Changes.  With respect  to  any Alternative Currency Daily Rate the Administrative Agent  will  have
the  right  to  make Conforming Changes  from time to  time and,  notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary  herein,  in  the  Credit
Agreement  or  in  any other  Loan Document,  any amendments  implementing such Conforming Changes  will  become effective
without any further action or consent of any other party to this Agreement, the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document;
provided,  that,  with  respect  to  any  such  amendment  effected,  the  Administrative  Agent  shall  post  each  such  amendment
implementing such Conforming Changes to the Borrowers and the Lenders reasonably promptly after such amendment becomes
effective.

(ii) Revolving Advance Borrowing Notice. For purposes of a borrowing of Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loans,
the Borrowers shall use the Revolving Advance Borrowing Notice attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(e) Interest.

(i) Subject to the provisions of the Credit Agreement with respect to default interest, each Alternative Currency Daily
Rate Loan shall bear interest on the outstanding principal amount thereof from the applicable borrowing date at a rate per annum
equal to the Alternative Currency Daily Rate plus the Applicable Margin.

(ii) Interest  on  each  Alternative  Currency  Daily  Rate  Loan  shall  be  due  and  payable  in  arrears  on  each  Interest
Payment Date applicable thereto and at such other times as may be specified the Credit Agreement.

(f) Computations.  All  computations of  interest  for  Alternative Currency Daily  Rate  Loans shall  be made on the basis  of  a
year of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and actual days elapsed, or, in the case of interest in respect of Alternative Currency Daily
Rate Loans as to which market practice differs from the foregoing, in accordance with such market practice. Interest shall accrue on each
Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan for the day on which the Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan is made, and shall not accrue on
an Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan, or any portion thereof, for the day on which the Alternative Currency Loan or such portion is
paid, provided that any Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loan that is repaid on the same day on which it is made shall, subject to the
terms  of  the  Credit  Agreement,  bear  interest  for  one  day.  Each  determination  by  the  Administrative  Agent  of  an  interest  rate  or  fee
hereunder shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

(g)       Successor Rates.  The provisions  in  the  Credit  Agreement  addressing the  replacement  of  a  current  Successor  Rate  for  a
currency shall be deemed to apply to Alternative Currency Daily Rate Loans and SONIA, as applicable, and the related defined terms
shall be deemed to include Sterling and SONIA, as applicable.

EXHIBIT 10.2



EXHIBIT 10.2

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of the Grant Date (the “Grant Date”) set forth in the
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Grant Notice”), is made between Visa Inc. (the “Company”) and the Participant
set forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.

1.     Definitions.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning set forth in the Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “Plan”).

2.     Grant of the Restricted Stock Units.

Subject  to  the  provisions  of  this  Agreement  and  the  provisions  of  the  Plan,  the  Company  hereby  grants  to  the  Participant,
pursuant to the Plan, the number of Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Grant Notice (the “Restricted Stock Units”).

3.     Dividend Equivalents.

Each Restricted Stock Unit shall entitle the Participant to Dividend Equivalents with respect to regular cash dividends that would
otherwise  be  paid  on  the  Share  underlying  such  Restricted  Stock  Unit  during  the  period  from  the  Grant  Date  to  the  date  such  Share  is  delivered  in
accordance with  Section 5.  Any such Dividend Equivalent  shall  be paid  to  the Participant  at  (or  within  thirty  (30)  days following)  the time such related
dividends are paid to holders of Shares.

4.     Period of Restriction; Termination; Other Events.

The  Period  of  Restriction  with  respect  to  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  shall  be  as  set  forth  in  the  Grant  Notice  (the  “Period  of
Restriction”). The Participant acknowledges that an important and material purpose of this Agreement, as a matter of the internal affairs of the Company,
is to ensure that Participant’s interests and those of the Company remain aligned. This is achieved by Participant agreeing to avoid Detrimental Activity
during the Period of Restriction and for a period of twelve (12) months after the later of Participant’s (i) Termination or (ii) receipt of cash payment(s) or
Shares hereunder. Avoidance of Detrimental Activity in accordance with the terms of this Agreement is understood to be precondition to entitlement and
retention  of  any  award  under  this  Agreement.  The  Participant  acknowledges  that  prior  to  the  expiration  of  the  applicable  portion  of  the  Period  of
Restriction, the Restricted Stock Units may not be sold, transferred,  pledged, assigned, encumbered, alienated, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of
(whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garnishment or any other legal or equitable proceedings (including
bankruptcy)),  other  than  by  will  or  the  laws  of  descent  and  distribution.  Upon  the  expiration  of  the  applicable  portion  of  the  Period  of  Restriction,  the
restrictions  set  forth  in  this  Agreement  with  respect  to  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  theretofore  subject  to  such  expired  Period  of  Restriction  shall  lapse,
except as may be provided in accordance with Section 11 hereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the expiration of the applicable portion of the
Period of  Restriction,  the Restricted Stock Units  may be transferred to  the Participant’s  former  spouse pursuant  to  a domestic  relations order  which is
approved by the Company, in accordance with any procedures, and subject to any limitations, as the Company may
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prescribe and subject to applicable law. Subject to the terms of the Plan and the remaining provisions of this Section 4, all Restricted Stock Units for which
the Period of Restriction had not lapsed prior to the date of the Participant’s Termination shall be immediately forfeited. Notwithstanding the foregoing to
the contrary:

(a)     Death  and  Disability.  Upon  Participant’s  death  or  Disability  (as  defined  below),  then  the  Period  of  Restriction  shall
immediately lapse as to the full number of Restricted Stock Units.

(b)    Retirement. Upon Termination of the Participant at or after attainment of age sixty and four years of completed service and
six months of service from the date of grant (“Retirement”), then the Period of Restriction for any Restricted Stock Units that remain unvested as of the
date of such Termination shall continue to lapse in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in the Grant Notice.

(c)    Change of Control. If a Change of Control occurs, and, at any time prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of the Change of
Control, the Participant incurs a Termination, either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below), or by the Participant
for  Good  Reason  (as  defined  below),  then  the  Period  of  Restriction  shall  immediately  lapse  as  to  the  full  number  of  Restricted  Stock  Units.  For  the
avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(b) of the Plan shall not apply to the Restricted Stock Units to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(c).

(d)     Termination  by  the  Company  without  Cause.  Upon  Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the  Company  or  a  Subsidiary  or
Affiliate  without  Cause  (other  than  a  Termination  under  circumstances  described  in  paragraph  (b),  (c)  or  (e)  of  this  Section  4  or  other  than  an  event
described in paragraph (a) of this Section 4), the Period of Restriction will lapse as to a portion of the Restricted Stock Units, determined by multiplying the
number of Restricted Stock Units subject to the Award by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days you were employed (including the date
of such Termination) during the full Period of Restriction and the denominator of which the number of days in the full Period of Restriction, reduced by the
number of Restricted Stock Units that have already vested by their terms prior to the date of such Termination, which Restricted Stock Units shall be paid
to you in cash based on the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of your Termination, (i) 50% on the date of your Termination and (ii) 50% on the first
anniversary of the date of your Termination. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Restricted Stock Units to the
extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(d) and (ii) if a Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 at the time
the Participant otherwise would experience a Termination pursuant to this paragraph (d) of this Section 4, the Participant’s Termination shall be deemed a
Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (b) with respect to the Restricted Stock Units shall prevail and be given effect. In the event the Participant is
eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise dies or becomes Disabled pursuant to paragraph
(a) of this Section 4 or at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a Termination by the Company for Cause or pursuant to paragraph (c) of this
Section 4, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and paragraph (a) or (c) or such Termination for Cause, as applicable, shall prevail and be
given effect.

(e)    Other Terminations; Other Events.  Upon Termination of the Participant due to any reason other than termination without
Cause prior  to  a  Change of  Control,  Retirement,  termination  without  Cause following a Change of  Control  or  termination  for  Good Reason following a
Change of Control or other than in the event of Participant’s death or Disability, then all Restricted Stock
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Units for which the Period of Restriction had not lapsed prior to the date of such Termination shall be immediately forfeited.

(f)    Detrimental Activity. If, at any time during Participant’s employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within
the later of (i)  twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Termination or (ii)  twelve (12) months after Participant is delivered Shares or cash payment(s)
pursuant  to  this  Award,  Participant  engages  in  any  Detrimental  Activity,  then  the  Company  may  rescind  any  portion  of  the  Award  distributed  to  the
Participant  within  the  twenty-four  (24)  month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity  and/or  pursue  any  other
remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, Participant’s then outstanding Restricted Stock Units will  be cancelled for no
additional consideration by the Company and Participant will  have no rights in same, and Participant shall immediately repay or return to the Company
any cash payment(s)  and Shares that  have been paid or  issued to Participant  by the Company pursuant  to this  Agreement  within the twenty-four  (24)
month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity.  If  any  such  Shares  are  no  longer  held  by  Participant  then
Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time they were sold or otherwise conveyed to another party
by Participant. This Section 4(f) shall be construed to supplement, and not contradict, replace or eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under
Section 14, or otherwise available under applicable law.

5.     Payment of Restricted Stock Units.

Except as set forth in Section 4(d), as soon as reasonably practicable following the lapse of the applicable portion of the Period
of Restriction, but in no event later than 90 days following the date of such lapse, the Company shall cause to be delivered to the Participant (a) the full
number of Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units as to which such portion of the Period of Restriction has so lapsed (a “Share Settlement”), (b) a
cash payment determined by reference to the then-current Fair Market Value of such Shares or (c) a combination of Shares and such cash payment as
the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine, subject to satisfaction of applicable Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined in and in accordance
with Section 6 of this Agreement); provided, however,  that  if  the Participant’s  Termination occurs under any circumstances other  than death,  any such
delivery of Shares or cash payment due to lapse of the Period of Restriction upon such Termination shall be delayed for six months from the date of such
Participant’s  Termination  if  the  Participant  is  a  “specified  employee”  (as  such  term  is  defined  in  Section  409A(a)(2)(B)(i)  of  the  Code)  determined  in
accordance with the methodology established by the Company as in effect on the date of such Termination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been in the six-
month  period  preceding  an  issuance of  Shares  pursuant  hereto,  an  “officer”  of  the  Company as  defined  in  Rule  16a-1(f)  promulgated  pursuant  to  the
Exchange Act (or any successor rule)(a “Section 16 Officer”), then payment of the Restricted Stock Units to such Participant may only be in the form of a
Share  Settlement,  unless  otherwise  elected  by  the  Participant  and  permitted  by  the  Committee  or  the  Board,  or  unless  otherwise  determined  by  the
Committee or the Board.

6.     Taxes and Withholdings.

Upon the expiration of the applicable portion of the Period of Restriction, or such earlier date on which the value of any Restricted
Stock  Units  otherwise  becomes  includible  in  the  Participant’s  gross  income  for  income  tax  purposes  or  on  which  taxes  are  otherwise  payable,  the
Participant authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined below) with respect to such Restricted Stock Units to be satisfied by the Company by
any means to the extent permitted by the Plan and
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applicable law,  including but  not  limited to  the following:  (1)  through a sale  arranged by the Company through a securities  broker  (on the Participant's
behalf pursuant to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the cash proceeds of such sale to the Company,
under which the Company is authorized and directed by the Participant to make payment from the cash proceeds of the sale directly to the appropriate
taxing  authorities  in  an  amount  equal  to  the  Tax  Withholding  Obligations;  (2)  withholding  Shares  or  cash  otherwise  deliverable  or  payable  to  the
Participant pursuant to the Restricted Stock Unit award; provided, however,  that the amount of any Shares so withheld shall  not exceed the sum of all
statutory maximum rates in the Participant’s applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Restricted Stock Units, as determined by the Company, subject to
any limitations as the Committee may prescribe and subject to applicable law, based on the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the payment date (“Net
Settlement”); or (3) withholding the Tax Withholding Obligations from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation payable to the Participant by the
Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate, if determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in
the discretion of the Committee, provide for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements in accordance with Article XVII of
the Plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been in the six-
month  period  preceding  an  issuance  of  Shares  pursuant  hereto,  a  Section  16  Officer,  then  the  Company  shall  use  Net  Settlement  to  satisfy  such
Participant’s Tax Withholding Obligations, unless otherwise determined by the Committee or the Board.

Tax Withholding Obligations means the minimum tax or social insurance obligations required by law to be withheld in respect of
the Restricted Stock Units, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in
the case of a Participant who is a Section 16 Officer, that such Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).

Regardless of any action the Company, an Affiliate and /or a Subsidiary takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including
social insurance contribution obligations, if any), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s
responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)  makes  any
representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units, including the
grant  or vesting thereof,  the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt  of  any dividends; or (b)  commits to structure the terms of  the Restricted Stock
Units or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such tax.

7.     No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares.

Neither  the Participant  nor  any other  person shall  become the beneficial  owner  of  the Shares underlying  the Restricted  Stock
Units, nor have any rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until and after such Shares, if any, have been
actually issued to the Participant and transferred on the books and records of the Company or its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement.

8.     No Right to Continued Employment.

Neither  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  nor  any  terms  contained  in  this  Agreement  shall  confer  upon  the  Participant  any  rights  or
claims except in accordance with the express provisions of
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the Plan and this Agreement, and shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the employment or service of the Company or
any Subsidiary  or  Affiliate  for  any period  or  in  any particular  position  or  at  any particular  rate  of  compensation,  nor  restrict  in  any way the right  of  the
Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate, which right is hereby expressly reserved, to modify or terminate the Participant’s employment or service at any
time  for  any  reason.  The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  any  right  to  lapse  of  the  Period  of  Restriction  is  earned  only  by  continuing  as  an
employee of  the Company or  a  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate  at  the will  of  the Company or  such Subsidiary  or  Affiliate,  or  satisfaction  of  any other  applicable
terms  and  conditions  contained  in  the  Plan  and  this  Agreement,  and  not  through  the  act  of  being  hired  or  being  granted  the  Restricted  Stock  Units
hereunder.

9.     The Plan.

By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant shall be
conclusively deemed to have indicated the Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the  Plan.  Subject  to  Section  4(c)  and  4(d)  of  this  Agreement,  in  the  event  of  any  conflict  between the  provisions  of  the  Plan  and this  Agreement,  the
provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions
and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by
the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can be found on the Company’s Human Resources intranet site. A paper copy of the
Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written request to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City,
California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator.

10.    Certain Defined Terms.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a)    “Cause” means: (i) engaging in (A) willful or gross misconduct or (B) willful or gross neglect; (ii) the commission of a felony
or a crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate;
(iii) fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement; (iv) a material breach of the Participant’s employment agreement or offer letter (if any) with the Company, a
Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (v) acts or omissions constituting a material failure to perform substantially and adequately the duties assigned to the Participant
(other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); provided, however, that following a Change of Control, any such
failure will only serve as the basis for a Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act detrimental to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b)     “Good Reason” means: (i) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity or annual long-
term incentive award opportunity, as applicable, in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control; (ii) the assignment to the Participant of any duties
inconsistent with the Participant’s positions (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities from those in
effect immediately prior to such Change of Control or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in any of the foregoing from those in effect
immediately prior to such Change of Control, or (iii) the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate requires the Participant
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to  change the Participant’s  principal  location of  work to a location that  is  in  excess of  fifty  (50)  miles from the location thereof  immediately  prior  to  the
Change of Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Termination by a Participant for Good Reason shall not have occurred unless (i) the Participant gives
written notice to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, as applicable, of Termination within thirty (30) days after the Participant first becomes aware of
the  occurrence  of  the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  specifying  in  reasonable  detail  the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  (ii)  the
Company,  the  Subsidiary  or  the  Affiliate,  as  the  case  may  be,  has  failed  within  thirty  (30)  days  after  receipt  of  such  notice  to  cure  the  circumstances
constituting Good Reason, and (iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was given.

(c)     “Detrimental Activity” means: (i) providing services or material assistance to any payments business that is in competition
with  the  payments  business  of  the  Company  in  the  United  States  or  any  other  country  where  the  Company  does  business;  (ii)  soliciting  or  knowingly
inducing  a  Company  customer  that  Participant  had  material  dealings  with  or  was  provided  confidential  information  about  while  employed  with  the
Company to cease or reduce doing business with the Company or to divert a business opportunity related to the Company’s line of business to another
party;  or,  (iii)  soliciting or  knowingly  inducing an employee of  the Company that  Participant  gained knowledge of  while employed with  the Company to
leave the employment of the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of the Company
in the ordinary course of Participant’s employment duties for the Company, (ii) employment with an independently operated subsidiary, division, or unit of
a  diversified  corporation  so long as the independently  operated business unit  at  issue is  truly  independent  and does not  compete  in  any way with  the
Company; or, (iii) holding a passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded company.

11.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a)     The  Restricted  Stock  Units  and  the  obligation  of  the  Company  to  deliver  Shares  or  cash  payments  hereunder  shall  be
subject  in  all  respects  to  (i)  all  applicable  federal  and  state  laws,  rules  and  regulations;  and  (ii)  any  registration,  qualification,  approvals  or  other
requirements  imposed  by  any  government  or  regulatory  agency  or  body  which  the  Committee  shall,  in  its  discretion,  determine  to  be  necessary  or
applicable. Moreover, the Company shall not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing
so would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon
any  national  securities  exchange  or  under  any  state  or  federal  law,  or  the  consent  or  approval  of  any  governmental  regulatory  body,  is  necessary  or
desirable,  the  Company  shall  not  be  required  to  deliver  any  certificates  for  Shares  to  the  Participant  or  any  other  person  pursuant  to  this  Agreement
unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions
not acceptable to the Company.

(b)    It  is intended that any Shares received upon expiration of the Period of Restriction shall  have been registered under the
Securities Act. If the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant
may not sell the Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a
legend setting forth  such restrictions  on the disposition or  transfer  of  the Shares as the Company deems appropriate  to  comply  with  federal  and state
securities laws.
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(c)    If at any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is no current prospectus in effect under
the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant
to  this  Agreement,  an  agreement  (in  such  form as  the  Company  may  specify)  in  which  the  Participant  represents  and  warrants  that  the  Participant  is
purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale
or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant
to either (i) a registration statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with
regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration  requirements  of  the  Securities  Act,  but  in  claiming  such
exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.

12.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process.

Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and deemed given (a) three days after being
deposited  in  the  U.S.  mail,  first  class,  postage  prepaid,  certified  receipt  requested,  or  (b)  when  delivered  by  a  nationally  recognized  overnight  courier
which  provides  confirmation  of  delivery.  All  notices  by  the  Participant  or  the  Participant’s  successors  or  permitted  assigns  shall  be  addressed  to  the
Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City, California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administration, or such other address as the Company may from
time to time specify, and any notice that involves service of legal process on the Company shall be directed to Company’s Registered Agent for purposes
of service of legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s last known
address in the Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in writing and in accordance with this Section
12.

13.    Other Plans.

The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from this Restricted Stock Units award shall  not affect the Participant’s
participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

14.    Clawback Policy.

Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement  to  the  contrary,  any  cash  incentive  compensation  received  by  the
Participant, Restricted Stock Unit granted, Shares issued and/or amount paid hereunder, and/or any amount received with respect to any sale of any such
Shares,  shall  be  subject  to  potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company’s
Clawback  Policy,  as  it  may  be  amended  from  time  to  time  (the  “Policy”).  The  Participant  agrees  and  consents  to  the  Company’s  application,
implementation and enforcement of (a) the Policy or any similar policy established by the Company that may apply to the Participant and (b) any provision
of applicable law relating to cancellation,  rescission,  payback or recoupment of  compensation,  and expressly agrees that  the Company may take such
actions as are necessary to effectuate the Policy, any similar policy (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent or action
being required by the Participant. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of such policy
shall prevail.
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15.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a)      the  Plan is  established voluntarily  by  the Company,  it  is  discretionary  in  nature  and it  may be modified,  suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b)     the grant of Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the
Participant or any other person to receive future grants, or benefits;

(c)     all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d)      the  Restricted  Stock  Unit  grants  do  not  constitute  compensation  of  any  kind  for  services  of  any  kind  rendered  to  the
Company, its Affiliates and /or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;

(e)      no  provision  of  this  Agreement  or  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  granted  hereunder  shall  give  the  Participant  any  right  to
continue in the employ of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary, create any inference as to the length of employment of the Participant, affect the
right of an employer to terminate the employment of the Participant, with or without Cause, or give the Participant any right to participate in any employee
welfare or benefit plan or other program (other than the Plan);

(f)     if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant
shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the
loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g)      notwithstanding  any  terms  or  conditions  of  the  Plan  to  the  contrary,  in  the  event  of  termination  of  the  Participant’s
employment for any reason other than a Termination pursuant to which accelerated or continued lapsing of restrictions occurs as provided in Section 4
hereof  or  pursuant  to  which  such  termination  of  employment  is  deemed  not  to  be  a  Termination  in  the  Committee’s  discretion  under  the  Plan,  the
Participant’s right to receive Restricted Stock Units and vest in Restricted Stock Units under the Plan, if any, will terminate immediately on the date that
the Participant is no longer actively employed by the Company, any Affiliate or any Subsidiary, and, in any case, will not be extended by any notice period
mandated under local law (e.g., active employment would not include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h)     notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units granted hereunder shall be subject to any
special terms and conditions for Participant’s country set forth in the Addendum attached hereto as Exhibit A. Moreover, if Participant relocates to one of
the countries included in the Addendum, the special terms and conditions for such country will apply to Participant, to the extent the Company determines
that  the application of  such terms and conditions is  necessary or  advisable for  legal  or  administrative reasons.  The Addendum constitutes  part  of  this
Agreement.
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16.    Data Protection.

(a)     The  Participant  hereby  explicitly  and  unambiguously  consents  to  the  collection,  use  and  transfer,  in  electronic  or  other
form,  of  Participant’s  personal  data  as described in  this  document  by  and among,  as  applicable,  the  Company,  its  Affiliates  and its  Subsidiaries  (“the
Group”) for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b)      The  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  Group  holds  certain  personal  information  about  Participant,  including,  but  not
limited  to,  Participant’s  name,  home  address  and  telephone  number,  date  of  birth,  social  insurance  number  or  other  identification  number,  salary,
nationality,  job  title,  details  of  all  Options  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of  implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c)    The Participant acknowledges and agrees that Data may be transferred to any third parties assisting in the implementation,
administration  and management  of  the Plan,  that  these recipients  may be located in the Participant’s  country  of  residence or  elsewhere,  and that  the
recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the Company
may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor, and to the
Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider. The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and
transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing,  administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan,
including  any  requisite  transfer  of  such  Data  as  may  be  required  to  a  broker  or  other  third  party  with  whom the  Participant  may  elect  to  deposit  any
Shares acquired.

(d)     The Participant  understands  that  Data  will  be  held  only  as  long as  is  necessary  to  implement,  administer  and manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by
contacting  in  writing  Participant’s  local  human  resources  representative.  The  Participant  understands,  however,  that  refusing  or  withdrawing  the
Participant’s consent will affect the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the Participant will not be able to participate in
the  Plan or  realize  benefits  (if  any)  from the  Restricted  Stock  Units.  The Participant  should  also  refer  to  the  Visa  Inc.  Global  Privacy  Policy  (which  is
available to Participant separately and may be updated from time to time) for more information regarding the collection, use, storage, and transfer of the
Participant’s Data.

17.    Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction.

    In order to maintain uniformity in the interpretation of this Agreement across the Company’s operations in many different locations, the
parties have expressly agreed that this Agreement shall  be governed by and enforced under the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to any
contrary  principles  of  conflict  of  laws  of  Delaware  or  another  state.  The  parties  further  agree  that  any  legal  action,  suit  or  proceeding  arising  from or
related to this Agreement shall be instituted exclusively in a state or federal court of competent jurisdiction located in Delaware. The parties consent to
the  personal  jurisdiction  of  such  Delaware  courts  over  them,  waive  all  objections  to  the  contrary,  and  waive  any  and  all  objections  to  the  exclusive
location of legal proceedings in Delaware (including, without limitation, any objection based on cost, convenience or location of relevant persons). The
parties further agree that
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there shall be a conclusive presumption that this Agreement has a significant, material and reasonable relationship to the State of Delaware.

18.    Acceptance.

    The Participant must accept or reject  Participant’s award under this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days after the Grant Date
(“Acceptance Period”).  If  the Participant  accepts the award within the Acceptance Period, Participant  will  be deemed to have agreed to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the Addendum with Additional Country Specific Terms and Conditions
attached  as  Exhibit  A,  all  of  which  are  made  part  of  this  Agreement.  If  the  Participant  fails  to  accept  the  award  under  this  Agreement  during  the
Acceptance Period, such award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such award.

EXHIBIT 10.3
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EXHIBIT 10.3

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Stock Option Award Agreement

This  Stock  Option  Award  Agreement  (this  “Agreement”),  dated  as  of  the  Grant  Date  set  forth  in  the  Notice  of  Option  Grant
attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Grant Notice”),  is made between Visa Inc. (the “Company”) and the Participant set forth in the Grant Notice. The
Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.

1.     Grant of the Option.

(a)    Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “Plan”),  the Company hereby grants  to  the Participant,  pursuant  to  the Plan,  the right  and option (the “Option”)  to  purchase all  or  any part  of  the
number of  shares of  Class A Common Stock of  the Company (“Shares”)  set  forth in the Grant  Notice at  the Option Price per Share and on the other
terms as set forth in the Grant Notice.

(b)    The Option is intended to be a Nonqualified Stock Option.

2.     Exercisability of the Option.

The  Option  shall  become  exercisable  in  accordance  with  the  exercisability  schedule  and  other  terms  set  forth  in  the  Grant
Notice.  The  Option  shall  terminate  on  the  tenth  anniversary  of  the  Grant  Date  stated  in  the  Grant  Notice  (the  “Expiration  Date”),  subject  to  earlier
termination as set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.

3.     Method of Exercise of the Option.

(a)    The Participant may exercise the Option, to the extent then exercisable, by delivering a written or electronic notice to the
Stock Plan Administrator in a form satisfactory to the Committee specifying the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised and
payment to the Company of the aggregate Option Price in accordance with Section 3(b).

(b)    At the time the Participant exercises the Option, the Participant shall pay the Option Price of the Shares as to which the
Option is being exercised to the Company, subject to such terms, conditions and limitations as the Committee may prescribe: (i) in cash or its equivalent;
(ii) by tendering (either by actual delivery or attestation) unencumbered Shares previously acquired by the Participant exercising such Option having an
aggregate  Fair  Market  Value  at  the  time  of  exercise  equal  to  the  total  Option  Price;  (iii)  a  cashless  (broker-assisted)  exercise  that  complies  with  all
applicable laws; (iv) withholding of Shares otherwise deliverable to the Participant pursuant to the Option having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the
time of exercise equal to the total Option Price; or (v) by a combination of the consideration provided for in the foregoing clauses (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv).

(c)     The  Company’s  obligation  to  deliver  the  Shares  to  which  the  Participant  is  entitled  upon  exercise  of  the  Option  is
conditioned on the Participant’s satisfaction in full to the Company of the aggregate Option Price of those Shares and the required tax withholding related
to such exercise.
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4.     Termination; Other Events.

Except  as  provided  below,  the  Option  shall  terminate  and  be  forfeited  upon  Termination  of  the  Participant,  and  upon  such
termination and forfeiture of the Option; no Shares may thereafter be purchased under the Option. The Participant acknowledges that an important and
material purpose of this Agreement, as a matter of the internal affairs of the Company, is to ensure that Participant’s interests and those of the Company
remain aligned. This is achieved by Participant agreeing to avoid Detrimental Activity during the life of the Option and for a period of twelve (12) months
after the later of Participant’s (i) Termination or (ii) receipt of cash payment(s) or Shares hereunder. Avoidance of Detrimental Activity in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement is understood to be a precondition to entitlement and retention of any award under this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything
contained in this Agreement, the Option shall not be exercised after the Expiration Date.

(a)     Termination  by  the  Participant. Upon  Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the  Participant  for  any  reason  (other  than  a
Termination  under  circumstances  described  in  paragraph  (c),  (d),  (e)  or  (f)  of  this  Section  4  or  other  than  an event  described  in  paragraph  (b)  of  this
Section 4), the Option, to the extent exercisable as of the date of such Termination, shall thereafter be exercisable for a period of 90 days from the date of
such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier. Any portion of the Option that is not exercisable as of the date of such Termination shall be immediately
forfeited on such date. For the avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this
Section 4(a).

(b)     Death  and  Disability. In  the  event  of  the  Participant’s  death  or  Disability,  the  Option  shall  thereafter  be  immediately
exercisable  for  all  or  any  portion  of  the  full  number  of  Shares  available  for  purchase  under  the  Option  and  shall  remain  exercisable  until  the  third
anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier.

(c)    Retirement. Upon Termination of the Participant at or after attainment of age sixty and four years of completed service and
six months of service from the date of grant (“Retirement”), then the Shares subject to the Option shall continue to vest according to the vesting schedule
set forth in the Grant Notice and the number of Shares of the award that have vested or become vested during this period will be available for purchase
under the Option until the third anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier.

(d)     Termination for  Cause. Upon Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the Company,  a  Subsidiary  or  an Affiliate  for  Cause (as
defined below), any portion of the Option, whether vested or unvested, that has not been exercised shall immediately terminate.

(e)    Termination  by  the  Company  without  Cause . Upon  Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the  Company  or  a  Subsidiary  or
Affiliate  without  Cause  (other  than  a  Termination  under  circumstances  described  in  paragraph  (c),  (d)  or  (f)  of  this  Section  4  or  other  than  an  event
described in paragraph (b) of this Section 4), (i) a portion of the Option shall vest and become exercisable as of the date of such Termination, determined
by multiplying the number of Shares subject to the Option by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days Participant was employed (including
the date of such Termination) during the full  vesting period and the denominator of which the number of days in the full  vesting period, reduced by the
number of Shares subject to the Option that have already vested by their terms prior to the date of such Termination and (ii) to the extent exercisable as of
the date of such Termination (including those Shares subject to the Option that become vested exercisable pursuant to this

        2



Section (4)(e)), the Option shall thereafter be exercisable for a period of 90 days from the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier. Any
portion of the Option that is not exercisable as of the date of such Termination (and that does not become vested and exercisable pursuant to this Section
4(e)) as of the date of such Termination) shall be immediately forfeited on such date. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not
apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(e) and (ii) if a Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (c) of
this Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise would experience a Termination pursuant to paragraph (a) or this paragraph (e) of this Section 4, the
Participant’s Termination shall be deemed a Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (c) with respect to the Option shall prevail and be given effect. In
the  event  the  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (c)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  dies  or  becomes
Disabled pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 or at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a Termination pursuant to paragraphs (d) or (f) of
this Section 4, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and paragraph (b), (d) or (f), as applicable, shall prevail and be given effect.

(f)    Change of Control. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of this Section 4, if a Change of Control occurs, and, at any time
prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of such Change of Control, the Participant incurs a Termination, either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate
without Cause, or by the Participant for Good Reason (as defined below), then the Option shall thereafter be exercisable for all or any portion of the full
number of Shares available for purchase under the Option until the first anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier. For
the avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(b) of the Plan shall not apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(f).

(g)    Detrimental Activity. If, at any time during Participant’s employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within
the later of (i)  twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Termination or (ii)  twelve (12) months after Participant is delivered Shares or cash payment(s)
pursuant to the award under this Agreement, Participant engages in any Detrimental Activity, then the Company may rescind any portion of such award
distributed  to  the  Participant  within  the  twenty-four  (24)  month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity  and/or
pursue any other remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, any portion of the Option, whether vested or unvested, that
has  not  been  exercised  shall  immediately  terminate  for  no  additional  consideration  by  the  Company  and  Participant  will  have  no  rights  in  same,  and
Participant  shall  immediately  repay  or  return  to  the  Company  any  cash  payment(s)  and  Shares  that  have  been  paid  or  issued  to  Participant  by  the
Company pursuant to this Agreement within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s engagement in Detrimental Activity. If
any such Shares are no longer held by Participant then Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time
they were sold or otherwise conveyed to another party by Participant. This Section 4(g) shall be construed to supplement, and not contradict, replace or
eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under Section 14, or otherwise available under applicable law.

(h)    Business Days. If the relevant date until which the Option would otherwise be exercisable specified in Section 4 (a), (b), (c),
(e) or (f) hereof is not a business day on which the main office of Visa Inc. is open for business, such relevant date shall be deemed to be the immediately
next following such business day for purposes of such section. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 4, in no event may the Option be
exercised after the Expiration Date.
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5.     Non-Transferability of the Option.

The Option shall not be transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and is exercisable, during the
lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant; provided, however, that the Company may, in its discretion, permit the Option to be transferred subject
to  such  conditions  and  limitations  as  the  Company  may  impose.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  during  the  Participant’s  lifetime,  the  Option  may  be
transferred to and exercised by the Participant’s former spouse pursuant to a domestic relations order which is approved by the Company, in accordance
with any procedures, and subject to any limitations, as the Company may prescribe and subject to applicable law.

6.     Taxes and Withholdings.

At the time of receipt of Shares upon the exercise of all or any part of the Option or such earlier date on which the value of the
Option otherwise becomes includible in the Participant’s gross income for income tax purposes or on which taxes are otherwise payable, the Participant
authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined below) with respect to such Option to be satisfied by the Company by any means to the extent
permitted  by the Plan and applicable  law,  including but  not  limited to  the following:  (1)  through a sale  arranged by the Company through a securities
broker (on the Participant's behalf pursuant to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the cash proceeds of
such sale to the Company, under which the Company is authorized and directed by the Participant to make payment from the cash proceeds of the sale
directly  to  the  appropriate  taxing  authorities  in  an  amount  equal  to  the  Tax  Withholding  Obligations;  (2)  withholding  Shares  otherwise  issuable  to  the
Participant upon exercise of the Option; provided, however, that the amount of any Shares so withheld shall not exceed the sum of all statutory maximum
rates in the Participant’s applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Option, as determined by the Company, subject to any limitations as the Committee
may prescribe and subject to applicable law, based on the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the payment date; or (3) withholding the Tax Withholding
Obligations  from  the  Participant’s  wages  or  other  cash  compensation  payable  to  the  Participant  by  the  Company,  a  Subsidiary,  or  an  Affiliate,  if
determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide
for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements in accordance with Article XVII of the Plan and applicable law.

Tax Withholding Obligations means the minimum tax or social insurance obligations required by law to be withheld in respect of
the Options, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in the case of a
Participant who is an “officer” of the Company as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated pursuant to the Exchange Act (or any successor rule), that such
Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).

Regardless of any action the Company, an Affiliate and/or a Subsidiary takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including
social insurance contribution obligations, if any), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s
responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)  makes  any
representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Option, including the grant or vesting
thereof, the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt of any dividends; or (b) commits to structure the terms of
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the Option or any aspect of the Option to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such tax.

7.     No Rights as a Shareholder.

Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the beneficial owner of the Shares subject to the Option, nor have any
rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until the Participant has actually received such Shares following the
exercise of the Option in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.

8.     No Right to Continued Employment.

Neither the Option nor any terms contained in this Agreement shall  confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in
accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in
the  employment  or  service  of  the  Company  or  any  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate  for  any  period  or  in  any  particular  position  or  at  any  particular  rate  of
compensation,  nor  restrict  in  any  way  the  right  of  the  Company  or  any  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate,  which  right  is  hereby  expressly  reserved,  to  modify  or
terminate the Participant’s  employment or service at any time for  any reason. The Participant  acknowledges and agrees that any right to exercise the
Option is earned only by continuing as an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate at the will of the Company or such Subsidiary or Affiliate,
or  satisfaction  of  any  other  applicable  terms  and  conditions  contained  in  the  Plan  and  this  Agreement,  and  not  through  the  act  of  being  hired,  being
granted the Option or acquiring Shares hereunder.

9.     The Plan.

By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant shall
be conclusively deemed to have indicated Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Plan. Unless defined herein, capitalized terms are used herein as defined in the Plan. Subject to Sections 4(a), 4(e) and 4(f) of this Agreement, in
the event  of  any conflict  between the provisions of  the Plan and this Agreement,  the provisions of  the Plan shall  control,  and this Agreement shall  be
deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by
reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing
the  Plan  can  be  found  on  the  Company’s  Human  Resources  intranet  site.  A  paper  copy  of  the  Plan  and  the  prospectus  shall  be  provided  to  the
Participant  upon  the  Participant’s  written  request  to  the  Company  at  900  Metro  Center  Blvd.,  Foster  City,  California  94404,  Attention:  Stock  Plan
Administrator.

10.    Certain Defined Terms.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a)    “Cause” means: (i) engaging in (A) willful or gross misconduct or (B) willful or gross neglect; (ii) the commission of a felony
or a crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate;
(iii) fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement; (iv) a material breach of the Participant’s employment
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agreement or offer letter (if any) with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (v) acts or omissions constituting a material failure to perform substantially
and adequately the duties assigned to the Participant (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); provided,
however, that following a Change of Control, any such failure will only serve as the basis for a Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act
detrimental to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b)    “Good Reason” means: (i) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity or annual long-
term incentive award opportunity, as applicable, in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control; (ii) the assignment to the Participant of any duties
inconsistent with the Participant’s positions (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities from those in
effect immediately prior to such Change of Control or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in any of the foregoing from those in effect
immediately prior to such Change of Control, or (iii) the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate requires the Participant to change the Participant’s principal
location of work to a location that is in excess of fifty (50) miles from the location thereof immediately prior to the Change of Control. Notwithstanding the
foregoing,  a  Termination  by  a  Participant  for  Good  Reason  shall  not  have  occurred  unless  (i)  the  Participant  gives  written  notice  to  the  Company,  a
Subsidiary  or  an  Affiliate,  as  applicable,  of  Termination  within  thirty  (30)  days  after  the  Participant  first  becomes  aware  of  the  occurrence  of  the
circumstances constituting Good Reason, specifying in reasonable detail the circumstances constituting Good Reason, (ii) the Company, the Subsidiary
or the Affiliate, as the case may be, has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the circumstances constituting Good Reason, and
(iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was given.

(c)    “Detrimental Activity” means: (i) providing services or material assistance to any payments business that is in competition
with  the  payments  business  of  the  Company  in  the  United  States  or  any  other  country  where  the  Company  does  business;  (ii)  soliciting  or  knowingly
inducing  a  Company  customer  that  Participant  had  material  dealings  with  or  was  provided  confidential  information  about  while  employed  with  the
Company to cease or reduce doing business with the Company or to divert a business opportunity related to the Company’s line of business to another
party;  or,  (iii)  soliciting or  knowingly  inducing an employee of  the Company that  Participant  gained knowledge of  while employed with  the Company to
leave the employment of the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of the Company
in the ordinary course of Participant’s employment duties for the Company, (ii) employment with an independently operated subsidiary, division, or unit of
a  diversified  corporation  so long as the independently  operated business unit  at  issue is  truly  independent  and does not  compete  in  any way with  the
Company; or, (iii) holding a passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded company.

(d)    “Disability” shall have the meaning of the Company’s or its Affiliate’s long-term disability plan under which the Participant is
covered from time to time, provided that, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Code Section 409A, a Disability
shall be deemed to have occurred only if such Disability constitutes a “disability” within the meaning of Code Section 409A.
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11.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a)    The Option and the obligation of the Company to sell and deliver Shares hereunder shall be subject in all respects to: (i) all
applicable  federal  and  state  laws,  rules  and  regulations;  and  (ii)  any  registration,  qualification,  approvals  or  other  requirements  imposed  by  any
government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or applicable. Moreover, the Option may
not be exercised if its exercise, or the receipt of Shares pursuant thereto, would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in
its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon any national securities exchange or under any state or federal law, or the consent
or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable, the Company shall not be required to deliver any certificates for Shares to the
Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected
or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company.

(b)    It is intended that the Shares received upon the exercise of the Option shall have been registered under the Securities Act.
If the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant may not sell the
Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting
forth such restrictions on the disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.

(c)    If at the time of exercise of all or part of the Option, the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is
no current prospectus in effect under the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the
Participant by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, an agreement (in such form as the Company may specify) in which the Participant represents
and warrants that the Participant is purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant’s own account, for investment
only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of
such  Shares  shall  be  made  only  pursuant  to  either  (i)  a  registration  statement  on  an  appropriate  form  under  the  Securities  Act,  which  registration
statement  has  become  effective  and  is  current  with  regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration
requirements of the Securities Act, but in claiming such exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable
written  opinion,  in  form  and  substance  satisfactory  to  the  Company,  from  counsel  for  or  approved  by  the  Company,  as  to  the  applicability  of  such
exemption thereto.

12.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process.

Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and deemed given (a) three days after being
deposited  in  the  U.S.  mail,  first  class,  postage prepaid,  certified  receipt  requested,  or  (b)  when delivered by  a  nationally  recognized overnight  courier
which  provides  confirmation  of  delivery.  All  notices  by  the  Participant  or  the  Participant’s  successors  or  permitted  assigns  shall  be  addressed  to  the
Company at  900 Metro  Center  Blvd.,  Foster  City,  California  94404,  Attention:  Stock Plan Administration,  or  such other  address as the Company may
from time to time specify,  and any notice that  involves service of  legal  process on the Company shall  be directed to Company’s Registered Agent for
purposes of service of legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s
last known address in
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the Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in writing and in accordance with this Section 12.

13.    Other Plans.

The  Participant  acknowledges  that  any  income  derived  from  the  exercise  of  the  Option  shall  not  affect  the  Participant’s
participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

14.    Clawback Policy.

Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement  to  the  contrary,  any  cash  incentive  compensation  received  by  the
Participant, Option granted and/or Shares issued hereunder, and/or any amount received with respect to any sale of any such Shares, shall be subject to
potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company’s  Clawback  Policy,  as  it  may  be
amended from time to time (the “Policy”). The Participant agrees and consents to the Company’s application, implementation and enforcement of (a) the
Policy or any similar policy established by the Company that may apply to the Participant and (b) any provision of applicable law relating to cancellation,
rescission, payback or recoupment of compensation, and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are necessary to effectuate the
Policy,  any similar  policy  (as applicable to  the Participant)  or  applicable law without  further  consent  or  action being required by the Participant.  To the
extent that the terms of this Agreement and the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of such policy shall prevail.

15.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a)      the  Plan is  established voluntarily  by  the Company,  it  is  discretionary  in  nature  and it  may be modified,  suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b)     the grant of the Options is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the Participant or
any other person to receive future grants of Options, or benefits in lieu of Options;

(c)     all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d)     the Options do not constitute compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company, its Affiliates and
/or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;

(e)     no provision of this Agreement or of the Option granted hereunder shall give the Participant any right to continue in the
employ  of  the  Company  or  any  Affiliate  or  Subsidiary,  create  any  inference  as  to  the  length  of  employment  of  the  Participant,  affect  the  right  of  an
employer to terminate the employment of the Participant, with or without Cause, or give the Participant any right to participate in any employee welfare or
benefit plan or other program (other than the Plan);

(f)     if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant
shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of
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office or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g)      notwithstanding  any  terms  or  conditions  of  the  Plan  to  the  contrary,  in  the  event  of  termination  of  the  Participant’s
employment  for  any  reason  other  than  a  Termination  pursuant  to  which  accelerated  or  continued  vesting  occurs  as  provided  in  Section  4  hereof  or
pursuant to which such termination of employment is deemed not to be a Termination in the Committee’s discretion under the Plan, the Participant’s right
to receive Options and vest in Options under the Plan, if any, will terminate immediately on the date that the Participant is no longer actively employed by
the  Company,  any  Affiliate  or  any  Subsidiary,  and,  in  any  case,  will  not  be  extended  by  any  notice  period  mandated  under  local  law  (e.g.,  active
employment would not include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h)    notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement, the Option granted hereunder shall be subject to any special terms and
conditions  for  Participant’s  country  set  forth  in  the  Addendum attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A.  Moreover,  if  Participant  relocates  to  one  of  the  countries
included in the Addendum, the special  terms and conditions for  such country  will  apply  to  Participant,  to  the extent  the Company determines that  the
application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of this Agreement.

16.    Data Protection.

(a) The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer,  in electronic or other
form,  of  Participant’s  personal  data  as  described  in  this  document  by  and  among,  as  applicable,  the  Company,  its  Affiliates  and  its  Subsidiaries  (“the
Group”) for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b) The  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  Group  holds  certain  personal  information  about  Participant,  including,  but  not
limited  to,  Participant’s  name,  home  address  and  telephone  number,  date  of  birth,  social  insurance  number  or  other  identification  number,  salary,
nationality,  job  title,  details  of  all  Options  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of  implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c) The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  Data  may  be  transferred  to  any  third  parties  assisting  in  the
implementation, administration and management of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Participant’s country of residence or elsewhere,
and that the recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the
Company may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor,
and to the Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider. The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use,
retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the
Plan, including any requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party with whom the Participant may elect to deposit any
Shares acquired.

(d) The Participant understands that Data will  be held only as long as is necessary to implement,  administer and manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the
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consents  herein,  in  any  case  without  cost,  by  contacting  in  writing  Participant’s  local  human  resources  representative.  The  Participant  understands,
however, that refusing or withdrawing the Participant’s consent will affect the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the
Participant will not be able to participate in the Plan or realize benefits (if any) from the Options. The Participant should also refer to the Visa Inc. Global
Privacy  Policy  (which  is  available  to  Participant  separately  and  may  be  updated  from time  to  time)  for  more  information  regarding  the  collection,  use,
storage, and transfer of the Participant’s Data.

17.    Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction.

In  order  to  maintain  uniformity  in  the  interpretation  of  this  Agreement  across  the  Company’s  operations  in  many  different
locations,  the parties  have expressly  agreed that  this  Agreement  shall  be governed by and enforced under  the laws of  the State  of  Delaware,  without
regard to any contrary principles of conflict of laws of Delaware or another state. The parties further agree that any legal action, suit or proceeding arising
from  or  related  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  instituted  exclusively  in  a  state  or  federal  court  of  competent  jurisdiction  located  in  Delaware.  The  parties
consent  to  the  personal  jurisdiction  of  such  Delaware  courts  over  them,  waive  all  objections  to  the  contrary,  and  waive  any  and  all  objections  to  the
exclusive  location  of  legal  proceedings  in  Delaware  (including,  without  limitation,  any  objection  based  on  cost,  convenience  or  location  of  relevant
persons).  The  parties  further  agree  that  there  shall  be  a  conclusive  presumption  that  this  Agreement  has  a  significant,  material  and  reasonable
relationship to the State of Delaware.

18.    Acceptance.

    The Participant must accept or reject  Participant’s award under this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days after the Grant Date
(“Acceptance Period”). If  the Participant accepts the award within the Acceptance Period, Participant will  be deemed to have agreed to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the Addendum with Additional Country Specific Terms and Conditions
attached  as  Exhibit  A,  all  of  which  are  made  part  of  this  Agreement.  If  the  Participant  fails  to  accept  the  award  under  this  Agreement  during  the
Acceptance Period, such award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such award.

EXHIBIT 10.4
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EXHIBIT 10.4

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Performance Share Award Agreement

This Performance Share Award Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated [Insert Date] (the “Grant Date”), is by and between Visa Inc. (the
“Company”)  and <first_name>  <last_name> (the  “Participant”),  pursuant  to  the  Visa  Inc.  2007  Equity  Incentive  Compensation  Plan  (the  “Plan”).
Capitalized terms that are not defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Plan.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee has authorized the grant to the Participant of Performance Shares in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Participant and the Company desire to enter into this Agreement to evidence and confirm the grant of such Performance
Shares on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Participant and the Company agree as follows:

1. Grant of Performance Shares. Pursuant to the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the Company on the Grant Date has
granted  and  hereby  evidences  the  grant  to  the  Participant,  subject  to  the  terms  and  conditions  set  forth  herein,  in  the  Plan  and  the  Addendum  with
Additional Country Specific Terms and Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this Agreement, an award of <shares_awarded>
Performance Shares (this “Award”).

2. Payment of Earned and Vested Performance Shares. Subject to the provisions of this Section 2 and Sections 4, 5 and 6 of the
Agreement, the Payment Value of each Performance Share covered by this Award that has been determined, in writing, to be earned and vested pursuant
to Sections 3, 4(b) or 5 shall be paid or delivered to the Participant on a date that is as soon as administratively practicable (but no later than 60 days)
after the applicable vesting date described in Sections 3(b),  4(b) or 5 on which such Performance Share initially becomes vested. For purposes of this
Agreement, “Payment Value”  means  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  a  Share  on  the  applicable  vesting  date.  Payments  hereunder  shall  be  made in  Shares,
unless the Committee, in its discretion, determines to make such payments in cash or a combination of cash and Shares. The foregoing to the contrary
notwithstanding, if the Participant’s Separation from Service occurs under any circumstances other than death, any such payment due by reason of such
Separation  from  Service  shall  be  delayed  for  six  months  from  the  date  of  the  Participant’s  Separation  from  Service  if  the  Participant  is  a  “specified
employee” (as such term is defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code) determined in accordance with the methodology established by the Company
as in effect on the date of such Separation from Service.

3. Performance Criteria and Vesting Applicable to Performance Shares.

(a) Performance Criteria.

(i)    Performance Cycle. The Performance Cycle for this Award shall end on [Insert Date].
(ii)    Performance Goals. The Performance Goals for this Award are (A) specified levels of the Company’s Earnings Per

Share (EPS) over the course of the Performance Cycle and (B) the total shareholder return of the Company ranked against the total shareholder return of
companies that are included in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index (“S&P 500 Index”) as of the end of the applicable period used for purposes of calculating
this goal, as described below (“TSR Rank”). For this
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purpose, “Earnings Per Share” or “EPS” means the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Applicable Fiscal Years] diluted earnings per share reported in its annual
report on Form 10-K for the applicable years. The Committee, in its discretion, may determine to adjust the results by excluding some or all of the effects
of certain unusual items. “TSR Rank” means the aggregate total shareholder return on Shares over the approximately three year period beginning [Insert
Date] and ending on the day the Company’s earnings are announced following the close of the Company’s [Insert Fiscal Year] fiscal year, ranked against
the total shareholder return over the same three year period for each of the companies that comprise the S&P 500 Index. Total shareholder return will be
calculated using a beginning price equal to the trading volume weighted average price over the period from [Insert Date] to [Insert Date], and an ending
price equal to the trading volume weighted average price over the period beginning 14 trading days before and ending 15 trading days after the date of
the release of the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Fiscal Year] earnings, and accounting for reinvestment of dividends over this period; provided, however,
that if the date of the release of the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Fiscal Year] earnings is fewer than 15 trading days prior to [Insert Date], then the ending
price will be equal to the average price over the 30-trading day period ending on [Insert Date]. For purposes of this provision, TSR will be calculated using
the trading volume weighted average share price for Visa Inc. and the simple average of the closing prices for the S&P 500.

(iii) Percentage  of  Performance  Shares  Earned.  Following  the  end  of  the  Performance  Cycle,  the  Committee  will
determine  the  extent  to  which  Performance  Shares  have  become earned  during  the  Performance  Cycle  according  to  the  product  of  the  results  of  the
following two schedules and accompanying descriptions:

Performance Level Earnings Per Share

Base Percentage of 
Performance 

Shares Earned

Less than $[insert] 0%
Threshold $[insert] 50%

Target $[insert] 100%
Maximum $[insert] or more 200%

The foregoing schedule sets forth the specific EPS goals for the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Fiscal Year]. The Committee shall determine the applicable
Threshold,  Target  and  Maximum  EPS  goals  for  the  remaining  two  years  of  the  Performance  Cycle  (fiscal  years  [Insert  Fiscal  Years])  based  on  the
Company’s  annual  operating  plan  for  the  applicable  year.  If  the  Earnings  Per  Share  for  an  applicable  year  of  the  Performance  Cycle  falls  between
Threshold and Target, or between Target and Maximum, then the percentage of Performance Shares earned shall be the sum of the Base Percentage of
Performance  Shares  Earned  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  lower  such  Performance  Level  plus  the  product  of  (A)  the  difference  between  the  Base
Percentage of Performance Shares Earned in the schedule above for the greater and lower such Performance Levels and (B) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the amount by which the Earnings Per Share achieved exceeds the Earnings Per Share in the schedule above for the lower such Performance
Level  and  the  denominator  of  which  is  the  difference  between  Earnings  Per  Share  amounts  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  greater  and  lower  of  such
Performance Levels. The Percentage of Performance Shares Earned with respect to Earnings Per Share for the Performance Cycle shall be determined
based on the average Base Percentage of Performance Shares Earned over the three years of the Performance Cycle and shall never exceed 200%.
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Performance Level TSR Rank Adjustment Multiplier
Threshold 0 - 25% 75%

Target 50% 100%
Maximum 75% and above 125%

If the Performance Level for TSR Rank falls between Threshold and Target, or between Target and Maximum, then the Adjustment Multiplier shall be the
sum  of  the  Adjustment  Multiplier  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  lower  such  Performance  Level  plus  the  product  of  (A)  the  difference  between  the
Adjustment Multiplier in the schedule above for the greater and lower such Performance Levels and (B) a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount
by which the TSR Rank achieved exceeds the TSR Rank in the schedule above for the lower such Performance Level and the denominator of which is
the difference between TSR Ranks in the schedule above for the greater and lower of such Performance Levels. The Adjustment Multiplier for the TSR
Rank  shall  never  exceed  125%.  The  product  of  the  Base  Percentage  Performance  Shares  Earned  and  the  Adjustment  Multiplier  shall  be  limited  to  a
maximum of 200% and is then multiplied by the grant amount to determine the number of Performance Shares earned.

(iv)    Notification. As soon as practicable following the end of the Performance Cycle, the Participant shall be notified in
writing of the number of Performance Shares earned.

(b)     Vesting.  Subject  to  Sections  4,  5  and  6  of  this  Agreement,  all  of  the  Performance  Shares  that  are  earned  pursuant  to
Section 3(a) shall become vested on [Insert Date].

(c)    Separate Payments.    For purposes of this Award and Agreement, each amount to be paid hereunder shall be construed
as a separate identified payment for purposes of Section 409A of the Code.

4. Separation from Service.

(a) In  General.  Except  as  otherwise  provided  in  this  Section  4  or  in  Section  5  of  this  Agreement  or  in  the  Plan,  all
Performance Shares subject  to this Award that  have not become vested pursuant to Section 3(b) prior  to the date of  the Participant’s  Separation from
Service shall be immediately forfeited upon such Separation from Service.

(b) This Section 4(b) applies only in the event that (i)  a Change of Control has not occurred prior to [Insert  Date],  or (ii)  a
Change  of  Control  has  occurred  prior  to  [Insert  Date],  but  the  Participant’s  Separation  from  Service  or  death  or  Disability  (as  defined  below)  has  not
occurred within two years following the Change of Control:

(i)    Participant’s Death or Disability Before the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death or Disability
before  the  end of  the  Performance  Cycle,  then  the  Participant  shall  become vested,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  a  prorated  number  of  Performance  Shares
calculated  by  multiplying  the  number  of  Performance  Shares  that  would  have  been  both  earned  pursuant  to  Section  3(a)(iii),  and  vested  pursuant  to
Section 3(b), had the Participant remained employed
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through  [Insert  Date]  by  a  fraction,  the  numerator  of  which  is  the  number  of  full  calendar  days  that  the  Participant  was  actively  employed  during  the
Performance Cycle and the denominator of which is the total number of calendar days in the Performance Cycle.        

(ii)    Separation from Service by Reason of Retirement Before the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s
Separation from Service by the Participant at or after attainment of age sixty and four years of completed service and six months of service from the date
of grant (“Retirement”), then the Participant shall become fully vested, as of [Insert Date], in all of the Participant’s Performance Shares that would have
been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii), and vested pursuant to Section 3(b), had the Participant remained employed through [Insert Date].

(iii)     Separation  from  Service  by  Reason  of  Retirement  or  in  the  Event  of  Death  or  Disability  After  the  End  of  the
Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s Separation from Service by the Participant by reason of Retirement or in the event of the Participant’s death or
Disability, in either case after the end of the Performance Cycle, then the Participant shall be fully vested, as of the date of such Separation from Service,
death or Disability, or if later, as of [Insert Date] , in all of the Participant’s Performance Shares that had been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but had
not yet vested under Section 3(b) as of the date of such Separation from Service, death or Disability.

(iv)     Separation  from  Service  by  Reason  of  Termination  Without  Cause  Whether  Before  or  After  the  End  of  the
Performance  Cycle.  Upon  a  Participant’s  Separation  from  Service  whether  before  or  after  the  end  of  the  Performance  Cycle  by  the  Company,  a
Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below) then, as of the date of such Separation from Service, the Participant shall become vested in a
pro-rated portion of that number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned under Section 3(a)(iii), as of the end of the
Performance  Cycle,  based  on  the  deemed  achievement  of  the  Target  Performance  Level  (within  the  meaning  of  Section  3(a)(iii)),  determined  by
multiplying the number of Performance Shares subject to the Award by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days Participant was employed
(including the date of such Termination) during the full Performance Cycle and the denominator of which is the number of days in the Performance Cycle,
which  Performance  Share  Units  shall  be  paid  to  the  Participant  in  cash  based  on  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  a  Share  on  the  date  of  the  Participant’s
Termination, (i) 50% on the date of the Participant’s Termination and (ii) 50% on the first anniversary of the date of the Participant’s Termination. For the
avoidance of doubt, (A) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Performance Shares to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(b)
(iv);  (B)  if  a  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (b)(ii)  or  (b)(iii)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  would
experience  a  Termination  pursuant  to  this  paragraph  (b)(iv)  of  this  Section  4,  the  Participant’s  Termination  shall  be  deemed  a  Retirement  and  the
provisions of paragraph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii), as applicable, with respect to the Performance Shares shall prevail and be given effect; and (C) if a Participant is
eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (b)(ii)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  dies  or  experiences  a  Disability  pursuant  to
paragraph (b)(i)of this Section 4, the Participant shall be deemed to have had a Termination by reason of Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (b)
(ii)  of  this  Section  4  with  respect  to  the  Performance  Shares  shall  prevail  and be given effect;  provided  that  for  purposes  of  this  subparagraph (C),  in
determining whether a Participant is eligible for Retirement,  the requirement that a Participant’s Termination by reason of Retirement occur at least six
months following the date of grant shall be disregarded. In the event the Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) of this
Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a Termination by the Company
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for Cause at any time, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and such Termination for Cause shall prevail and be given effect.

(v)     Other than Upon Death or Disability or Other than Due to a Separation from Service Without Cause or by Reason
of  Retirement,  Before  or  After  the  End  of  the  Performance  Cycle:  Other  than  upon  Participant’s  death  or  Disability  or  a  Participant’s  Separation  from
Service other than without Cause or by reason of Retirement, whether before or after the end of the Performance Cycle, any and all of the Performance
Shares that have not vested as the date of a Participant’s Separation from Service shall be forfeited.

5. Change of Control.

(a)    This Section 5(a) applies (i) only in the event that (A) a Change of Control has occurred prior to [Insert Date], and (B) the
Participant’s Separation from Service has occurred within two years following the Change of Control, and (ii) notwithstanding any provision in Sections 2,
3 or 4 of this Agreement to the contrary:

(i)    Death or Disability or Separation from Service Without Cause, for Good Reason or by Reason of Retirement Before
the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death or Disability or Separation from Service before the end of the Performance Cycle (A) either
by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below), (B) by the Participant for Good Reason (as defined below) or (C) by the
Participant by reason of Retirement, then, as of the date of such Separation from Service, death or Disability, the Participant will become vested in that
number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned under Section 3(a)(iii), as of the end of the Performance Cycle, based
on the deemed achievement of the Target Performance Level (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(iii)).

(ii)    Death or Disability or Separation from Service without Cause, for Good Reason or by Reason of Retirement After
the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death, Disability or Separation from Service (A) either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate
without Cause, (B) by the Participant for Good Reason or (C) by the Participant by reason of Retirement, in each case after the end of the Performance
Cycle,  then  the  Participant  shall  be  fully  vested,  as  of  such  Separation  from Service  or  death  or  Disability,  or  if  later,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  all  of  the
Participant’s Performance Shares that have been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but have not yet vested under Section 3(b); provided, however, that
if the Change of Control had occurred prior to the end of the Performance Cycle, then the Participant shall become vested, as of such Separation from
Service  or  death  or  Disability,  or,  if  later,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  the  greater  of  (I)  all  of  the  Participant’s  Performance  Shares  that  have  been  earned
pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but have not yet vested under Section 3(b) as of the date of such Separation from Service or death or Disability, and (II) that
number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned as of the end of the Performance Cycle under Section 3(a)(iii), based
on the deemed achievement of the Target Performance Level (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(iii)).

(iii)    Other than Upon Death or Disability or in the Event of a Separation from Service by the Company for Cause or by
the Participant Other than by Reason of Good Reason or Retirement, Whether Before or After the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s
Separation from Service, whether before or after the end of the Performance Cycle, (A) by the Company for Cause, or (B) by the Participant other than for
Good Reason or Retirement or other than upon
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Participant’s  death  or  Disability,  then  any  of  the  Performance  Shares  that  have  not  vested  as  the  date  of  such  Separation  from  Service  or  death  or
Disability shall be forfeited.

(b)     For purposes of this Agreement, no Change of Control shall be deemed to have occurred unless it constitutes a “change in
the ownership or effective control of the corporation, or in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the corporation” within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code.

(c)      For  the  avoidance  of  doubt,  Section  15.1(b)  of  the  Plan  shall  not  apply  to  the  Performance  Shares  subject  to  this
Agreement to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 5, but the applicable provisions of Article XV of the Plan shall otherwise apply to this
Agreement.  In  the  event  the  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (a)(i)  or  (a)(ii)  of  this  Section  5  at  the  time  the  Participant
otherwise experiences a Termination by the Company for Cause as set forth in paragraph (a)(iii) of this Section 5, such Termination shall not be deemed
a Retirement and the Participant’s Termination by the Company for Cause shall prevail and be given effect.

6.     Detrimental Activity.  The Participant  acknowledges that  an important  and material  purpose of  this  Agreement,  as a  matter  of  the
internal  affairs  of  the  Company,  is  to  ensure  that  Participant’s  interests  and  those  of  the  Company  remain  aligned.  If,  at  any  time  during  Participant’s
employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within the later of (i) twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Separation from Service or (ii)
twelve  (12)  months  after  Participant  is  delivered  the  Payment  Value  pursuant  to  Section  2,  Participant  engages  in  any  Detrimental  Activity,  then  the
Company may rescind any portion of the Award distributed to the Participant within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s
engagement in Detrimental Activity and/or pursue any other remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, Participant’s then
outstanding  Performance  Shares  will  be  cancelled  for  no  additional  consideration  by  the  Company  and  Participant  will  have  no  rights  in  same,  and
Participant  shall  immediately  repay  or  return  to  the  Company  any  cash  payment(s)  and  Shares  that  have  been  paid  or  issued  to  Participant  by  the
Company pursuant to this Agreement within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s engagement in Detrimental Activity. If
any such Shares are no longer held by Participant then Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time
they were sold  or  otherwise conveyed to  another  party  by Participant.  This  Section 6 shall  be construed to supplement,  and not  contradict,  replace or
eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under Section 18, or otherwise available under applicable law.

7.     Restrictions  on  Transfer.  Performance  Shares  may  not  be  sold,  assigned,  hypothecated,  pledged  or  otherwise  transferred  or
encumbered in any manner except (a) by will or the laws of descent and distribution or (b) as otherwise permitted pursuant to the Plan.

8.     Dividend  Equivalents.  Each  Performance  Share  subject  to  this  Award  shall  entitle  the  Participant  to  Dividend  Equivalents  with
respect  to  regular  cash  dividends  that  would  otherwise  be  paid  on  one  Share  during  the  period  from  the  date  such  Performance  Share  is  earned  in
accordance with Section 3(a) to the date such Performance Share is paid in accordance with Section 2 or forfeited in accordance with Section 4 or 5. Any
such Dividend Equivalent  shall  be paid to  the Participant  at  (or  within  thirty  (30)  days following)  the time such related dividends are paid to  holders  of
Shares.

9.    No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares. Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the beneficial
owner of any Shares that may become payable with respect to the Performance Shares subject to this Award, nor have any rights to dividends or other
rights
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as  a  shareholder  with  respect  to  any  such  Shares,  until  and  after  such  Shares,  if  any,  have  been  actually  issued  in  satisfaction  of  the  Company’s
obligations under this Award, in the time and manner specified in Section 2, and such Shares are transferred on the books and records of the Company or
its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.

10.     Taxes  and  Withholding.  When  the  value  of  any  Performance  Shares  becomes  includible  in  the  Participant’s  gross  income  for
income tax purposes or when taxes on the Performance Shares are otherwise payable. the Participant authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as
defined below) with respect to the Performance Shares to be satisfied by the Company by any means to the extent permitted by the Plan and applicable
law, including but not limited to the following: (1) through a sale arranged by the Company through a securities broker (on the Participant's behalf pursuant
to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the cash proceeds of such sale to the Company, under which the
Company is authorized and directed by the Participant to make payment from the cash proceeds of the sale directly to the appropriate taxing authorities in
an amount equal to the Tax Withholding Obligations; (2) withholding Shares or cash otherwise deliverable or payable to the Participant pursuant to this
Award, provided, however,  that  the  amount  of  any  Shares  so  withheld  shall  not  exceed  the  sum  of  all  statutory  maximum  rates  in  the  Participant’s
applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Performance Shares, as determined by the Company, subject to any limitations as the Committee may prescribe
and  subject  to  applicable  law,  based  on  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  the  Shares  on  the  payment  date  (“Net  Settlement”);  or  (3)  withholding  the  Tax
Withholding Obligations from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation payable to the Participant by the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate,
if determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide
for  alternative  arrangements  to  satisfy  applicable  tax  withholding requirements  in  accordance with  Article  XVII  of  the Plan,  including,  without  limitation,
requiring the Participant  to pay to the Company a cash amount  equal  to the Tax Withholding Obligations.  However,  to the extent  any Tax Withholding
Obligations are required by law to be withheld with respect to the Performance Shares covered by this Award prior to the date such Performance Shares
are paid in accordance with Section 2, the Participant shall be required to pay to the Company in cash the amount of such taxes promptly following written
notice thereof by the Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been in the
six-month period preceding an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, an “officer” of the Company as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated pursuant to the
Exchange Act (or any successor rule)(a “Section 16 Officer”), then the Company shall use Net Settlement to satisfy such Participant’s Tax Withholding
Obligations, unless otherwise determined by the Committee or the Board. However, to the extent any Tax Withholding Obligations are required by law to
be  withheld  with  respect  to  the  Performance  Shares  covered  by  this  Award  prior  to  the  date  such  Performance  Shares  are  paid  in  accordance  with
Section 2, such Participant shall  instead be required to pay to the Company in cash the amount of the Tax Withholding Obligations promptly following
written notice thereof by the Company, unless otherwise determined by the Committee or the Board.

Tax  Withholding  Obligations  means  the  minimum tax  or  social  insurance  obligations  required  by  law  to  be  withheld  in  respect  of  the
Performance Shares, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in the
case of a Participant who is a Section 16 Officer, that such Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).
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Regardless of any action the Company, an Affiliate and /or a Subsidiary takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including social
insurance  contribution  obligations,  if  any),  the  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  ultimate  liability  for  all  such  taxes  is  and  remains  the  Participant’s
responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)  makes  any
representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Performance Shares, including the
grant or vesting thereof, the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt of any dividends; or (b) commits to structure the terms of the Performance Shares
or any aspect of the Performance Shares to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such tax.

11.     No  Right  to  Continued  Employment.  Neither  the  Performance  Shares  covered  by  this  Award  nor  any  terms  contained  in  this
Agreement shall confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and
shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the employment or service of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate for any
period or in any particular position or at any particular rate of compensation, nor restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate,
which  right  is  hereby  expressly  reserved,  to  modify  or  terminate  the  Participant’s  employment  or  service  at  any  time  for  any  reason.  The  Participant
acknowledges and agrees that any right to vesting of this Award is earned only by continuing as an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate
at  the  will  of  the  Company  or  such  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate,  or  satisfaction  of  any  other  applicable  terms  and  conditions  contained  in  the  Plan  and  this
Agreement, and not through the act of being hired or being granted this Award.

12.    The Plan. By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan
and this Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Plan. Subject to Section 5(c) of this Agreement, in the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the
provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions
and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by
the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can be found on the Company’s Human Resources intranet site. A paper copy of the
Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written request to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City,
California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator.

13.    Certain Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a) “Cause” means: (i) engaging in (A) willful or gross misconduct or (B) willful or gross neglect; (ii) the commission of a felony or a
crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (iii)
fraud,  misappropriation or embezzlement;  (iv)  a material  breach of  the Participant’s  employment agreement or offer  letter  (if  any) with the Company,  a
Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (v) acts or omissions constituting a material failure to perform substantially and adequately the duties assigned to the Participant
(other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); provided, however, that
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following a Change of Control, any such failure will only serve as the basis for a Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act detrimental to the
Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b) “Good Reason” means: (i) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity or annual long-term
incentive  award  opportunity,  as  applicable,  in  effect  immediately  prior  to  the  Change  of  Control;  (ii)  the  assignment  to  the  Participant  of  any  duties
inconsistent with the Participant’s positions (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities from those in
effect immediately prior to such Change of Control or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in any of the foregoing from those in effect
immediately prior to such Change of Control, or (iii) the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate requires the Participant to change the Participant’s principal
location of work to a location that is in excess of fifty (50) miles from the location thereof immediately prior to the Change of Control. Notwithstanding the
foregoing,  a  Termination  by  a  Participant  for  Good  Reason  shall  not  have  occurred  unless  (i)  the  Participant  gives  written  notice  to  the  Company,  a
Subsidiary  or  an  Affiliate,  as  applicable,  of  Termination  within  thirty  (30)  days  after  the  Participant  first  becomes  aware  of  the  occurrence  of  the
circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  specifying  in  reasonable  detail  the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  and  (ii)  the  Company,  the
Subsidiary or the Affiliate, as the case may be, has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the circumstances constituting Good
Reason, and (iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was given.

(c) “Detrimental  Activity”  means:  (i)  providing services or material  assistance to any payments business that is in competition with
the payments business of the Company in the United States or any other country where the Company does business; (ii) soliciting or knowingly inducing a
Company customer that Participant had material dealings with or was provided confidential information about while employed with the Company to cease
or reduce doing business with the Company or to divert a business opportunity related to the Company’s line of business to another party; or, (iii) soliciting
or knowingly inducing an employee of the Company that Participant gained knowledge of while employed with the Company to leave the employment of
the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of the Company in the ordinary course of
Participant’s employment duties for the Company, (ii) employment with an independently operated subsidiary, division, or unit of a diversified corporation
so long as the independently operated business unit at issue is truly independent and does not compete in any way with the Company; or, (iii) holding a
passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded company.

(d) “Disability”  shall  have  the  meaning  of  the  Company’s  or  its  Affiliate’s  long-term  disability  plan  under  which  the  Participant  is
covered from time to time, provided that, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Code Section 409A, a Disability
shall be deemed to have occurred only if such Disability constitutes a “disability” within the meaning of Code Section 409A.

(e) “Separation from Service” means a Termination (as defined in the Plan) that qualifies as a separation from service under Section
409A of the Code.

14.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a) The Performance Shares subject to this Award and the obligation of the Company to deliver Shares or cash payments hereunder
shall be subject in all respects to (i) all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations; and (ii) any registration, qualification, approvals
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or other requirements imposed by any government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or
applicable. Moreover, the Company shall not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing
so would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon
any  national  securities  exchange  or  under  any  state  or  federal  law,  or  the  consent  or  approval  of  any  governmental  regulatory  body,  is  necessary  or
desirable,  the  Company  shall  not  be  required  to  deliver  any  certificates  for  Shares  to  the  Participant  or  any  other  person  pursuant  to  this  Agreement
unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions
not acceptable to the Company.

(b) It  is  intended that  any Shares received pursuant  to  this  Agreement  shall  have been registered under  the Securities  Act.  If  the
Participant  is  an  “affiliate”  of  the  Company,  as  that  term is  defined  in  Rule  144 under  the  Securities  Act  (“Rule  144”),  the  Participant  may  not  sell  the
Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting
forth such restrictions on the disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.

(c) If  at  any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act,  and/or there is no current  prospectus in effect  under the
Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant to
this  Agreement,  an  agreement  (in  such  form  as  the  Company  may  specify)  in  which  the  Participant  represents  and  warrants  that  the  Participant  is
purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale
or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant
to either (i) a registration statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with
regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration  requirements  of  the  Securities  Act,  but  in  claiming  such
exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.

15.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process. Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and
deemed given (a) three days after being deposited in the U.S. mail,  first  class, postage prepaid, certified receipt requested, or (b) when delivered by a
nationally recognized overnight courier which provides confirmation of delivery. All notices by the Participant or the Participant’s successors or permitted
assigns shall be addressed to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City, California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator, or such other
address  as  the  Company  may  from  time  to  time  specify,  and  any  notice  that  involves  service  of  legal  process  on  the  Company  shall  be  directed  to
Company’s Registered Agent for purposes of service of legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the
Participant at the Participant’s last known address in the Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in
writing and in accordance with this Section 15.

16.    Other Plans. The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from this Award shall not affect the Participant’s participation
in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.
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17.    Acceptance or Rejection of this Award. To accept or reject your Award, please complete the on-line form ("Accept or Reject Your
Grant")  as promptly  as possible,  but,  in  any case,  within ninety (90)  days after  the Grant  Date.  If  you accept  your  Award,  you will  be deemed to have
agreed  to  the  terms  and  conditions  set  forth  in  this  Agreement  and  the  terms  and  conditions  of  the  Plan  and  the  Addendum  with  Additional  Country
Specific Terms and Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this award Agreement. If you do not accept your Award within ninety
(90)  days  after  the  Grant  Date,  it  may  be  cancelled.  Your  Agreement  is  available  to  you  online  in  your  Merrill  Benefits  Online  account  via  this  link:
https://benefits.ml.com.

18.    Clawback Policy. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any cash incentive compensation received
by  the  Participant,  Performance  Shares  granted  and/or  Shares  issued  hereunder,  and/or  any  amount  received  with  respect  to  any  sale  of  any  such
Shares,  shall  be  subject  to  potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company's
Clawback  Policy,  as  it  may  be  amended  from  time  to  time  (the  "Policy").   The  Participant  agrees  and  consents  to  the  Company's  application.
implementation  and  enforcement  of  (a)  the  Policy  or  any  similar  policy  established  by  the  Company  that  may  apply  to  the  Participant  and  (b)  any
provision of applicable law relating to cancellation,  rescission,  payback or recoupment of  compensation,  and expressly agrees that the Company may
take such actions as are necessary to effectuate the Policy, any similar policy (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent
or action being required by the Participant. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of
such policy shall prevail.

19.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, suspended or terminated
by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b) the grant of the Award is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the Participant or any
other person to receive future grants of Performance Shares, or benefits in lieu of Performance Shares;

(c) all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d) the  Performance  Shares  do  not  constitute  compensation  of  any  kind  for  services  of  any  kind  rendered  to  the  Company,  its
Affiliates and /or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;

(e) no provision of this Agreement or of the Award shall give the Participant any right to continue in the employ of the Company or
any  Affiliate  or  Subsidiary,  create  any  inference  as  to  the  length  of  employment  of  the  Participant,  affect  the  right  of  an  employer  to  terminate  the
employment  of  the  Participant,  with  or  without  Cause,  or  give  the  Participant  any  right  to  participate  in  any  employee welfare  or  benefit  plan  or  other
program (other than the Plan);

(f) if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant shall not
be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office
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or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g) notwithstanding any terms or conditions of the Plan to the contrary, in the event of Participant’s Separation from Service for any
reason  other  than  a  Separation  from  Service  pursuant  to  which  accelerated  or  continued  vesting  occurs  as  provided  in  Sections  4  or  5  hereof,  the
Participant’s  right  to  receive  the  Performance  Shares  and  vest  in  Performance  Shares  under  the  Plan,  if  any,  will  terminate  immediately  upon  such
Separation  from  Service,  and,  in  any  case,  will  not  be  extended  by  any  notice  period  mandated  under  local  law  (e.g.,  active  employment  would  not
include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h) notwithstanding any provisions in  this  Agreement,  the Performance Shares granted hereunder  shall  be subject  to  any special
terms and conditions for  Participant’s  country set  forth in the Addendum attached hereto as Exhibit  A.  Moreover,  if  Participant  relocates to one of  the
countries included in the Addendum, the special terms and conditions for such country will  apply to Participant, to the extent the Company determines
that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons.

20.     Data Protection.

(a) The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
Participant’s personal data as described in this document by and among, as applicable, the Company, its Affiliates and its Subsidiaries (“the Group”) for
the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b) The Participant acknowledges that the Group holds certain personal information about Participant, including, but not limited to,
Participant’s  name, home address and telephone number,  date of birth,  social  insurance number or other identification number,  salary,  nationality,  job
title,  details  of  all  Performance  Shares  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of  implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c) The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  Data  may  be  transferred  to  any  third  parties  assisting  in  the  implementation,
administration  and management  of  the Plan,  that  these recipients  may be located in the Participant’s  country  of  residence or  elsewhere,  and that  the
recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the Company
may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor, and to the
Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider.  The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and
transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing,  administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan,
including  any  requisite  transfer  of  such  Data  as  may  be  required  to  a  broker  or  other  third  party  with  whom the  Participant  may  elect  to  deposit  any
Shares acquired.

(d) The  Participant  understands  that  Data  will  be  held  only  as  long  as  is  necessary  to  implement,  administer  and  manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by
contacting in writing Participant’s local human resources
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representative.  The  Participant  understands,  however,  that  refusing  or  withdrawing  the  Participant’s  consent  will  affect  the  Participant’s  ability  to
participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the Participant will not be able to participate in the Plan or realize benefits (if any) from the Performance
Shares.  The Participant should also refer to the Visa Inc. Global Privacy Policy (which is available to Participant separately and may be updated from
time to time) for more information regarding the collection, use, storage, and transfer of the Participant’s Data.

21.     Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction. In order to maintain uniformity in the interpretation of this Agreement across
the Company’s operations in many different locations, the parties have expressly agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by and enforced under
the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to any contrary principles of conflict of laws of Delaware or another state. The parties further agree that
any  legal  action,  suit  or  proceeding  arising  from  or  related  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  instituted  exclusively  in  a  state  or  federal  court  of  competent
jurisdiction located in Delaware. The parties consent to the personal jurisdiction of such Delaware courts over them, waive all objections to the contrary,
and waive any and all  objections to the exclusive location of legal proceedings in Delaware (including, without limitation,  any objection based on cost,
convenience or location of relevant persons). The parties further agree that there shall be a conclusive presumption that this Agreement has a significant,
material and reasonable relationship to the State of Delaware.

22.     Acceptance. The Participant must accept or reject Participant’s award under this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days after
the Grant Date (“Acceptance Period”). If the Participant accepts the Award within the Acceptance Period, Participant will be deemed to have agreed to
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the Addendum with Additional Country Specific Terms and
Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this Agreement. If the Participant fails to accept the Award during the Acceptance Period,
the Award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such Award.

EXHIBIT 10.5
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EXHIBIT 10.5

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of the Grant Date (the “Grant Date”) set forth in the
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Grant Notice”), is made between Visa Inc. (the “Company”) and the Participant
set forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.

1.     Definitions.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning set forth in the Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “Plan”).

2.     Grant of the Restricted Stock Units.

Subject  to  the  provisions  of  this  Agreement  and  the  provisions  of  the  Plan,  the  Company  hereby  grants  to  the  Participant,
pursuant to the Plan, the number of Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Grant Notice (the “Restricted Stock Units”).

3.     Dividend Equivalents.

Each Restricted Stock Unit shall entitle the Participant to Dividend Equivalents with respect to regular cash dividends that would
otherwise  be  paid  on  the  Share  underlying  such  Restricted  Stock  Unit  during  the  period  from  the  Grant  Date  to  the  date  such  Share  is  delivered  in
accordance with  Section 5.  Any such Dividend Equivalent  shall  be paid  to  the Participant  at  (or  within  thirty  (30)  days following)  the time such related
dividends are paid to holders of Shares.

4.     Period of Restriction; Termination; Other Events.

The  Period  of  Restriction  with  respect  to  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  shall  be  as  set  forth  in  the  Grant  Notice  (the  “Period  of
Restriction”). The Participant acknowledges that an important and material purpose of this Agreement, as a matter of the internal affairs of the Company,
is to ensure that Participant’s interests and those of the Company remain aligned. This is achieved by Participant agreeing to avoid Detrimental Activity
during the Period of Restriction and for a period of twelve (12) months after the later of Participant’s (i) Termination or (ii) receipt of cash payment(s) or
Shares hereunder. Avoidance of Detrimental Activity in accordance with the terms of this Agreement is understood to be precondition to entitlement and
retention  of  any  award  under  this  Agreement.  The  Participant  acknowledges  that  prior  to  the  expiration  of  the  applicable  portion  of  the  Period  of
Restriction, the Restricted Stock Units may not be sold, transferred,  pledged, assigned, encumbered, alienated, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of
(whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garnishment or any other legal or equitable proceedings (including
bankruptcy)),  other  than  by  will  or  the  laws  of  descent  and  distribution.  Upon  the  expiration  of  the  applicable  portion  of  the  Period  of  Restriction,  the
restrictions  set  forth  in  this  Agreement  with  respect  to  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  theretofore  subject  to  such  expired  Period  of  Restriction  shall  lapse,
except as may be provided in accordance with Section 11 hereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the expiration of the applicable portion of the
Period of  Restriction,  the Restricted Stock Units  may be transferred to  the Participant’s  former  spouse pursuant  to  a domestic  relations order  which is
approved by
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the Company, in accordance with any procedures, and subject to any limitations, as the Company may prescribe and subject to applicable law. Subject to
the terms of the Plan and the remaining provisions of this Section 4, all Restricted Stock Units for which the Period of Restriction had not lapsed prior to
the date of the Participant’s Termination shall be immediately forfeited. Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary:

(a)    Death and Disability. In the event of the Participant’s death or Disability (as defined below), then the Period of Restriction
shall immediately lapse as to the full number of Restricted Stock Units.

(b)    Retirement. Upon Termination of the Participant at or after attainment of age fifty-five and five years of completed service
and six months of service from the date of grant (“Retirement”), then the Period of Restriction for any Restricted Stock Units that remain unvested as of
the date of such Termination shall continue to lapse in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in the Grant Notice.

(c)    Change of Control. If a Change of Control occurs, and, at any time prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of the Change of
Control, the Participant incurs a Termination, either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below), or by the Participant
for  Good  Reason  (as  defined  below),  then  the  Period  of  Restriction  shall  immediately  lapse  as  to  the  full  number  of  Restricted  Stock  Units.  For  the
avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(b) of the Plan shall not apply to the Restricted Stock Units to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(c).

(d)     Termination  by  the  Company  without  Cause.  Upon  Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the  Company  or  a  Subsidiary  or
Affiliate  without  Cause  (other  than  a  Termination  under  circumstances  described  in  paragraph  (b),  (c)  or  (e)  of  this  Section  4  or  other  than  an  event
described in paragraph (a) of this Section 4), the Period of Restriction will lapse as to a portion of the Restricted Stock Units, determined by multiplying the
number of Restricted Stock Units subject to the Award by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days you were employed (including the date
of such Termination) during the full Period of Restriction and the denominator of which the number of days in the full Period of Restriction, reduced by the
number of Restricted Stock Units that have already vested by their terms prior to the date of such Termination, which Restricted Stock Units shall be paid
to you in cash based on the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of your Termination, (i) 50% on the date of your Termination and (ii) 50% on the first
anniversary of the date of your Termination. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Restricted Stock Units to the
extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(d) and (ii) if a Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 at the time
the Participant  otherwise would experience a Termination pursuant  to this paragraph (d)  of  Section 4,  the Participant’s  Termination shall  be deemed a
Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (b) with respect to the Restricted Stock Units shall prevail and be given effect. In the event the Participant is
eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise dies or becomes Disabled pursuant to paragraph
(a) of this Section 4 or at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a Termination by the Company for Cause or pursuant to paragraph (c) of this
Section 4, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and paragraph (a) or (c) or such Termination for Cause, as applicable, shall prevail and be
given effect.

(e)    Other Terminations; Other Events.  Upon Termination of the Participant due to any reason other than termination without
Cause prior to a Change of Control, Retirement, termination without Cause following a Change of Control or termination for Good Reason following a
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Change of Control or other than in the event of Participant’s death or Disability, then all Restricted Stock Units for which the Period of Restriction had not
lapsed prior to the date of such Termination shall be immediately forfeited.

(f)    Detrimental Activity. If, at any time during Participant’s employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within
the later of (i)  twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Termination or (ii)  twelve (12) months after Participant is delivered Shares or cash payment(s)
pursuant  to  this  Award,  Participant  engages  in  any  Detrimental  Activity,  then  the  Company  may  rescind  any  portion  of  the  Award  distributed  to  the
Participant  within  the  twenty-four  (24)  month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity  and/or  pursue  any  other
remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, Participant’s then outstanding Restricted Stock Units will  be cancelled for no
additional consideration by the Company and Participant will  have no rights in same, and Participant shall immediately repay or return to the Company
any cash payment(s)  and Shares that  have been paid or  issued to Participant  by the Company pursuant  to this  Agreement  within the twenty-four  (24)
month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity.  If  any  such  Shares  are  no  longer  held  by  Participant  then
Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time they were sold or otherwise conveyed to another party
by Participant. This Section 4(f) shall be construed to supplement, and not contradict, replace or eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under
Section 14, or otherwise available under applicable law.

5.     Payment of Restricted Stock Units.

Except as set forth in Section 4(d), as soon as reasonably practicable following the lapse of the applicable portion of the Period
of Restriction, but in no event later than 90 days following the date of such lapse, the Company shall cause to be delivered to the Participant (a) the full
number of Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units as to which such portion of the Period of Restriction has so lapsed (a “Share Settlement”), (b) a
cash payment determined by reference to the then-current Fair Market Value of such Shares or (c) a combination of Shares and such cash payment as
the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine, subject to satisfaction of applicable Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined in and in accordance
with Section 6 of this Agreement); provided, however,  that  if  the Participant’s  Termination occurs under any circumstances other  than death,  any such
delivery of Shares or cash payment due to lapse of the Period of Restriction upon such Termination shall be delayed for six months from the date of such
Participant’s  Termination  if  the  Participant  is  a  “specified  employee”  (as  such  term  is  defined  in  Section  409A(a)(2)(B)(i)  of  the  Code)  determined  in
accordance with the methodology established by the Company as in effect on the date of such Termination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been in the six-
month  period  preceding  an  issuance of  Shares  pursuant  hereto,  an  “officer”  of  the  Company as  defined  in  Rule  16a-1(f)  promulgated  pursuant  to  the
Exchange Act (or any successor rule)(a “Section 16 Officer”), then payment of the Restricted Stock Units to such Participant may only be in the form of a
Share  Settlement,  unless  otherwise  elected  by  the  Participant  and  permitted  by  the  Committee  or  the  Board,  or  unless  otherwise  determined  by  the
Committee or the Board.

6.     Taxes and Withholdings.

Upon the expiration of the applicable portion of the Period of Restriction, or such earlier date on which the value of any Restricted
Stock Units otherwise becomes includible in the Participant’s gross income for income tax purposes or on which taxes are otherwise payable, the
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Participant authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined below) with respect to such Restricted Stock Units to be satisfied by the Company by
any means to the extent permitted by the Plan and applicable law, including but not limited to the following: (1) through a sale arranged by the Company
through a securities broker (on the Participant's behalf pursuant to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the
cash proceeds of  such sale to the Company,  under which the Company is  authorized and directed by the Participant  to make payment  from the cash
proceeds of the sale directly to the appropriate taxing authorities in an amount equal to the Tax Withholding Obligations; (2) withholding Shares or cash
otherwise deliverable  or  payable  to  the Participant  pursuant  to  the Restricted  Stock  Unit  award; provided, however,  that  the amount  of  any Shares so
withheld shall not exceed the sum of all statutory maximum rates in the Participant’s applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Restricted Stock Units, as
determined by the Company, subject to any limitations as the Committee may prescribe and subject to applicable law, based on the Fair Market Value of
the  Shares  on  the  payment  date  (“Net  Settlement”);  or  (3)  withholding  the  Tax  Withholding  Obligations  from  the  Participant’s  wages  or  other  cash
compensation payable to the Participant by the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate, if determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The
Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding
requirements in accordance with Article XVII of the Plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been in the six-
month  period  preceding  an  issuance  of  Shares  pursuant  hereto,  a  Section  16  Officer,  then  the  Company  shall  use  Net  Settlement  to  satisfy  such
Participant’s Tax Withholding Obligations, unless otherwise determined by the Committee or the Board.

Tax Withholding Obligations means the minimum tax or social insurance obligations required by law to be withheld in respect of
the Restricted Stock Units, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in
the case of a Participant who is a Section 16 Officer, that such Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).

Regardless of any action the Company, an Affiliate and /or a Subsidiary takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including
social insurance contribution obligations, if any), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s
responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)  makes  any
representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units, including the
grant  or vesting thereof,  the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt  of  any dividends; or (b)  commits to structure the terms of  the Restricted Stock
Units or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such tax.

7.     No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares.

Neither  the Participant  nor  any other  person shall  become the beneficial  owner  of  the Shares underlying  the Restricted  Stock
Units, nor have any rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until and after such Shares, if any, have been
actually issued to the Participant and transferred on the books and records of the Company or its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement.
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8.     No Right to Continued Employment.

Neither  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  nor  any  terms  contained  in  this  Agreement  shall  confer  upon  the  Participant  any  rights  or
claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to
be retained in the employment or service of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate for any period or in any particular position or at any particular rate
of  compensation,  nor restrict  in any way the right  of  the Company or any Subsidiary or  Affiliate,  which right  is  hereby expressly reserved,  to modify  or
terminate  the  Participant’s  employment  or  service  at  any time for  any reason.  The Participant  acknowledges and agrees that  any  right  to  lapse of  the
Period  of  Restriction  is  earned  only  by  continuing  as  an  employee  of  the  Company  or  a  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate  at  the  will  of  the  Company  or  such
Subsidiary or Affiliate, or satisfaction of any other applicable terms and conditions contained in the Plan and this Agreement, and not through the act of
being hired or being granted the Restricted Stock Units hereunder.

9.     The Plan.

By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant shall be
conclusively deemed to have indicated the Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the  Plan.  Subject  to  Section  4(c)  and  4(d)  of  this  Agreement,  in  the  event  of  any  conflict  between the  provisions  of  the  Plan  and this  Agreement,  the
provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions
and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by
the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can be found on the Company’s Human Resources intranet site. A paper copy of the
Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written request to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City,
California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator.

10.    Certain Defined Terms.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a)    “Cause” means: (i) engaging in (A) willful or gross misconduct or (B) willful or gross neglect; (ii) the commission of a felony
or a crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate;
(iii) fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement; (iv) a material breach of the Participant’s employment agreement or offer letter (if any) with the Company, a
Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (v) acts or omissions constituting a material failure to perform substantially and adequately the duties assigned to the Participant
(other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); provided, however, that following a Change of Control, any such
failure will only serve as the basis for a Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act detrimental to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b)     “Good Reason” means: (i) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity or annual long-
term incentive award opportunity, as applicable, in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control; (ii) the assignment to the Participant of any duties
inconsistent with the Participant’s positions (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements),
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authority,  duties  or  responsibilities  from  those  in  effect  immediately  prior  to  such  Change  of  Control  or  any  action  by  the  Company  that  results  in  a
diminution  in  any  of  the  foregoing  from  those  in  effect  immediately  prior  to  such  Change  of  Control,  or  (iii)  the  Company,  a  Subsidiary  or  an  Affiliate
requires  the  Participant  to  change the Participant’s  principal  location  of  work  to  a  location  that  is  in  excess  of  fifty  (50)  miles  from the  location  thereof
immediately prior to the Change of Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Termination by a Participant for Good Reason shall not have occurred unless
(i) the Participant gives written notice to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, as applicable, of Termination within thirty (30) days after the Participant
first  becomes  aware  of  the  occurrence  of  the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  specifying  in  reasonable  detail  the  circumstances  constituting
Good Reason, (ii) the Company, the Subsidiary or the Affiliate, as the case may be, has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the
circumstances constituting Good Reason, and (iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was
given.

(c)     “Detrimental Activity” means: (i) providing services or material assistance to any payments business that is in competition
with  the  payments  business  of  the  Company  in  the  United  States  or  any  other  country  where  the  Company  does  business;  (ii)  soliciting  or  knowingly
inducing  a  Company  customer  that  Participant  had  material  dealings  with  or  was  provided  confidential  information  about  while  employed  with  the
Company to cease or reduce doing business with the Company or to divert a business opportunity related to the Company’s line of business to another
party;  or,  (iii)  soliciting or  knowingly  inducing an employee of  the Company that  Participant  gained knowledge of  while employed with  the Company to
leave the employment of the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of the Company
in the ordinary course of Participant’s employment duties for the Company, (ii) employment with an independently operated subsidiary, division, or unit of
a  diversified  corporation  so long as the independently  operated business unit  at  issue is  truly  independent  and does not  compete  in  any way with  the
Company; or, (iii) holding a passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded company.

(d)    “Disability” shall have the meaning of the Company’s or its Affiliate’s long-term disability plan under which the Participant is
covered from time to time, provided that, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Code Section 409A, a Disability
shall be deemed to have occurred only if such Disability constitutes a “disability” within the meaning of Code Section 409A.

11.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a)     The  Restricted  Stock  Units  and  the  obligation  of  the  Company  to  deliver  Shares  or  cash  payments  hereunder  shall  be
subject  in  all  respects  to  (i)  all  applicable  federal  and  state  laws,  rules  and  regulations;  and  (ii)  any  registration,  qualification,  approvals  or  other
requirements  imposed  by  any  government  or  regulatory  agency  or  body  which  the  Committee  shall,  in  its  discretion,  determine  to  be  necessary  or
applicable. Moreover, the Company shall not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing
so would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon
any  national  securities  exchange  or  under  any  state  or  federal  law,  or  the  consent  or  approval  of  any  governmental  regulatory  body,  is  necessary  or
desirable,  the  Company  shall  not  be  required  to  deliver  any  certificates  for  Shares  to  the  Participant  or  any  other  person  pursuant  to  this  Agreement
unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions
not acceptable to the Company.
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(b)    It  is intended that any Shares received upon expiration of the Period of Restriction shall  have been registered under the
Securities Act. If the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant
may not sell the Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a
legend setting forth  such restrictions  on the disposition or  transfer  of  the Shares as the Company deems appropriate  to  comply  with  federal  and state
securities laws.

(c)    If at any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is no current prospectus in effect under
the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant
to  this  Agreement,  an  agreement  (in  such  form as  the  Company  may  specify)  in  which  the  Participant  represents  and  warrants  that  the  Participant  is
purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale
or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant
to either (i) a registration statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with
regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration  requirements  of  the  Securities  Act,  but  in  claiming  such
exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.

12.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process.

Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and deemed given (a) three days after being
deposited  in  the  U.S.  mail,  first  class,  postage  prepaid,  certified  receipt  requested,  or  (b)  when  delivered  by  a  nationally  recognized  overnight  courier
which  provides  confirmation  of  delivery.  All  notices  by  the  Participant  or  the  Participant’s  successors  or  permitted  assigns  shall  be  addressed  to  the
Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City, California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administration, or such other address as the Company may from
time to time specify, and any notice that involves service of legal process on the Company shall be directed to Company’s Registered Agent for purposes
of service of legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s last known
address in the Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in writing and in accordance with this Section
12.

13.    Other Plans.

The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from this Restricted Stock Units award shall  not affect the Participant’s
participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

14.    Clawback Policy.

Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement  to  the  contrary,  any  cash  incentive  compensation  received  by  the
Participant, Restricted Stock Unit granted, Shares issued and/or amount paid hereunder, and/or any amount received with respect to any sale of any such
Shares,  shall  be  subject  to  potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company’s
Clawback Policy, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Policy”). The
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Participant agrees and consents to the Company’s application, implementation and enforcement of (a) the Policy or any similar policy established by the
Company  that  may  apply  to  the  Participant  and  (b)  any  provision  of  applicable  law  relating  to  cancellation,  rescission,  payback  or  recoupment  of
compensation, and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are necessary to effectuate the Policy, any similar policy (as applicable
to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent or action being required by the Participant. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and
the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of such policy shall prevail.

15.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a)      the  Plan is  established voluntarily  by  the Company,  it  is  discretionary  in  nature  and it  may be modified,  suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b)     the grant of Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the
Participant or any other person to receive future grants, or benefits;

(c)     all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d)      the  Restricted  Stock  Unit  grants  do  not  constitute  compensation  of  any  kind  for  services  of  any  kind  rendered  to  the
Company, its Affiliates and /or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;

(e)      no  provision  of  this  Agreement  or  the  Restricted  Stock  Units  granted  hereunder  shall  give  the  Participant  any  right  to
continue in the employ of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary, create any inference as to the length of employment of the Participant, affect the
right of an employer to terminate the employment of the Participant, with or without Cause, or give the Participant any right to participate in any employee
welfare or benefit plan or other program (other than the Plan);

(f)     if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant
shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the
loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g)      notwithstanding  any  terms  or  conditions  of  the  Plan  to  the  contrary,  in  the  event  of  termination  of  the  Participant’s
employment for any reason other than a Termination pursuant to which accelerated or continued lapsing of restrictions occurs as provided in Section 4
hereof  or  pursuant  to  which  such  termination  of  employment  is  deemed  not  to  be  a  Termination  in  the  Committee’s  discretion  under  the  Plan,  the
Participant’s right to receive Restricted Stock Units and vest in Restricted Stock Units under the Plan, if any, will terminate immediately on the date that
the Participant is no longer actively employed by the Company, any Affiliate or any Subsidiary, and, in any case, will not be extended by any notice period
mandated under local law (e.g., active employment would not include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h)     notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units granted hereunder shall be subject to any
special terms and conditions for Participant’s country set
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forth  in  the  Addendum attached hereto  as  Exhibit  A.  Moreover,  if  Participant  relocates  to  one of  the  countries  included in  the  Addendum,  the  special
terms and conditions for such country will apply to Participant, to the extent the Company determines that the application of such terms and conditions is
necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of this Agreement.

16.    Data Protection.

(a)     The  Participant  hereby  explicitly  and  unambiguously  consents  to  the  collection,  use  and  transfer,  in  electronic  or  other
form,  of  Participant’s  personal  data  as described in  this  document  by  and among,  as  applicable,  the  Company,  its  Affiliates  and its  Subsidiaries  (“the
Group”) for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b)      The  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  Group  holds  certain  personal  information  about  Participant,  including,  but  not
limited  to,  Participant’s  name,  home  address  and  telephone  number,  date  of  birth,  social  insurance  number  or  other  identification  number,  salary,
nationality,  job  title,  details  of  all  Options  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of  implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c)      The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  Data  may  be  transferred  to  any  third  parties  assisting  in  the
implementation, administration and management of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Participant’s country of residence or elsewhere,
and that the recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the
Company may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor,
and to the Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider. The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use,
retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in
the Plan, including any requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party with whom the Participant may elect to deposit
any Shares acquired.

(d)     The Participant  understands  that  Data  will  be  held  only  as  long as  is  necessary  to  implement,  administer  and manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by
contacting  in  writing  Participant’s  local  human  resources  representative.  The  Participant  understands,  however,  that  refusing  or  withdrawing  the
Participant’s consent will affect the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the Participant will not be able to participate in
the  Plan or  realize  benefits  (if  any)  from the  Restricted  Stock  Units.  The Participant  should  also  refer  to  the  Visa  Inc.  Global  Privacy  Policy  (which  is
available to Participant separately and may be updated from time to time) for more information regarding the collection, use, storage, and transfer of the
Participant’s Data.

17.    Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction.

In  order  to  maintain  uniformity  in  the  interpretation  of  this  Agreement  across  the  Company’s  operations  in  many  different
locations,  the parties have expressly agreed that  this Agreement shall  be governed by and enforced under the laws of  the State of  Delaware,  without
regard to any
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contrary  principles  of  conflict  of  laws  of  Delaware  or  another  state.  The  parties  further  agree  that  any  legal  action,  suit  or  proceeding  arising  from or
related to this Agreement shall be instituted exclusively in a state or federal court of competent jurisdiction located in Delaware. The parties consent to
the  personal  jurisdiction  of  such  Delaware  courts  over  them,  waive  all  objections  to  the  contrary,  and  waive  any  and  all  objections  to  the  exclusive
location of legal proceedings in Delaware (including, without limitation, any objection based on cost, convenience or location of relevant persons). The
parties further agree that there shall be a conclusive presumption that this Agreement has a significant, material and reasonable relationship to the State
of Delaware.

18.    Acceptance.

The Participant  must accept or reject Participant’s  award under this Agreement  no later  than ninety (90) days after  the Grant
Date (“Acceptance Period”). If the Participant accepts the award within the Acceptance Period, Participant will be deemed to have agreed to the terms
and  conditions  set  forth  in  this  Agreement,  the  terms  and  conditions  of  the  Plan,  and  the  Addendum  with  Additional  Country  Specific  Terms  and
Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this Agreement. If the Participant fails to accept the award under this Agreement during
the Acceptance Period, such award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such award.

EXHIBIT 10.6
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EXHIBIT 10.6

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Stock Option Award Agreement

This  Stock  Option  Award  Agreement  (this  “Agreement”),  dated  as  of  the  Grant  Date  set  forth  in  the  Notice  of  Option  Grant
attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Grant Notice”),  is made between Visa Inc. (the “Company”) and the Participant set forth in the Grant Notice. The
Grant Notice is included in and made part of this Agreement.

1.     Grant of the Option.

(a)    Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “Plan”),  the Company hereby grants  to  the Participant,  pursuant  to  the Plan,  the right  and option (the “Option”)  to  purchase all  or  any part  of  the
number of  shares of  Class A Common Stock of  the Company (“Shares”)  set  forth in the Grant  Notice at  the Option Price per Share and on the other
terms as set forth in the Grant Notice.

(b)    The Option is intended to be a Nonqualified Stock Option.

2.     Exercisability of the Option.

The  Option  shall  become  exercisable  in  accordance  with  the  exercisability  schedule  and  other  terms  set  forth  in  the  Grant
Notice.  The  Option  shall  terminate  on  the  tenth  anniversary  of  the  Grant  Date  stated  in  the  Grant  Notice  (the  “Expiration  Date”),  subject  to  earlier
termination as set forth in the Plan and this Agreement.

3.     Method of Exercise of the Option.

(a)    The Participant may exercise the Option, to the extent then exercisable, by delivering a written or electronic notice to the
Stock Plan Administrator in a form satisfactory to the Committee specifying the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised and
payment to the Company of the aggregate Option Price in accordance with Section 3(b).

(b)    At the time the Participant exercises the Option, the Participant shall pay the Option Price of the Shares as to which the
Option is being exercised to the Company, subject to such terms, conditions and limitations as the Committee may prescribe: (i) in cash or its equivalent;
(ii) by tendering (either by actual delivery or attestation) unencumbered Shares previously acquired by the Participant exercising such Option having an
aggregate  Fair  Market  Value  at  the  time  of  exercise  equal  to  the  total  Option  Price;  (iii)  a  cashless  (broker-assisted)  exercise  that  complies  with  all
applicable laws; (iv) withholding of Shares otherwise deliverable to the Participant pursuant to the Option having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the
time of exercise equal to the total Option Price; or (v) by a combination of the consideration provided for in the foregoing clauses (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv).

(c)     The  Company’s  obligation  to  deliver  the  Shares  to  which  the  Participant  is  entitled  upon  exercise  of  the  Option  is
conditioned on the Participant’s satisfaction in full to the Company of the aggregate Option Price of those Shares and the required tax withholding related
to such exercise.
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4.     Termination; Other Events.

Except  as  provided  below,  the  Option  shall  terminate  and  be  forfeited  upon  Termination  of  the  Participant,  and  upon  such
termination and forfeiture of the Option; no Shares may thereafter be purchased under the Option. The Participant acknowledges that an important and
material purpose of this Agreement, as a matter of the internal affairs of the Company, is to ensure that Participant’s interests and those of the Company
remain aligned. This is achieved by Participant agreeing to avoid Detrimental Activity during the life of the Option and for a period of twelve (12) months
after the later of Participant’s (i) Termination or (ii) receipt of cash payment(s) or Shares hereunder. Avoidance of Detrimental Activity in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement is understood to be a precondition to entitlement and retention of any award under this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything
contained in this Agreement, the Option shall not be exercised after the Expiration Date.

(a)    Termination by Participant. Upon Termination of the Participant by the Participant for any reason (other than a Termination
under circumstances described in paragraph (c), (d), (e) or (f) of this Section 4 or other than an event described in paragraph (b) of this Section 4), the
Option,  to  the  extent  exercisable  as  of  the  date  of  such  Termination,  shall  thereafter  be  exercisable  for  a  period  of  90  days  from  the  date  of  such
Termination or the Expiration Date,  if  earlier.  Any portion of  the Option that  is  not  exercisable as of  the date of  such Termination shall  be immediately
forfeited on such date. For the avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this
Section 4(a).

(b)     Death  and  Disability. In  the  event  of  the  Participant’s  death  or  Disability,  the  Option  shall  thereafter  be  immediately
exercisable  for  all  or  any  portion  of  the  full  number  of  Shares  available  for  purchase  under  the  Option  and  shall  remain  exercisable  until  the  third
anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier.

(c)    Retirement. Upon Termination of the Participant at or after attainment of age fifty-five and five years of completed service
and six  months  of  service  from the date  of  grant  (“Retirement”),  then the  Shares  subject  to  the  Option  shall  continue to  vest  according to  the  vesting
schedule set forth in the Grant Notice and the number of Shares of the award that have vested or become vested during this period will be available for
purchase under the Option until the third anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier.

(d)     Termination for  Cause. Upon Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the Company,  a  Subsidiary  or  an Affiliate  for  Cause (as
defined below), any portion of the Option, whether vested or unvested, that has not been exercised shall immediately terminate.

(e)     Termination  by  the  Company  without  Cause. Upon  Termination  of  the  Participant  by  the  Company  or  a  Subsidiary  or
Affiliate  without  Cause  (other  than  a  Termination  under  circumstances  described  in  paragraph  (c),  (d)  or  (e)  of  this  Section  4  or  other  than  an  event
described in paragraph (b) of this Section 4), (i) a portion of the Option shall vest and become exercisable as of the date of such Termination, determined
by multiplying the number of Shares subject to the Option by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days Participant was employed (including
the date of such Termination) during the full  vesting period and the denominator of which the number of days in the full  vesting period, reduced by the
number of Shares subject to the Option that have already vested by their terms prior to the date of such Termination and (ii) to the extent exercisable as of
the date of such Termination (including those Shares subject to the Option that become vested exercisable pursuant to this
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Section (4)(e)), the Option shall thereafter be exercisable for a period of 90 days from the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier. Any
portion of the Option that is not exercisable as of the date of such Termination (and that does not become vested and exercisable pursuant to this Section
4(e)) as of the date of such Termination) shall be immediately forfeited on such date. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not
apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(e) and (ii) if a Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (c) of
this Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise would experience a Termination pursuant to paragraph (a) or this paragraph (e) of this Section 4, the
Participant’s Termination shall be deemed a Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (c) with respect to the Option shall prevail and be given effect. In
the  event  the  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (c)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  dies  or  becomes
Disabled pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 4 or at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a Termination pursuant to paragraphs (d) or (f) of
this Section 4, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and paragraph (b), (d) or (f), as applicable, shall prevail and be given effect.

(f)    Change of Control. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of this Section 4, if a Change of Control occurs, and, at any time
prior to the second (2nd) anniversary of such Change of Control, the Participant incurs a Termination, either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate
without Cause, or by the Participant for Good Reason (as defined below), then the Option shall thereafter be exercisable for all or any portion of the full
number of Shares available for purchase under the Option until the first anniversary of the date of such Termination or the Expiration Date, if earlier. For
the avoidance of doubt, Section 15.1(b) of the Plan shall not apply to the Option to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(f).

(g)    Detrimental Activity. If, at any time during Participant’s employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within
the later of (i)  twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Termination or (ii)  twelve (12) months after Participant is delivered Shares or cash payment(s)
pursuant to the award under this Agreement, Participant engages in any Detrimental Activity, then the Company may rescind any portion of such award
distributed  to  the  Participant  within  the  twenty-four  (24)  month  period  immediately  prior  to  the  Participant’s  engagement  in  Detrimental  Activity  and/or
pursue any other remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, any portion of the Option, whether vested or unvested, that
has  not  been  exercised  shall  immediately  terminate  for  no  additional  consideration  by  the  Company  and  Participant  will  have  no  rights  in  same,  and
Participant  shall  immediately  repay  or  return  to  the  Company  any  cash  payment(s)  and  Shares  that  have  been  paid  or  issued  to  Participant  by  the
Company pursuant to this Agreement within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s engagement in Detrimental Activity. If
any such Shares are no longer held by Participant then Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time
they were sold or otherwise conveyed to another party by Participant. This Section 4(g) shall be construed to supplement, and not contradict, replace or
eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under Section 14, or otherwise available under applicable law.

(h)    Business Days. If the relevant date until which the Option would otherwise be exercisable specified in Section 4 (a), (b), (c),
(e) or (f) hereof is not a business day on which the main office of Visa Inc. is open for business, such relevant date shall be deemed to be the immediately
next following such business day for purposes of such section. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 4, in no event may the Option be
exercised after the Expiration Date.
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5.     Non-Transferability of the Option.

The Option shall not be transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and is exercisable, during the
lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant; provided, however, that the Company may, in its discretion, permit the Option to be transferred subject
to  such  conditions  and  limitations  as  the  Company  may  impose.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  during  the  Participant’s  lifetime,  the  Option  may  be
transferred to and exercised by the Participant’s former spouse pursuant to a domestic relations order which is approved by the Company, in accordance
with any procedures, and subject to any limitations, as the Company may prescribe and subject to applicable law.

6.     Taxes and Withholdings.

At the time of receipt of Shares upon the exercise of all or any part of the Option or such earlier date on which the value of the
Option otherwise becomes includible in the Participant’s gross income for income tax purposes or on which taxes are otherwise payable, the Participant
authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as defined below) with respect to such Option to be satisfied by the Company by any means to the extent
permitted  by the Plan and applicable  law,  including but  not  limited to  the following:  (1)  through a sale  arranged by the Company through a securities
broker (on the Participant's behalf pursuant to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the cash proceeds of
such sale to the Company, under which the Company is authorized and directed by the Participant to make payment from the cash proceeds of the sale
directly  to  the  appropriate  taxing  authorities  in  an  amount  equal  to  the  Tax  Withholding  Obligations;  (2)  withholding  Shares  otherwise  issuable  to  the
Participant upon exercise of the Option; provided, however, that the amount of any Shares so withheld shall not exceed the sum of all statutory maximum
rates in the Participant’s applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Option, as determined by the Company, subject to any limitations as the Committee
may prescribe and subject to applicable law, based on the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the payment date; or (3) withholding the Tax Withholding
Obligations  from  the  Participant’s  wages  or  other  cash  compensation  payable  to  the  Participant  by  the  Company,  a  Subsidiary,  or  an  Affiliate,  if
determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide
for alternative arrangements to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements in accordance with Article XVII of the Plan and applicable law.

Tax Withholding Obligations means the minimum tax or social insurance obligations required by law to be withheld in respect of
the Options, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in the case of a
Participant who is an “officer” of the Company as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated pursuant to the Exchange Act (or any successor rule), that such
Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).

Regardless of any action the Company, an Affiliate and/or a Subsidiary takes with respect to any or all tax withholding (including
social insurance contribution obligations, if any), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all such taxes is and remains the Participant’s
responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)  makes  any
representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any tax withholding in connection with any aspect of the Option, including the grant or vesting
thereof, the subsequent sale of Shares and the receipt of any dividends; or (b) commits to structure the terms of
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the Option or any aspect of the Option to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such tax.

7.     No Rights as a Shareholder.

Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the beneficial owner of the Shares subject to the Option, nor have any
rights to dividends or other rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until the Participant has actually received such Shares following the
exercise of the Option in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.

8.     No Right to Continued Employment.

Neither the Option nor any terms contained in this Agreement shall  confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in
accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in
the  employment  or  service  of  the  Company  or  any  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate  for  any  period  or  in  any  particular  position  or  at  any  particular  rate  of
compensation,  nor  restrict  in  any  way  the  right  of  the  Company  or  any  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate,  which  right  is  hereby  expressly  reserved,  to  modify  or
terminate the Participant’s  employment or service at any time for  any reason. The Participant  acknowledges and agrees that any right to exercise the
Option is earned only by continuing as an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate at the will of the Company or such Subsidiary or Affiliate,
or  satisfaction  of  any  other  applicable  terms  and  conditions  contained  in  the  Plan  and  this  Agreement,  and  not  through  the  act  of  being  hired,  being
granted the Option or acquiring Shares hereunder.

9.     The Plan.

By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant shall
be conclusively deemed to have indicated Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Plan. Unless defined herein, capitalized terms are used herein as defined in the Plan. Subject to Sections 4(a), 4(e) and 4(f) of this Agreement, in
the event  of  any conflict  between the provisions of  the Plan and this Agreement,  the provisions of  the Plan shall  control,  and this Agreement shall  be
deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by
reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing
the  Plan  can  be  found  on  the  Company’s  Human  Resources  intranet  site.  A  paper  copy  of  the  Plan  and  the  prospectus  shall  be  provided  to  the
Participant  upon  the  Participant’s  written  request  to  the  Company  at  900  Metro  Center  Blvd.,  Foster  City,  California  94404,  Attention:  Stock  Plan
Administrator.

10.    Certain Defined Terms.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a)    “Cause” means: (i) engaging in (A) willful or gross misconduct or (B) willful or gross neglect; (ii) the commission of a felony
or a crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate;
(iii) fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement; (iv) a material breach of the Participant’s employment
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agreement or offer letter (if any) with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (v) acts or omissions constituting a material failure to perform substantially
and adequately the duties assigned to the Participant (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); provided,
however, that following a Change of Control, any such failure will only serve as the basis for a Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act
detrimental to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b)    “Good Reason” means: (i) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity or annual long-
term incentive award opportunity, as applicable, in effect immediately prior to the Change of Control; (ii) the assignment to the Participant of any duties
inconsistent with the Participant’s positions (including status, offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities from those in
effect immediately prior to such Change of Control or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in any of the foregoing from those in effect
immediately prior to such Change of Control, or (iii) the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate requires the Participant to change the Participant’s principal
location of work to a location that is in excess of fifty (50) miles from the location thereof immediately prior to the Change of Control. Notwithstanding the
foregoing,  a  Termination  by  a  Participant  for  Good  Reason  shall  not  have  occurred  unless  (i)  the  Participant  gives  written  notice  to  the  Company,  a
Subsidiary  or  an  Affiliate,  as  applicable,  of  Termination  within  thirty  (30)  days  after  the  Participant  first  becomes  aware  of  the  occurrence  of  the
circumstances constituting Good Reason, specifying in reasonable detail the circumstances constituting Good Reason, (ii) the Company, the Subsidiary
or the Affiliate, as the case may be, has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the circumstances constituting Good Reason, and
(iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was given.

(c)    “Detrimental Activity” means: (i) providing services or material assistance to any payments business that is in competition
with  the  payments  business  of  the  Company  in  the  United  States  or  any  other  country  where  the  Company  does  business;  (ii)  soliciting  or  knowingly
inducing  a  Company  customer  that  Participant  had  material  dealings  with  or  was  provided  confidential  information  about  while  employed  with  the
Company to cease or reduce doing business with the Company or to divert a business opportunity related to the Company’s line of business to another
party;  or,  (iii)  soliciting or  knowingly  inducing an employee of  the Company that  Participant  gained knowledge of  while employed with  the Company to
leave the employment of the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of the Company
in the ordinary course of Participant’s employment duties for the Company, (ii) employment with an independently operated subsidiary, division, or unit of
a  diversified  corporation  so long as the independently  operated business unit  at  issue is  truly  independent  and does not  compete  in  any way with  the
Company; or, (iii) holding a passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded company.

(d)    “Disability” shall have the meaning of the Company’s or its Affiliate’s long-term disability plan under which the Participant is
covered from time to time, provided that, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Code Section 409A, a Disability
shall be deemed to have occurred only if such Disability constitutes a “disability” within the meaning of Code Section 409A.
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11.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a)    The Option and the obligation of the Company to sell and deliver Shares hereunder shall be subject in all respects to: (i) all
applicable  federal  and  state  laws,  rules  and  regulations;  and  (ii)  any  registration,  qualification,  approvals  or  other  requirements  imposed  by  any
government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or applicable. Moreover, the Option may
not be exercised if its exercise, or the receipt of Shares pursuant thereto, would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in
its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon any national securities exchange or under any state or federal law, or the consent
or approval of any governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable, the Company shall not be required to deliver any certificates for Shares to the
Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected
or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company.

(b)    It is intended that the Shares received upon the exercise of the Option shall have been registered under the Securities Act.
If the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant may not sell the
Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting
forth such restrictions on the disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.

(c)    If at the time of exercise of all or part of the Option, the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is
no current prospectus in effect under the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the
Participant by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, an agreement (in such form as the Company may specify) in which the Participant represents
and warrants that the Participant is purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant’s own account, for investment
only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of
such  Shares  shall  be  made  only  pursuant  to  either  (i)  a  registration  statement  on  an  appropriate  form  under  the  Securities  Act,  which  registration
statement  has  become  effective  and  is  current  with  regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration
requirements of the Securities Act, but in claiming such exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable
written  opinion,  in  form  and  substance  satisfactory  to  the  Company,  from  counsel  for  or  approved  by  the  Company,  as  to  the  applicability  of  such
exemption thereto.

12.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process.

Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and deemed given (a) three days after being
deposited  in  the  U.S.  mail,  first  class,  postage prepaid,  certified  receipt  requested,  or  (b)  when delivered by  a  nationally  recognized overnight  courier
which  provides  confirmation  of  delivery.  All  notices  by  the  Participant  or  the  Participant’s  successors  or  permitted  assigns  shall  be  addressed  to  the
Company at  900 Metro  Center  Blvd.,  Foster  City,  California  94404,  Attention:  Stock Plan Administration,  or  such other  address as the Company may
from time to time specify,  and any notice that  involves service of  legal  process on the Company shall  be directed to Company’s Registered Agent for
purposes of service of legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s
last known address in
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the Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in writing and in accordance with this Section 12.

13.    Other Plans.

The  Participant  acknowledges  that  any  income  derived  from  the  exercise  of  the  Option  shall  not  affect  the  Participant’s
participation in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

14.    Clawback Policy.

Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement  to  the  contrary,  any  cash  incentive  compensation  received  by  the
Participant, Option granted and/or Shares issued hereunder, and/or any amount received with respect to any sale of any such Shares, shall be subject to
potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company’s  Clawback  Policy,  as  it  may  be
amended from time to time (the “Policy”). The Participant agrees and consents to the Company’s application, implementation and enforcement of (a) the
Policy or any similar policy established by the Company that may apply to the Participant and (b) any provision of applicable law relating to cancellation,
rescission, payback or recoupment of compensation, and expressly agrees that the Company may take such actions as are necessary to effectuate the
Policy,  any similar  policy  (as applicable to  the Participant)  or  applicable law without  further  consent  or  action being required by the Participant.  To the
extent that the terms of this Agreement and the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of such policy shall prevail.

15.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a)      the  Plan is  established voluntarily  by  the Company,  it  is  discretionary  in  nature  and it  may be modified,  suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b)     the grant of the Options is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the Participant or
any other person to receive future grants of Options, or benefits in lieu of Options;

(c)     all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d)     the Options do not constitute compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company, its Affiliates and
/or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;

(e)     no provision of this Agreement or of the Option granted hereunder shall give the Participant any right to continue in the
employ  of  the  Company  or  any  Affiliate  or  Subsidiary,  create  any  inference  as  to  the  length  of  employment  of  the  Participant,  affect  the  right  of  an
employer to terminate the employment of the Participant, with or without Cause, or give the Participant any right to participate in any employee welfare or
benefit plan or other program (other than the Plan);

(f)     if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant
shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of
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office or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g)      notwithstanding  any  terms  or  conditions  of  the  Plan  to  the  contrary,  in  the  event  of  termination  of  the  Participant’s
employment  for  any  reason  other  than  a  Termination  pursuant  to  which  accelerated  or  continued  vesting  occurs  as  provided  in  Section  4  hereof  or
pursuant to which such termination of employment is deemed not to be a Termination in the Committee’s discretion under the Plan, the Participant’s right
to receive Options and vest in Options under the Plan, if any, will terminate immediately on the date that the Participant is no longer actively employed by
the  Company,  any  Affiliate  or  any  Subsidiary,  and,  in  any  case,  will  not  be  extended  by  any  notice  period  mandated  under  local  law  (e.g.,  active
employment would not include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h) notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement,  the Option granted hereunder shall  be subject to any special  terms and
conditions  for  Participant’s  country  set  forth  in  the  Addendum attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A.  Moreover,  if  Participant  relocates  to  one  of  the  countries
included in the Addendum, the special  terms and conditions for  such country  will  apply  to  Participant,  to  the extent  the Company determines that  the
application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons. The Addendum constitutes part of this Agreement.

16.    Data Protection.

(a)     The  Participant  hereby  explicitly  and  unambiguously  consents  to  the  collection,  use  and  transfer,  in  electronic  or  other
form,  of  Participant’s  personal  data  as described in  this  document  by  and among,  as  applicable,  the  Company,  its  Affiliates  and its  Subsidiaries  (“the
Group”) for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b)      The  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  Group  holds  certain  personal  information  about  Participant,  including,  but  not
limited  to,  Participant’s  name,  home  address  and  telephone  number,  date  of  birth,  social  insurance  number  or  other  identification  number,  salary,
nationality,  job  title,  details  of  all  Options  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of  implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c)      The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  Data  may  be  transferred  to  any  third  parties  assisting  in  the
implementation, administration and management of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Participant’s country of residence or elsewhere,
and that the recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the
Company may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor,
and to the Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider. The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use,
retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in
the Plan, including any requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party with whom the Participant may elect to deposit
any Shares acquired.

(d)     The Participant  understands  that  Data  will  be  held  only  as  long as  is  necessary  to  implement,  administer  and manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the
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storage and processing of  Data,  require  any necessary  amendments  to  Data or  refuse or  withdraw the consents  herein,  in  any case without  cost,  by
contacting  in  writing  Participant’s  local  human  resources  representative.  The  Participant  understands,  however,  that  refusing  or  withdrawing  the
Participant’s consent will affect the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the Participant will not be able to participate in
the  Plan  or  realize  benefits  (if  any)  from  the  Options.  The  Participant  should  also  refer  to  the  Visa  Inc.  Global  Privacy  Policy  (which  is  available  to
Participant separately and may be updated from time to time) for more information regarding the collection, use, storage, and transfer of the Participant’s
Data.

17.    Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction.

In  order  to  maintain  uniformity  in  the  interpretation  of  this  Agreement  across  the  Company’s  operations  in  many  different
locations,  the parties  have expressly  agreed that  this  Agreement  shall  be governed by and enforced under  the laws of  the State  of  Delaware,  without
regard to any contrary principles of conflict of laws of Delaware or another state. The parties further agree that any legal action, suit or proceeding arising
from  or  related  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  instituted  exclusively  in  a  state  or  federal  court  of  competent  jurisdiction  located  in  Delaware.  The  parties
consent  to  the  personal  jurisdiction  of  such  Delaware  courts  over  them,  waive  all  objections  to  the  contrary,  and  waive  any  and  all  objections  to  the
exclusive  location  of  legal  proceedings  in  Delaware  (including,  without  limitation,  any  objection  based  on  cost,  convenience  or  location  of  relevant
persons).  The  parties  further  agree  that  there  shall  be  a  conclusive  presumption  that  this  Agreement  has  a  significant,  material  and  reasonable
relationship to the State of Delaware.

18.    Acceptance.

    The Participant must accept or reject  Participant’s award under this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days after the Grant Date
(“Acceptance Period”). If  the Participant accepts the award within the Acceptance Period, Participant will  be deemed to have agreed to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the Addendum with Additional Country Specific Terms and Conditions
attached  as  Exhibit  A,  all  of  which  are  made  part  of  this  Agreement.  If  the  Participant  fails  to  accept  the  award  under  this  Agreement  during  the
Acceptance Period, such award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such award.

EXHIBIT 10.7
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EXHIBIT 10.7

Visa Inc.

2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

Performance Share Award Agreement

This Performance Share Award Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated [Insert Date] (the “Grant Date”), is by and between Visa Inc. (the
“Company”)  and <first_name>  <last_name> (the  “Participant”),  pursuant  to  the  Visa  Inc.  2007  Equity  Incentive  Compensation  Plan  (the  “Plan”).
Capitalized terms that are not defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Plan.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee has authorized the grant to the Participant of Performance Shares in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Participant and the Company desire to enter into this Agreement to evidence and confirm the grant of such Performance
Shares on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Participant and the Company agree as follows:

1. Grant of Performance Shares. Pursuant to the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the Company on the Grant Date has
granted  and  hereby  evidences  the  grant  to  the  Participant,  subject  to  the  terms  and  conditions  set  forth  herein,  in  the  Plan  and  the  Addendum  with
Additional Country Specific Terms and Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this Agreement, an award of <shares_awarded>
Performance Shares (this “Award”).

2. Payment of Earned and Vested Performance Shares. Subject to the provisions of this Section 2 and Sections 4, 5 and 6 of the
Agreement, the Payment Value of each Performance Share covered by this Award that has been determined, in writing, to be earned and vested pursuant
to Sections 3, 4(b) or 5 shall be paid or delivered to the Participant on a date that is as soon as administratively practicable (but no later than 60 days)
after the applicable vesting date described in Sections 3(b),  4(b) or 5 on which such Performance Share initially becomes vested. For purposes of this
Agreement, “Payment Value”  means  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  a  Share  on  the  applicable  vesting  date.  Payments  hereunder  shall  be  made in  Shares,
unless the Committee, in its discretion, determines to make such payments in cash or a combination of cash and Shares. The foregoing to the contrary
notwithstanding, if the Participant’s Separation from Service occurs under any circumstances other than death, any such payment due by reason of such
Separation  from  Service  shall  be  delayed  for  six  months  from  the  date  of  the  Participant’s  Separation  from  Service  if  the  Participant  is  a  “specified
employee” (as such term is defined in Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code) determined in accordance with the methodology established by the Company
as in effect on the date of such Separation from Service.

3. Performance Criteria and Vesting Applicable to Performance Shares.

(a) Performance Criteria.

(i)    Performance Cycle. The Performance Cycle for this Award shall end on [Insert Date].

(ii)    Performance Goals. The Performance Goals for this Award are (A) specified levels of the Company’s Earnings Per
Share (EPS) over the course of the Performance Cycle and (B) the total shareholder return of the Company ranked against the total shareholder return of
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companies that are included in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index (“S&P 500 Index”) as of the end of the applicable period used for purposes of calculating
this goal, as described below (“TSR Rank”). For this purpose, “Earnings Per Share” or “EPS” means the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Applicable Fiscal
Years] diluted earnings per share reported in its annual report on Form 10-K for the applicable years. The Committee, in its discretion, may determine to
adjust the results by excluding some or all of the effects of certain unusual items. “TSR Rank” means the aggregate total shareholder return on Shares
over the approximately three year period beginning [Insert Date] and ending on the day the Company’s earnings are announced following the close of the
Company’s [Insert  Fiscal  Year]  fiscal  year,  ranked against the total  shareholder return over the same three year period for each of the companies that
comprise the S&P 500 Index. Total shareholder return will be calculated using a beginning price equal to the trading volume weighted average price over
the period from [Insert Date] to [Insert Date], and an ending price equal to the trading volume weighted average price over the period beginning 14 trading
days  before  and  ending  15  trading  days  after  the  date  of  the  release  of  the  Company’s  fiscal  year  [Insert  Fiscal  Year]  earnings,  and  accounting  for
reinvestment of dividends over this period; provided, however, that if the date of the release of the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Fiscal Year] earnings is
fewer than 15 trading days prior to [Insert Date], then the ending price will be equal to the average price over the 30-trading day period ending on [Insert
Date]. For purposes of this provision, TSR will be calculated using the trading volume weighted average share price for Visa Inc. and the simple average
of the closing prices for the S&P 500.

(iii) Percentage  of  Performance  Shares  Earned.  Following  the  end  of  the  Performance  Cycle,  the  Committee  will
determine  the  extent  to  which  Performance  Shares  have  become earned  during  the  Performance  Cycle  according  to  the  product  of  the  results  of  the
following two schedules and accompanying descriptions:

Performance Level Earnings Per Share

Base Percentage of 
Performance 

Shares Earned

Less than $[insert] 0%
Threshold $[insert] 50%

Target $[insert] 100%
Maximum $[insert] or more 200%

The foregoing schedule sets forth the specific EPS goals for the Company’s fiscal year [Insert Fiscal Year]. The Committee shall determine the applicable
Threshold,  Target  and  Maximum  EPS  goals  for  the  remaining  two  years  of  the  Performance  Cycle  (fiscal  years  [Insert  Fiscal  Years])  based  on  the
Company’s  annual  operating  plan  for  the  applicable  year.  If  the  Earnings  Per  Share  for  an  applicable  year  of  the  Performance  Cycle  falls  between
Threshold and Target, or between Target and Maximum, then the percentage of Performance Shares earned shall be the sum of the Base Percentage of
Performance  Shares  Earned  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  lower  such  Performance  Level  plus  the  product  of  (A)  the  difference  between  the  Base
Percentage of Performance Shares Earned in the schedule above for the greater and lower such Performance Levels and (B) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the amount by
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which  the  Earnings  Per  Share  achieved  exceeds  the  Earnings  Per  Share  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  lower  such  Performance  Level  and  the
denominator of which is the difference between Earnings Per Share amounts in the schedule above for the greater and lower of such Performance Levels.
The Percentage of Performance Shares Earned with respect to Earnings Per Share for the Performance Cycle shall be determined based on the average
Base Percentage of Performance Shares Earned over the three years of the Performance Cycle and shall never exceed 200%.

Performance Level TSR Rank Adjustment Multiplier
Threshold 0 - 25% 75%

Target 50% 100%
Maximum 75% and above 125%

If the Performance Level for TSR Rank falls between Threshold and Target, or between Target and Maximum, then the Adjustment Multiplier shall be the
sum  of  the  Adjustment  Multiplier  in  the  schedule  above  for  the  lower  such  Performance  Level  plus  the  product  of  (A)  the  difference  between  the
Adjustment Multiplier in the schedule above for the greater and lower such Performance Levels and (B) a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount
by which the TSR Rank achieved exceeds the TSR Rank in the schedule above for the lower such Performance Level and the denominator of which is
the difference between TSR Ranks in the schedule above for the greater and lower of such Performance Levels. The Adjustment Multiplier for the TSR
Rank  shall  never  exceed  125%.  The  product  of  the  Base  Percentage  Performance  Shares  Earned  and  the  Adjustment  Multiplier  shall  be  limited  to  a
maximum of 200% and is then multiplied by the grant amount to determine the number of Performance Shares earned.

(iv)    Notification. As soon as practicable following the end of the Performance Cycle, the Participant shall be notified in
writing of the number of Performance Shares earned.

(b)     Vesting.  Subject  to  Sections  4,  5  and  6  of  this  Agreement,  all  of  the  Performance  Shares  that  are  earned  pursuant  to
Section 3(a) shall become vested on [Insert Date].

(c)    Separate Payments.    For purposes of this Award and Agreement, each amount to be paid hereunder shall be construed
as a separate identified payment for purposes of Section 409A of the Code.

4. Separation from Service.

(a) In  General.  Except  as  otherwise  provided  in  this  Section  4  or  in  Section  5  of  this  Agreement  or  in  the  Plan,  all
Performance Shares subject  to this Award that  have not become vested pursuant to Section 3(b) prior  to the date of  the Participant’s  Separation from
Service shall be immediately forfeited upon such Separation from Service.

(b) This Section 4(b) applies only in the event that (i) a Change of Control has not occurred prior to [Insert Date] , or (ii) a
Change of Control has occurred prior to[Insert Date] , but
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the Participant’s Separation from Service or death or Disability (as defined below) has not occurred within two years following the Change of Control:

(i)    Participant’s Death or Disability Before the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death or Disability
before  the  end of  the  Performance  Cycle,  then  the  Participant  shall  become vested,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  a  prorated  number  of  Performance  Shares
calculated  by  multiplying  the  number  of  Performance  Shares  that  would  have  been  both  earned  pursuant  to  Section  3(a)(iii),  and  vested  pursuant  to
Section 3(b), had the Participant remained employed through [Insert Date] by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full calendar days that
the  Participant  was  actively  employed  during  the  Performance  Cycle  and  the  denominator  of  which  is  the  total  number  of  calendar  days  in  the
Performance Cycle.

(ii)    Separation from Service by Reason of Retirement Before the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s
Separation from Service by the Participant at or after attainment of age fifty-five and five years of completed service and six months of service from the
date of grant (“Retirement”), then the Participant shall become fully vested, as of [Insert Date], in all of the Participant’s Performance Shares that would
have been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii), and vested pursuant to Section 3(b), had the Participant remained employed through [Insert Date].

(iii)     Separation  from  Service  by  Reason  of  Retirement  or  in  the  Event  of  Death  or  Disability  After  the  End  of  the
Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s Separation from Service by the Participant by reason of Retirement or in the event of the Participant’s death or
Disability, in either case after the end of the Performance Cycle, then the Participant shall be fully vested, as of the date of such Separation from Service,
death or Disability, or if later, as of [Insert Date] , in all of the Participant’s Performance Shares that had been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but had
not yet vested under Section 3(b) as of the date of such Separation from Service, death or Disability.

(iv)     Separation  from  Service  by  Reason  of  Termination  Without  Cause  Whether  Before  or  After  the  End  of  the
Performance  Cycle.  Upon  a  Participant’s  Separation  from  Service  whether  before  or  after  the  end  of  the  Performance  Cycle  by  the  Company,  a
Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below) then, as of the date of such Separation from Service, the Participant shall become vested in a
pro-rated portion of that number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned under Section 3(a)(iii), as of the end of the
Performance  Cycle,  based  on  the  deemed  achievement  of  the  Target  Performance  Level  (within  the  meaning  of  Section  3(a)(iii)),  determined  by
multiplying the number of Performance Shares subject to the Award by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days Participant was employed
(including the date of such Termination) during the full Performance Cycle and the denominator of which is the number of days in the Performance Cycle,
which  Performance  Share  Units  shall  be  paid  to  the  Participant  in  cash  based  on  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  a  Share  on  the  date  of  the  Participant’s
Termination, (i) 50% on the date of the Participant’s Termination and (ii) 50% on the first anniversary of the date of the Participant’s Termination. For the
avoidance of doubt, (A) Section 15.1(a) of the Plan shall not apply to the Performance Shares to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 4(b)
(iv);  (B)  if  a  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (b)(ii)  or  (b)(iii)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  would
experience  a  Termination  pursuant  to  this  paragraph  (b)(iv)  of  this  Section  4,  the  Participant’s  Termination  shall  be  deemed  a  Retirement  and  the
provisions of paragraph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii), as applicable, with respect to the Performance Shares shall prevail and be given effect; and (C) if a Participant is
eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (b)(ii)  of  this  Section  4  at  the  time  the  Participant  otherwise  dies  or  experiences  a  Disability  pursuant  to
paragraph (b)(i)of this Section 4, the Participant shall be deemed to

4
    



have had a Termination by reason of Retirement and the provisions of paragraph (b)(ii)  of this Section 4 with respect to the Performance Shares shall
prevail  and  be  given  effect;  provided  that  for  purposes  of  this  subparagraph  (C),  in  determining  whether  a  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement,  the
requirement  that  a  Participant’s  Termination  by reason of  Retirement  occur  at  least  six  months following the date of  grant  shall  be disregarded.  In  the
event the Participant is eligible for Retirement pursuant to paragraph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) of this Section 4 at the time the Participant otherwise experiences a
Termination by the Company for Cause at any time, such Termination shall not be deemed a Retirement and such Termination for Cause shall prevail and
be given effect.

(v)     Other than upon Death or Disability or Other than due to a Separation from Service Without Cause or by Reason
of  Retirement  Before  or  After  the  End  of  the  Performance  Cycle:  Other  than  upon  Participant’s  death  or  Disability  or  a  Participant’s  Separation  from
Service other than without Cause or by reason of Retirement, whether before or after the end of the Performance Cycle, any and all of the Performance
Shares that have not vested as the date of a Participant’s Separation from Service shall be forfeited.

5. Change of Control.

(a)    This Section 5(a) applies (i) only in the event that (A) a Change of Control has occurred prior to [Insert Date], and (B) the
Participant’s Separation from Service has occurred within two years following the Change of Control, and (ii) notwithstanding any provision in Sections 2,
3 or 4 of this Agreement to the contrary:

(i)    Death or Disability or Separation from Service Without Cause, for Good Reason or by Reason of Retirement Before
the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death or Disability or Separation from Service before the end of the Performance Cycle either (A)
by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate without Cause (as defined below), (B) by the Participant for Good Reason (as defined below) or (C) by the
Participant by reason of Retirement, then, as of the date of such Separation from Service, death or Disability, the Participant will become vested in that
number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned under Section 3(a)(iii), as of the end of the Performance Cycle, based
on the deemed achievement of the Target Performance Level (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(iii)).

(ii)    Death or Disability or Separation from Service without Cause, for Good Reason or by Reason of Retirement After
the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s death, Disability or Separation from Service (A) either by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate
without Cause, (B) by the Participant for Good Reason or (C) by the Participant by reason of Retirement, in each case after the end of the Performance
Cycle,  then  the  Participant  shall  be  fully  vested,  as  of  such  Separation  from  Service,  death  or  Disability,  or  if  later,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  all  of  the
Participant’s Performance Shares that have been earned pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but have not yet vested under Section 3(b); provided, however, that
if the Change of Control had occurred prior to the end of the Performance Cycle, then the Participant shall become vested, as of such Separation from
Service  or  death  or  Disability,  or,  if  later,  as  of  [Insert  Date],  in  the  greater  of  (I)  all  of  the  Participant’s  Performance  Shares  that  have  been  earned
pursuant to Section 3(a)(iii) but have not yet vested under Section 3(b) as of the date of such Separation from Service or death or Disability, and (II) that
number of Performance Shares subject to this Award that would have been earned as of the end of the Performance Cycle under Section 3(a)(iii), based
on the deemed achievement of the Target Performance Level (within the meaning of Section 3(a)(iii)).
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(iii)    Other than upon Death or Disability or in the Event of a Separation from Service by the Company for Cause or by
the Participant Other than by Reason of Good Reason or Retirement, Whether Before or After the End of the Performance Cycle: Upon a Participant’s
Separation from Service, whether before or after the end of the Performance Cycle, (A) by the Company for Cause, or (B) by the Participant other than for
Good Reason or Retirement or other than upon Participant’s death or Disability, then any of the Performance Shares that have not vested as the date of
such Separation from Service or death or Disability shall be forfeited.

(b)     For purposes of this Agreement, no Change of Control shall be deemed to have occurred unless it constitutes a “change in
the ownership or effective control of the corporation, or in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the corporation” within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code.

(c)      For  the  avoidance  of  doubt,  Section  15.1(b)  of  the  Plan  shall  not  apply  to  the  Performance  Shares  subject  to  this
Agreement to the extent such provision conflicts with this Section 5, but the applicable provisions of Article XV of the Plan shall otherwise apply to this
Agreement.  In  the  event  the  Participant  is  eligible  for  Retirement  pursuant  to  paragraph  (a)(i)  or  (a)(ii)  of  this  Section  5  at  the  time  the  Participant
otherwise experiences a Termination by the Company for Cause as set forth in paragraph (a)(iii) of this Section 5, such Termination shall not be deemed
a Retirement and the Participant’s Termination by the Company for Cause shall prevail and be given effect.

6.     Detrimental Activity.  The Participant  acknowledges that  an important  and material  purpose of  this  Agreement,  as a  matter  of  the
internal  affairs  of  the  Company,  is  to  ensure  that  Participant’s  interests  and  those  of  the  Company  remain  aligned.  If,  at  any  time  during  Participant’s
employment by the Company, any Affiliate or a Subsidiary or within the later of (i) twelve (12) months after the Participant’s Separation from Service or (ii)
twelve  (12)  months  after  Participant  is  delivered  the  Payment  Value  pursuant  to  Section  2,  Participant  engages  in  any  Detrimental  Activity,  then  the
Company may rescind any portion of the Award distributed to the Participant within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s
engagement in Detrimental Activity and/or pursue any other remedies allowed under applicable law. In the event of such a rescission, Participant’s then
outstanding  Performance  Shares  will  be  cancelled  for  no  additional  consideration  by  the  Company  and  Participant  will  have  no  rights  in  same,  and
Participant  shall  immediately  repay  or  return  to  the  Company  any  cash  payment(s)  and  Shares  that  have  been  paid  or  issued  to  Participant  by  the
Company pursuant to this Agreement within the twenty-four (24) month period immediately prior to the Participant’s engagement in Detrimental Activity. If
any such Shares are no longer held by Participant then Participant shall pay the Company a sum equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time
they were sold  or  otherwise conveyed to  another  party  by Participant.  This  Section 6 shall  be construed to supplement,  and not  contradict,  replace or
eliminate, any remedies available to the Company under Section 18, or otherwise available under applicable law.

7.     Restrictions  on  Transfer.  Performance  Shares  may  not  be  sold,  assigned,  hypothecated,  pledged  or  otherwise  transferred  or
encumbered in any manner except (a) by will or the laws of descent and distribution or (b) as otherwise permitted pursuant to the Plan.

8.     Dividend  Equivalents.  Each  Performance  Share  subject  to  this  Award  shall  entitle  the  Participant  to  Dividend  Equivalents  with
respect  to  regular  cash  dividends  that  would  otherwise  be  paid  on  one  Share  during  the  period  from  the  date  such  Performance  Share  is  earned  in
accordance with Section 3(a) to the date such Performance Share is paid in accordance with Section 2 or forfeited in
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accordance with Section 4 or 5. Any such Dividend Equivalent shall be paid to the Participant at (or within thirty (30) days following) the time such related
dividends are paid to holders of Shares.

9.    No Rights as a Shareholder Prior to Issuance of Shares. Neither the Participant nor any other person shall become the beneficial
owner of any Shares that may become payable with respect to the Performance Shares subject to this Award, nor have any rights to dividends or other
rights as a shareholder with respect to any such Shares, until and after such Shares, if any, have been actually issued in satisfaction of the Company’s
obligations under this Award, in the time and manner specified in Section 2, and such Shares are transferred on the books and records of the Company or
its agent in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement.

10.     Taxes  and  Withholding.  When  the  value  of  any  Performance  Shares  becomes  includible  in  the  Participant’s  gross  income  for
income tax purposes or when taxes on the Performance Shares are otherwise payable. the Participant authorizes any Tax Withholding Obligations (as
defined below) with respect to the Performance Shares to be satisfied by the Company by any means to the extent permitted by the Plan and applicable
law, including but not limited to the following: (1) through a sale arranged by the Company through a securities broker (on the Participant's behalf pursuant
to this authorization) without further consent from the Participant and the remittance of the cash proceeds of such sale to the Company, under which the
Company is authorized and directed by the Participant to make payment from the cash proceeds of the sale directly to the appropriate taxing authorities in
an amount equal to the Tax Withholding Obligations; (2) withholding Shares or cash otherwise deliverable or payable to the Participant pursuant to this
Award, provided, however,  that  the  amount  of  any  Shares  so  withheld  shall  not  exceed  the  sum  of  all  statutory  maximum  rates  in  the  Participant’s
applicable jurisdiction with respect to the Performance Shares, as determined by the Company, subject to any limitations as the Committee may prescribe
and  subject  to  applicable  law,  based  on  the  Fair  Market  Value  of  the  Shares  on  the  payment  date  (“Net  Settlement”);  or  (3)  withholding  the  Tax
Withholding Obligations from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation payable to the Participant by the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate,
if determined to be necessary or appropriate by the Company. The Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide
for  alternative  arrangements  to  satisfy  applicable  tax  withholding requirements  in  accordance with  Article  XVII  of  the Plan,  including,  without  limitation,
requiring the Participant  to pay to the Company a cash amount  equal  to the Tax Withholding Obligations.  However,  to the extent  any Tax Withholding
Obligations are required by law to be withheld with respect to the Performance Shares covered by this Award prior to the date such Performance Shares
are paid in accordance with Section 2, the Participant shall be required to pay to the Company in cash the amount of such taxes promptly following written
notice thereof by the Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if the Participant is at the time of an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, or has been
in the six-month period preceding an issuance of Shares pursuant hereto, an “officer” of the Company as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated pursuant
to  the  Exchange  Act  (or  any  successor  rule)(a  “Section  16  Officer”),  then  the  Company  shall  use  Net  Settlement  to  satisfy  such  Participant’s  Tax
Withholding  Obligations,  unless  otherwise  determined  by  the  Committee  or  the  Board.  However,  to  the  extent  any  Tax  Withholding  Obligations  are
required by law to be withheld with respect  to the Performance Shares covered by this  Award prior  to the date such Performance Shares are paid in
accordance  with  Section  2,  such  Participant  shall  instead  be  required  to  pay  to  the  Company  in  cash  the  amount  of  the  Tax  Withholding  Obligations
promptly following written notice thereof by the Company, unless otherwise determined by the Committee or the Board.
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Tax Withholding Obligations means the minimum tax or social insurance obligations required by law to be withheld in respect of
the Performance Shares, or such other withholding amount (a “Greater Amount”), up to the sum of all applicable statutory maximum rates (provided, in
the case of a Participant who is a Section 16 Officer, that such Greater Amount is approved in advance by the Committee or the Board).

Regardless  of  any  action  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary  takes  with  respect  to  any  or  all  tax  withholding
(including social insurance contribution obligations, if  any),  the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all  such taxes is and remains the
Participant’s  responsibility  (or  that  of  the  Participant’s  beneficiary,  if  applicable),  and  that  none  of  the  Company,  an  Affiliate  and  /or  a  Subsidiary:  (a)
makes any representations  or  undertakings  regarding the treatment  of  any tax  withholding in  connection  with  any aspect  of  the  Performance Shares,
including  the  grant  or  vesting  thereof,  the  subsequent  sale  of  Shares  and  the  receipt  of  any  dividends;  or  (b)  commits  to  structure  the  terms  of  the
Performance Shares or any aspect of the Performance Shares to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s (or the Participant’s beneficiary’s) liability for such
tax.

11.     No  Right  to  Continued  Employment.  Neither  the  Performance  Shares  covered  by  this  Award  nor  any  terms  contained  in  this
Agreement shall confer upon the Participant any rights or claims except in accordance with the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and
shall not give the Participant any express or implied right to be retained in the employment or service of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate for any
period or in any particular position or at any particular rate of compensation, nor restrict in any way the right of the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate,
which  right  is  hereby  expressly  reserved,  to  modify  or  terminate  the  Participant’s  employment  or  service  at  any  time  for  any  reason.  The  Participant
acknowledges and agrees that any right to vesting of this Award is earned only by continuing as an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary or Affiliate
at  the  will  of  the  Company  or  such  Subsidiary  or  Affiliate,  or  satisfaction  of  any  other  applicable  terms  and  conditions  contained  in  the  Plan  and  this
Agreement, and not through the act of being hired or being granted this Award.

12.    The Plan. By accepting any benefit under this Agreement, the Participant and any person claiming under or through the Participant
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Participant’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, all of the terms and conditions of the Plan
and this Agreement and any action taken under the Plan by the Board, the Committee or the Company, in any case in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Plan. Subject to Section 5(c) of this Agreement, in the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the
provisions of the Plan shall control, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accordingly. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, provisions
and conditions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference, and to such rules, policies and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by
the Committee. The Plan and the prospectus describing the Plan can be found on the Company’s Human Resources intranet site. A paper copy of the
Plan and the prospectus shall be provided to the Participant upon the Participant’s written request to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City,
California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator.

13.    Certain Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a) “Cause”  means:  (i)  engaging  in  (A)  willful  or  gross  misconduct  or  (B)  willful  or  gross  neglect;  (ii)  the  commission  of  a
felony or a crime of moral turpitude, dishonesty, breach of
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trust or unethical business conduct, or any crime involving the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate; (iii) fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement; (iv) a
material  breach of  the Participant’s  employment  agreement  or  offer  letter  (if  any)  with  the Company,  a Subsidiary  or  an Affiliate;  (v)  acts  or  omissions
constituting a material  failure to  perform substantially  and adequately  the duties assigned to the Participant  (other  than any such failure resulting from
incapacity  due to physical  or  mental  illness); provided, however,  that  following a Change of  Control,  any such failure will  only  serve as the basis  for  a
Termination for Cause if it is willful; or (vi) any illegal act detrimental to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate.

(b) “Good Reason” means:  (i)  a diminution in the Participant’s  annual  base salary,  annual  incentive opportunity  or  annual
long-term incentive  award opportunity,  as  applicable,  in  effect  immediately  prior  to  the Change of  Control;  (ii)  the assignment  to  the Participant  of  any
duties  inconsistent  with  the  Participant’s  positions  (including  status,  offices,  titles  and  reporting  requirements),  authority,  duties  or  responsibilities  from
those in effect immediately prior to such Change of Control or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in any of the foregoing from those in
effect immediately prior to such Change of Control, or (iii)  the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate requires the Participant to change the Participant’s
principal  location  of  work  to  a  location  that  is  in  excess  of  fifty  (50)  miles  from  the  location  thereof  immediately  prior  to  the  Change  of  Control.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Termination by a Participant for Good Reason shall not have occurred unless (i) the Participant gives written notice to the
Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, as applicable, of Termination within thirty (30) days after the Participant first becomes aware of the occurrence of
the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  specifying  in  reasonable  detail  the  circumstances  constituting  Good  Reason,  (ii)  the  Company,  the
Subsidiary or the Affiliate, as the case may be, has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the circumstances constituting Good
Reason, and (iii) the date of Participant’s Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date such notice was given.

(c) “Detrimental  Activity”  means:  (i)  providing  services  or  material  assistance  to  any  payments  business  that  is  in
competition with the payments business of the Company in the United States or any other country where the Company does business; (ii)  soliciting or
knowingly inducing a Company customer that Participant had material dealings with or was provided confidential information about while employed with
the  Company  to  cease  or  reduce  doing  business  with  the  Company  or  to  divert  a  business  opportunity  related  to  the  Company’s  line  of  business  to
another  party;  or,  (iii)  soliciting  or  knowingly  inducing  an  employee  of  the  Company  that  Participant  gained  knowledge  of  while  employed  with  the
Company to leave the employment of the Company. Detrimental Activity is not intended to include (i) duly authorized activity undertaken for the benefit of
the  Company  in  the  ordinary  course  of  Participant’s  employment  duties  for  the  Company,  (ii)  employment  with  an  independently  operated  subsidiary,
division, or unit of a diversified corporation so long as the independently operated business unit at issue is truly independent and does not compete in any
way with the Company; or, (iii) holding a passive and non-controlling ownership interest of less than 5% of the stock or other securities of a publicly traded
company.

(d) “Disability” shall have the meaning of the Company’s or its Affiliate’s long-term disability plan under which the Participant
is covered from time to time, provided that, to the extent required to avoid accelerated taxation and/or tax penalties under Code Section 409A, a Disability
shall be deemed to have occurred only if such Disability constitutes a “disability” within the meaning of Code Section 409A.
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(e) “Separation from Service” means a Termination (as defined in the Plan) that qualifies as a separation from service under
Section 409A of the Code.

14.    Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

(a) The Performance Shares subject to this Award and the obligation of the Company to deliver Shares or cash payments
hereunder shall be subject in all respects to (i) all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations; and (ii) any registration, qualification, approvals
or other requirements imposed by any government or regulatory agency or body which the Committee shall, in its discretion, determine to be necessary or
applicable. Moreover, the Company shall not deliver any certificates for Shares to the Participant or any other person pursuant to this Agreement if doing
so would be contrary to applicable law. If at any time the Company determines, in its discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of Shares upon
any  national  securities  exchange  or  under  any  state  or  federal  law,  or  the  consent  or  approval  of  any  governmental  regulatory  body,  is  necessary  or
desirable,  the  Company  shall  not  be  required  to  deliver  any  certificates  for  Shares  to  the  Participant  or  any  other  person  pursuant  to  this  Agreement
unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval has been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for, free of any conditions
not acceptable to the Company.

(b) It is intended that any Shares received pursuant to this Agreement shall have been registered under the Securities Act. If
the Participant is an “affiliate” of the Company, as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”), the Participant may not sell the
Shares received except in compliance with Rule 144. Certificates representing Shares issued to an “affiliate” of the Company may bear a legend setting
forth such restrictions on the disposition or transfer of the Shares as the Company deems appropriate to comply with federal and state securities laws.

(c) If at any time the Shares are not registered under the Securities Act, and/or there is no current prospectus in effect under
the Securities Act with respect to the Shares, the Participant shall execute, prior to the delivery of any Shares to the Participant by the Company pursuant
to  this  Agreement,  an  agreement  (in  such  form as  the  Company  may  specify)  in  which  the  Participant  represents  and  warrants  that  the  Participant  is
purchasing or acquiring the Shares acquired under this Agreement for the Participant's own account, for investment only and not with a view to the resale
or distribution thereof, and represents and agrees that any subsequent offer for sale or distribution of any kind of such Shares shall be made only pursuant
to either (i) a registration statement on an appropriate form under the Securities Act, which registration statement has become effective and is current with
regard  to  the  Shares  being  offered  or  sold;  or  (ii)  a  specific  exemption  from  the  registration  requirements  of  the  Securities  Act,  but  in  claiming  such
exemption the Participant shall, prior to any offer for sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable written opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company, from counsel for or approved by the Company, as to the applicability of such exemption thereto.

15.    Notices and Consent to Service of Process. Any notice or other communication provided for hereunder shall be made in writing and
deemed given (a) three days after being deposited in the U.S. mail,  first  class, postage prepaid, certified receipt requested, or (b) when delivered by a
nationally recognized overnight courier which provides confirmation of delivery. All notices by the Participant or the Participant’s successors or permitted
assigns shall be addressed to the Company at 900 Metro Center Blvd., Foster City, California 94404, Attention: Stock Plan Administrator, or such other
address  as  the  Company  may  from  time  to  time  specify,  and  any  notice  that  involves  service  of  legal  process  on  the  Company  shall  be  directed  to
Company’s Registered Agent for purposes of service of

10
    



legal process. All notices and service of legal process to the Participant shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participant’s last known address in the
Company's records or such forwarding address as Participant may provide to the Company in writing and in accordance with this Section 15.

16.    Other Plans. The Participant acknowledges that any income derived from this Award shall not affect the Participant’s participation
in, or benefits under, any other benefit plan or other contract or arrangement maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate.

17.    Acceptance or Rejection of this Award. To accept or reject your Award, please complete the on-line form ("Accept or Reject Your
Grant")  as promptly  as possible,  but,  in  any case,  within ninety (90)  days after  the Grant  Date.  If  you accept  your  Award,  you will  be deemed to have
agreed  to  the  terms  and  conditions  set  forth  in  this  Agreement  and  the  terms  and  conditions  of  the  Plan  and  the  Addendum  with  Additional  Country
Specific Terms and Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this award Agreement. If you do not accept your Award within ninety
(90)  days  after  the  Grant  Date,  it  may  be  cancelled.  Your  Agreement  is  available  to  you  online  in  your  Merrill  Benefits  Online  account  via  this  link:
https://benefits.ml.com.

18.    Clawback Policy. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any cash incentive compensation received
by  the  Participant,  Performance  Shares  granted  and/or  Shares  issued  hereunder,  and/or  any  amount  received  with  respect  to  any  sale  of  any  such
Shares,  shall  be  subject  to  potential  cancellation,  recoupment,  rescission,  payback  or  other  action  in  accordance  with  the  terms  of  the  Company's
Clawback  Policy,  as  it  may  be  amended  from  time  to  time  (the  "Policy").   The  Participant  agrees  and  consents  to  the  Company's  application.
implementation  and  enforcement  of  (a)  the  Policy  or  any  similar  policy  established  by  the  Company  that  may  apply  to  the  Participant  and  (b)  any
provision of applicable law relating to cancellation,  rescission,  payback or recoupment of  compensation,  and expressly agrees that the Company may
take such actions as are necessary to effectuate the Policy, any similar policy (as applicable to the Participant) or applicable law without further consent
or action being required by the Participant. To the extent that the terms of this Agreement and the Policy or any similar policy conflict, then the terms of
such policy shall prevail.

19.    Rights of Participant.

In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it  is discretionary in nature and it  may be modified, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, as provided in the Plan and this Agreement;

(b) the grant of the Award is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right for the Participant
or any other person to receive future grants of Performance Shares, or benefits in lieu of Performance Shares;

(c) all decisions with respect to any future grants will be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(d) the Performance Shares do not constitute compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company,
its Affiliates and /or Subsidiaries, and are not part of the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment;
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(e) no  provision  of  this  Agreement  or  of  the  Award  shall  give  the  Participant  any  right  to  continue  in  the  employ  of  the
Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary, create any inference as to the length of employment of the Participant, affect the right of an employer to terminate
the employment of the Participant, with or without Cause, or give the Participant any right to participate in any employee welfare or benefit plan or other
program (other than the Plan);

(f) if the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate or Subsidiary for any reason, the Participant
shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office or otherwise howsoever to any sum or other benefit to compensate the Participant for the
loss of any rights under this Agreement or the Plan;

(g) notwithstanding any terms or conditions of the Plan to the contrary, in the event of Participant’s Separation from Service
for any reason other than a Separation from Service pursuant to which accelerated or continued vesting occurs as provided in Sections 4 or 5 hereof, the
Participant’s  right  to  receive  the  Performance  Shares  and  vest  in  Performance  Shares  under  the  Plan,  if  any,  will  terminate  immediately  upon  such
Separation  from  Service,  and,  in  any  case,  will  not  be  extended  by  any  notice  period  mandated  under  local  law  (e.g.,  active  employment  would  not
include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); and

(h) notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement,  the Performance Shares granted hereunder shall  be subject  to any
special terms and conditions for Participant’s country set forth in the Addendum attached hereto as Exhibit A. Moreover, if Participant relocates to one of
the countries included in the Addendum, the special terms and conditions for such country will apply to Participant, to the extent the Company determines
that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons.

20.    Data Protection.

(a) The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer,  in electronic or other
form,  of  Participant’s  personal  data  as  described  in  this  document  by  and  among,  as  applicable,  the  Company,  its  Affiliates  and  its  Subsidiaries  (“the
Group”) for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Participant’s participation in the Plan.

(b) The  Participant  acknowledges  that  the  Group  holds  certain  personal  information  about  Participant,  including,  but  not
limited  to,  Participant’s  name,  home  address  and  telephone  number,  date  of  birth,  social  insurance  number  or  other  identification  number,  salary,
nationality,  job  title,  details  of  all  Performance  Shares  or  any  other  entitlement  to  Shares  outstanding  in  the  Participant’s  favor,  for  the  purpose  of
implementing, administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

(c) The  Participant  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  Data  may  be  transferred  to  any  third  parties  assisting  in  the
implementation, administration and management of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Participant’s country of residence or elsewhere,
and that the recipient’s country of residence may have different data privacy laws and protections than those of the Participant’s country. In particular, the
Company may transfer Data to the broker or stock plan administrator assisting with the Plan, to the Company’s legal counsel and tax/accounting advisor,
and to the Subsidiary or Affiliate that is Participant’s employer and its payroll provider.  The Participant authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use,
retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the
Plan,
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including any requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party with whom the Participant may elect to deposit any Shares
acquired.

(d) The Participant understands that Data will  be held only as long as is necessary to implement,  administer and manage
Participant’s participation in the Plan. The Participant understands that the Participant may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about
the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by
contacting  in  writing  Participant’s  local  human  resources  representative.  The  Participant  understands,  however,  that  refusing  or  withdrawing  the
Participant’s consent will affect the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan; without providing consent, the Participant will not be able to participate in
the  Plan  or  realize  benefits  (if  any)  from  the  Performance  Shares.   The  Participant  should  also  refer  to  the  Visa  Inc.  Global  Privacy  Policy  (which  is
available to Participant separately and may be updated from time to time) for more information regarding the collection, use, storage, and transfer of the
Participant’s Data.

21.    Choice of Law and Forum / Consent to Jurisdiction. In order to maintain uniformity in the interpretation of this Agreement across
the Company’s operations in many different locations, the parties have expressly agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by and enforced under
the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to any contrary principles of conflict of laws of Delaware or another state. The parties further agree that
any  legal  action,  suit  or  proceeding  arising  from  or  related  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  instituted  exclusively  in  a  state  or  federal  court  of  competent
jurisdiction located in Delaware. The parties consent to the personal jurisdiction of such Delaware courts over them, waive all objections to the contrary,
and waive any and all  objections to the exclusive location of legal proceedings in Delaware (including, without limitation,  any objection based on cost,
convenience or location of relevant persons). The parties further agree that there shall be a conclusive presumption that this Agreement has a significant,
material and reasonable relationship to the State of Delaware.

22.    Acceptance. The Participant must accept or reject Participant’s award under this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days after the
Grant Date (“Acceptance Period”). If the Participant accepts the Award within the Acceptance Period, Participant will be deemed to have agreed to the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the Addendum with Additional Country Specific Terms and
Conditions attached as Exhibit A, all of which are made part of this Agreement. If the Participant fails to accept the Award during the Acceptance Period,
the Award may be cancelled and of no further effect, in which case the Participant shall have no rights to such Award.

EXHIBIT 10.8
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EXHIBIT 10.8

VISA INC.

EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN

The purposes of  the Visa Inc.  Executive Severance Plan (this  “Plan”)  are to secure the continued services of  selected key
senior executives of Visa Inc. (the “Company”), provide these executives with certain benefits in the event of a Covered Termination
(as defined in Section 2) and encourage their continued dedication to their duties notwithstanding the possibility, threat or occurrence
of a Change of Control (as defined in Section 2) of the Company. In addition, the Board (as defined in Section 2) believes that it is
consistent with the Company’s employment practices and policies and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to
treat fairly its employees whose employment terminates under certain circumstances. Therefore, in order to fulfill the above purposes,
the Plan is hereby adopted.

1. Establishment of Plan.

The Company established the Plan effective as of November 3, 2010, which was amended and restated as of January 1, 2022
(the “Effective Date”).

2. Definitions

Certain terms used herein have definitions given to them in the first place in which they are used. For purposes of this Plan,
the following terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below:

(a) “Affiliated Entities” shall mean any subsidiaries or controlled affiliates of the Company.

(b) “Annual Base Salary” shall mean the Participant’s annual base salary paid or payable, including any base salary that
is  subject  to  deferral,  to  the  Participant  by  the  Company  and the  Affiliated  Entities  at  the  rate  in  effect  (or  required  to  be  in  effect
before  any  diminution  that  is  the  basis  of  the  Participant’s  termination  for  Good  Reason)  at  the  time  the  Notice  of  Termination  is
delivered to the Company.

(c) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(d) “Cause” shall mean (i) the failure of the Participant to perform the Participant’s duties with the Company or one of its
Affiliated  Entities  (other  than  any  such  failure  resulting  from incapacity  due  to  physical  or  mental  illness); provided, however,  that
following a Change of  Control,  any such failure  will  only  serve as the basis  for  a  termination for  Cause if  it  is  willful;  (ii)  the willful
engaging by the Participant in illegal conduct or gross misconduct that is materially and demonstrably injurious to the Company; (iii)
the Participant’s  conviction of,  or  plea of  guilty  or nolo contendere to,  a  charge of  commission of  a  felony;  or  (iv)  the Participant’s
disclosure of confidential information in violation of the Company’s written policies that is demonstrably injurious to the Company.



    For purposes of the definition of Cause, no act or failure to act, on the part of the Participant, shall be considered “willful” unless it
is done, or omitted to be done, by the Participant in bad faith or without reasonable belief that the Participant’s action or omission was
in the best interests of the Company. Any act, or failure to act, based upon (A) authority given pursuant to a resolution duly adopted
by the Board or, if the Company is not the ultimate parent corporation and is not publicly traded, the board of directors of the ultimate
parent of the Company (the “Applicable Board”) or (B) the advice of counsel for the Company, shall be conclusively presumed to be
done, or omitted to be done, by the Participant in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. The cessation of employment
of the Participant shall not be deemed to be for Cause unless and until there shall have been delivered to the Participant a copy of a
resolution duly adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the entire membership of the Applicable Board (excluding
the Participant, if the Participant is a member of the Applicable Board) at a meeting of the Applicable Board called and held for such
purpose (after reasonable notice is provided to the Participant and the Participant is given an opportunity, together with counsel, to be
heard  before  the  Applicable  Board),  finding  that,  in  the  good-faith  opinion  of  the  Applicable  Board,  the  Participant  is  guilty  of  the
conduct described in clause (i), (ii) or (iv) above, and specifying the particulars thereof in detail.

(e) “Change of Control” shall have the meaning set forth in the Visa Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, as
amended or amended and restated from time to time, or any successor plan adopted by the Company.

(f) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

(g)  “Compensation Committee”  shall  mean,  subject  to  Section 9(c),  the Compensation Committee of  the Board or  its
duly authorized designee.

(h) “Covered  Termination”  shall  mean  either  that  (i)  the  Participant’s  employment  with  the  Company  is  involuntarily
terminated by the Company without Cause at any time after the Participant’s Eligibility Date or (ii) the Participant has resigned from
the Company for Good Reason during the two-year period following a Change of Control that occurs after the Participant’s Eligibility
Date.

(i) “Date of Termination” shall mean (i) if  the Participant’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause, or by
the Participant with or without Good Reason, the date of receipt of the Notice of Termination or any later date specified therein within
thirty  (30)  days  of  such  notice,  as  the  case  may  be,  or  (ii)  if  the  Participant’s  employment  is  terminated  by  the  Company  without
Cause (and not due to Disability), the date on which the Company notifies the Participant of such termination. The Company and the
Participant shall take all steps necessary (including with regard to any post-termination services by the Participant) to ensure that any
termination under this Plan constitutes a “separation from service” within the meaning
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of  Section  409A,  and,  notwithstanding  anything  contained  herein  to  the  contrary,  the  date  on  which  such  separation  from service
takes place shall be the “Date of Termination.”

(j) “Disability”  shall  have the meaning set forth for such term (or for the term of similar import)  in the Company’s or its
Affiliated Entity’s long-term disability plan under which the Participant is covered from time to time.

(k) “Eligibility Date” shall mean, with respect to each Participant, the Eligibility Date set forth in such Participant’s Letter
Agreement.

(l) “Good Reason”  shall  mean  (in  the  absence  of  the  written  consent  of  the  Participant)  the  occurrence  of  any  of  the
following  events  or  circumstances  during  the  two-year  period  following  a  Change  of  Control  that  occurs  after  the  Participant’s
Eligibility Date:

(i) the  assignment  to  the  Participant  of  any  duties  inconsistent  with  the  Participant’s  positions  (including  status,
offices,  titles  and reporting  requirements),  authority,  duties  or  responsibilities  from those in  effect  immediately  prior  to  such
Change  of  Control  or  any  action  by  the  Company  that  results  in  a  diminution  in  any  of  the  foregoing  from  those  in  effect
immediately prior to such Change of Control, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent action not
taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the Participant;

(ii) (I) a diminution in the Participant’s annual base salary, annual incentive opportunity (including a decrease in the
Participant’s  Target  Incentive  Payment)  or  annual  long-term incentive  award  opportunity  from the Participant’s  base salary,
annual  incentive  opportunity  (including  the  Participant’s  Target  Incentive  Payment)  or  annual  long-term  incentive  award
opportunity,  as  applicable,  in  effect  immediately  prior  to  the  Change of  Control  or  (II)  the  Company’s  failure  to  provide  the
Participant with (1) an annual long-term incentive award opportunity on the same basis as, and with terms and conditions that
are, as favorable as those that apply to other executive officers of the Company or (2) employee benefits, fringe benefits and
perquisites that are as favorable as those provided to other executive officers of the Company.

(iii) the  Company’s  transfer  of  the  Participant’s  primary  office  by  more  than  fifty  (50)  miles  from the  Participant’s
primary office location immediately prior to the Change of Control;

(iv) any material breach of this Plan or the Participant’s Letter Agreement by the Company; or
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(v) any failure by the Company to obtain the assumption and agreement to perform this Plan by a successor as
contemplated by Section 12 of this Plan, except where such assumption and agreement occurs by operation of law.

Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  a  termination  by  a  Participant  for  Good  Reason  shall  not  have  occurred  unless  (i)  the  Participant
provides a Notice of Termination to the Company within thirty (30) days after the Participant first becomes aware of the occurrence of
the  circumstances constituting  Good Reason,  specifying  in  reasonable  detail  the  circumstances  constituting  Good Reason,  (ii)  the
Company has failed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the circumstances constituting Good Reason and (iii)
the Participant’s Date of Termination occurs no later than sixty (60) days after the date of the Notice of Termination.

The Participant’s mental or physical incapacity following the occurrence of an event described above in clauses (i) through (v) shall
not affect the Participant’s ability to terminate employment for Good Reason and the Participant’s death following delivery of a Notice
of Termination for Good Reason shall not affect the Participant’s estate’s entitlement to any severance payments or benefits under
Section 4(b) of this Plan.

(m) “Letter Agreement”  shall  mean the letter  from the Company to  a  selected executive notifying such executive of  his
selection for participation in this Plan.

(n) “Notice of Termination” shall mean a written notice delivered to the other party hereunder in accordance with Section
14  which  (i)  indicates  the  specific  clause  of  the  definition  of  Cause  or  Good  Reason  relied  upon;  (ii)  if  applicable,  sets  forth  in
reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of a Participant’s employment for Cause or
Good Reason under the provision so indicated;  and (iii)  if  the Date of  Termination is other than the date of  receipt  of  such notice,
specifies the termination date (which date shall not be more than sixty (60) days after the giving of such notice). The failure by the
Participant or by the Company to set forth in the Notice of Termination any fact or circumstance that contributes to a showing of Good
Reason or Cause shall not waive any right of the Participant or the Company, respectively, hereunder or preclude the Participant or
the  Company,  respectively,  from  asserting  such  fact  or  circumstance  in  enforcing  the  Participant’s  or  the  Company’s  rights
hereunder.

(o) “Participant” shall mean an executive of the Company who meets all of the eligibility requirements of Section 3.

(p) “Section 409A” shall mean Section 409A of the Code.

(q) “Target Incentive Payment”  shall  mean the amount equal to the product of  (i)  the Participant’s Annual Base Salary
and (ii) the target incentive payment percentage applicable to the Participant under the Visa Inc. Incentive Plan (or any substitute or
successor plan thereto) for the fiscal year of the Company in which the Date of Termination occurs (if no such target
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percentage has been established for such fiscal year, the target incentive payment percentage applicable to the Participant for the
immediately  preceding  fiscal  year  of  the  Company),  or,  following  a  Change  of  Control,  for  the  fiscal  year  of  the  Company  ending
immediately prior to such Change of Control if use of this percentage results in a higher amount.

3. Eligibility.

(a) Initial Participation.  An executive  is  eligible  for  the benefits  provided under  this  Plan only  if  (i)(A)  the executive  is  or
becomes a member of the Company’s executive committee, unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee or (B) the
Compensation Committee otherwise designates the executive as eligible to participate in this Plan, (ii) such executive delivers to the
Company a properly executed copy of the Letter Agreement confirming the executive’s eligibility for this Plan and agreement to the
terms of the Plan and the Letter Agreement within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof, and (iii) such executive is an employee of the
Company  or  one  of  its  Affiliated  Entities  on  the  applicable  Eligibility  Date.  Subject  to  the  foregoing,  the  executive  will  become  a
Participant on the Eligibility Date applicable to such executive. For the avoidance of doubt, any executive who becomes eligible for
benefits  under  this  Plan  pursuant  to  subsection  (i)  above  by  virtue  of  being  a  member  of  the  executive  committee  and  who
subsequently ceases to be a member of the executive committee shall continue to be eligible for benefits under this Plan unless the
Compensation Committee otherwise determines to revoke the executive's eligibility under the Plan.

(b) Duration  of  Participation.  A  Participant  shall  cease  to  be  a  Participant  in  this  Plan  and  such  Participant’s  Letter
Agreement  shall  have  no  further  force  and  effect,  if  (i)  he  ceases  to  be  employed  by  the  Company  or  an  Affiliated  Entity  for  any
reason other than a Covered Termination, or (ii)  his status as a Participant ceases due to the Company providing such Participant
with a notice pursuant to the Letter Agreement of non-renewal of participation. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (A) if
a Change of Control occurs while a designated executive is a Participant in the Plan, in no event will his status as a Participant end
prior to the end of the two-(2-) year period beginning on the date on which any such Change of Control occurs (other than as a result
of such Participant ceasing to be employed by the Company or an Affiliated Entity for any reason other than a Covered Termination),
and (ii) a Participant who is entitled as a result of a Covered Termination to receive Severance Benefits (as defined below) under this
Plan shall remain a Participant in this Plan until the amounts and benefits payable under this Plan have been paid or provided to the
Participant in full.

4. Severance Benefits.

(a) General.  A  Participant  will  become  entitled  to  severance  benefits  under  Section  4(b)  of  this  Plan  (the  “Severance
Benefits”) if such Participant incurs a Covered Termination. A Participant will not be eligible for Severance Benefits under this Plan if
the Participant’s active
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employment has terminated by reason of (i) the Participant’s resignation without Good Reason, (ii) the Participant’s death or (iii) the
Participant’s  termination  of  employment  for  Cause  or  due  to  Disability.  The  Severance  Benefits  shall  be  determined  pursuant  to
Section  4(b)  and  shall  be  considered  “paid  leave  in  lieu  of  notice”  in  accordance  with  the  requirements  of  the  Federal  Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 et seq.) and any similar state worker protection law.

(b) Company’s Obligations upon a Covered Termination of the Participant. If the Participant incurs a Covered Termination,
subject to the Participant’s execution of a “Waiver and Release” substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (which form
may be modified by the Company only to the extent the Company determines in good faith that any such modification is necessary to
make it valid and encompassing under applicable law) (the “Waiver and Release”) and such Waiver and Release being delivered to
the Company no later than fifty (50) days after the Date of Termination and not being revoked within the time period set forth therein
(provided that the Waiver and Release shall not be required for receipt of payment of the Accrued Obligations and Other Benefits),
the Company shall pay or provide to the Participant the following payments and benefits as set forth below (in each case, subject to
Section 13, including, without limitation, any delay of payment as provided in Section 13(c)):

(i) the cash payments set forth in clauses (I) through (III) below at the times set forth below (subject to Section 13):

(I) a lump sum cash payment equal to the sum of (1) the Participant’s Annual Base Salary through
the  Date  of  Termination  to  the  extent  not  theretofore  paid,  (2)  any  annual  incentive  payment  earned  by  the
Participant  for  a  prior  award  period  to  the  extent  not  theretofore  paid  and  not  deferred,  (3)  any  accrued  and
unused vacation pay and (4) any business expenses incurred by the Participant that are unreimbursed as of the
Date  of  Termination  (the  sum  of  the  amounts  described  in  clauses  (1),  (2),  (3)  and  (4)  shall  be  hereinafter
referred to as the “Accrued Obligations”), to be paid within thirty (30) days of the Date of Termination;

(II) an incentive payment in respect of the Participant’s service during the fiscal year of the Company
(the “Fiscal Year”)  in  which the Date of  Termination occurs,  as determined by the Compensation Committee
under  the  terms  of  the  Visa  Inc.  Incentive  Plan  (or  any  substitute  or  successor  plan  thereto)  (the  “Incentive
Plan”), including the achievement of any applicable performance goals, on the same basis as other executive
officers of the Company and taking into account the Participant’s Target Incentive Payment opportunity for such
Fiscal Year,
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and pro-rated based on a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days that have elapsed in the Fiscal
Year in which the Date of Termination occurs as of the Date of Termination, and the denominator of which is
365 (the “Pro Ration Fraction”); provided, however, that if the Covered Termination occurs after a Change of
Control of the Company, the Participant shall be entitled to a payment in respect of the Fiscal Year in which the
Date of Termination occurs equal to the product of (1) the Participant’s Target Incentive Payment and (2) the
Pro Ration Fraction,  with  any such payment  to be paid in  a lump sum in cash at  such time as the Company
otherwise  makes  incentive  payments  for  such  Fiscal  Year,  but  in  no  event  later  than  two  and  a  half  (2-1/2)
months following the end of the Fiscal Year for which the annual incentive payment is awarded; and

(III) the amount equal to two (2) times the sum of (1) the Participant’s Annual Base Salary and (2) the
Participant’s Target Incentive Payment, to be paid in a lump sum in cash on the sixty-fifth (65th) day following
the Date of Termination; and

(ii) The Company shall provide the Participant and his eligible dependents with a taxable lump sum payment equal
to  the  cost  of  obtaining  continued  health  care  benefits  under  the  Company’s  health  care  benefits  program pursuant  to  the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder
(“COBRA”)  for  two  (2)  years  following  the  Date  of  Termination.  The  Participant  may  opt  to  apply  this  payment  toward  the
applicable  premium  to  continue  his  or  her  coverage  under  Company-sponsored  healthcare  coverage  plans  pursuant  to
COBRA or may use it in any other manner.  The Participant is responsible for timely and properly electing continued coverage
under COBRA and paying the full amount of the applicable COBRA premium. Such lump sum cash payment shall be paid on
the sixty-fifth (65th) day following the Date of Termination.

(iii) To the extent not theretofore paid or provided, the Company shall timely pay or provide to the Participant any
other amounts or benefits required to be paid or provided or that the Participant is eligible to receive under any plan, program,
policy  or  practice  or  contract  or  agreement  of  the  Company  and  the  Affiliated  Entities  through  the  Date  of  Termination,
including, without limitation, any rights in respect of outstanding equity awards, and, to the extent the Participant satisfies any
“retirement” based rule of any of the foregoing that provides for more beneficial  treatment to the Participant,  the Participant
shall  be  afforded  the  more  beneficial  treatment  (such  other  amounts  and  benefits  and  more  beneficial  treatment  shall  be
hereinafter referred to as the “Other Benefits”).

7



(c) Effect  of  Termination  on  Other  Positions.  Except  as  may  otherwise  be  requested  by  the  Board,  if,  on  the  Date  of
Termination, the Participant is a member of the Board or the board of directors of any of the Company’s subsidiaries, or holds any
other position with the Company or its subsidiaries, the Participant shall be deemed to have resigned from all such positions as of the
Date  of  Termination.  The  Participant  shall  execute  such  documents  and take  such  other  actions  as  the  Company  may request  to
reflect such resignations.

5. Limitation on Payments Under Certain Circumstances.

(a) Anything in  this  Plan  to  the  contrary  notwithstanding,  if  the  Accounting Firm (as  defined below)  shall  determine that
receipt  of  all  Payments  (as  defined  below)  would  subject  the  Participant  to  the  excise  tax  under  Section  4999  of  the  Code,  the
Accounting Firm shall determine whether to reduce any of the Payments paid or payable pursuant to this Plan (the “Plan Payments”)
so that the Parachute Value (as defined below) of all Payments, in the aggregate, equals the Safe Harbor Amount (as defined below).
The Plan Payments shall be so reduced only if the Accounting Firm determines that the Participant would have a greater Net After-
Tax Receipt (as defined below) of aggregate Payments if the Plan Payments were so reduced. If the Accounting Firm determines that
the Participant would not have a greater Net After-Tax Receipt of aggregate Payments if  the Plan Payments were so reduced, the
Participant shall receive all Plan Payments to which the Participant is entitled hereunder.

(b) If the Accounting Firm determines that aggregate Plan Payments should be reduced so that the Parachute Value of all
Payments, in the aggregate, equals the Safe Harbor Amount, the Company shall  promptly give the Participant notice to that effect
and a copy of the detailed calculation thereof. All determinations made by the Accounting Firm under this Section 5 shall be binding
upon the Company and the Participant and shall be made as soon as reasonably practicable and in no event later than fifteen (15)
days following the Date of Termination. For purposes of reducing the Plan Payments so that the Parachute Value of all Payments, in
the  aggregate,  equals  the  Safe  Harbor  Amount,  only  cash  amounts  payable  under  this  Plan  (and  no  other  Payments)  shall  be
reduced. The reduction of the amounts payable hereunder, if applicable, shall be made by reducing the cash payments (to the extent
such amounts are considered Payments)  under the following sections in the following order:  (1)  the Plan Payments under Section
4(b)(i)(III)  and (2) any other cash Plan Payments that would be made upon a termination of the Participant’s employment and that
have a Parachute Value, beginning with the payments that would be made last in time. All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm
shall be borne solely by the Company.

(c) As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the Code at the time of the initial determination by
the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that amounts will have been paid or distributed by the Company to or for the benefit of
the Participant pursuant to
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this Plan that should not have been so paid or distributed (“Overpayment”) or that additional amounts which will have not been paid
or  distributed by  the Company to  or  for  the  benefit  of  the  Participant  pursuant  to  this  Plan could  have been so paid  or  distributed
(“Underpayment”),  in  each  case  consistent  with  the  calculation  of  the  Safe  Harbor  Amount  hereunder.  In  the  event  that  the
Accounting  Firm,  based  upon  the  assertion  of  a  deficiency  by  the  Internal  Revenue  Service  against  either  the  Company  or  the
Participant that the Accounting Firm believes has a high probability of success, determines that an Overpayment has been made, the
Participant shall pay promptly (and in no event later than sixty (60) days following the date on which the Overpayment is determined)
any such Overpayment to the Company together with interest at the applicable federal short-term rate in effect under Section 1274(d)
of  the  Code compounded semiannually  (“Interest”); provided, however,  that  no  amount  shall  be  payable  by  the  Participant  to  the
Company  if  and  to  the  extent  such  payment  would  not  either  reduce  the  amount  on  which  the  Participant  is  subject  to  tax  under
Section 1 and Section 4999 of the Code or generate a refund of such taxes. If the Accounting Firm, based upon controlling precedent
or substantial authority, determines that an Underpayment has occurred, any such Underpayment shall be paid promptly (and in no
event later than sixty (60) days following the date on which an Underpayment is determined) by the Company to or for the benefit of
the Participant together with Interest.    

(d) To the extent requested by the Participant, the Company shall cooperate with the Participant in good faith in valuing,
and the Accounting Firm shall take into account the value of, services provided or to be provided by the Participant (including, without
limitation, the Participant’s agreeing to refrain from performing services pursuant to a covenant not to compete or similar covenant)
before,  on  or  after  the  date  of  a  change  in  ownership  or  control  of  the  Company  (within  the  meaning  of  Q&A-2(b)  of  the  final
regulations  under  Section  280G  of  the  Code),  such  that  payments  in  respect  of  such  services  may  be  considered  reasonable
compensation within the meaning of Q&A-9 and Q&A-40 to Q&A-44 of the final regulations under Section 280G of the Code and/or
exempt  from the definition  of  the  term “parachute  payment”  within  the  meaning of  Q&A-2(a)  of  the  final  regulations  under  Section
280G of the Code in accordance with Q&A-5(a) of the final regulations under Section 280G of the Code.

(e) Section 5 Definitions. The following terms shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Section 5.

(i) “Accounting Firm”  shall  mean a nationally  recognized certified public  accounting firm that  is  selected by the
Company for purposes of making the applicable determinations under Section 5 and reasonably acceptable to the Participant,
which firm shall  not, without the Participant’s consent, be a firm serving as accountant or auditor for the individual, entity or
group effecting the change of control.
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(ii) “Net After-Tax Receipt” shall mean the present value (as determined in accordance with Sections 280G(b)(2)
(A)(ii)  and  280G(d)(4)  of  the  Code)  of  a  Payment  net  of  all  taxes  imposed  on  the  Participant  with  respect  thereto  under
Sections 1 and 4999 of the Code and under applicable state and local laws, determined by applying the highest marginal rate
under  Section  1  of  the  Code  and  under  state  and  local  laws  that  applied  to  the  Participant’s  taxable  income  for  the
immediately  preceding  taxable  year,  or  such  other  rate(s)  as  the  Accounting  Firm  determined  to  be  likely  to  apply  to  the
Participant in the relevant tax year(s).

(iii) “Parachute  Value”  of  a  Payment  shall  mean  the  present  value  as  of  the  date  of  the  change  of  control  for
purposes of Section 280G of the Code of the portion of such Payment that constitutes a “parachute payment” under Section
280G(b)(2) of the Code, as determined by the Accounting Firm for purposes of determining whether and to what extent the
excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code will apply to such Payment.

(iv) “Payment” shall mean any payment, distribution or benefit in the nature of compensation (within the meaning of
Section  280G(b)(2)  of  the  Code)  to  or  for  the  benefit  of  the  Participant,  whether  paid  or  payable  pursuant  to  this  Plan  or
otherwise.

(v) “Safe  Harbor  Amount”  means  (x)  3.0  times  the  Participant’s  “base  amount,”  within  the  meaning  of  Section
280G(b)(3) of the Code, minus (y) $1.00.

6. Relation to Other Plans.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in a Participant’s Letter Agreement, by signing the Letter Agreement, the Participant
recognizes and agrees that any prior retention, severance or similar plan of the Company that might apply to the Participant is hereby
revoked  and  ineffective  as  to  the  Participant  and  that  in  no  event  shall  the  Participant  be  entitled  to  payments  or  benefits  under
another plan or program of the Company or its Affiliated Entities that are duplicative of the payments and benefits provided under this
Plan.

7. Participants’ Covenants.

(a) Return of Company Property. All records, files, memoranda, reports, customer information, client lists, documents and
equipment relating to the business of the Company which the Participant prepares, possesses or comes into contact with while the
Participant  is  an  employee  of  the  Company  shall  remain  the  sole  property  of  the  Company.  The  Participant  agrees  that  upon  the
termination of his employment, he shall provide to the Company all documents, papers, files or other material in his possession and
under  his  control  that  are  connected  with  or  derived from his  services  to  the  Company.  The Participant  agrees  that  the  Company
owns all  work product, patents, copyrights and other material produced by the Participant during the Participant’s employment with
the Company.

(b) Confidential Information. The Participant shall not at any time, whether during the Participant’s employment or following
the termination of the Participant’s employment, for
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any  reason  whatsoever,  directly  or  indirectly,  disclose  or  furnish  to  any  entity,  firm,  corporation  or  person,  except  as  otherwise
required by law, any confidential or proprietary information of the Company with respect to any aspect of its operations, business or
clients. “Confidential or proprietary information” shall mean information generally unknown to the public to which the Participant
gains access by reason of the Participant’s employment by the Company and includes, but is not limited to, information relating to all
present or potential customers, business and marketing plans, sales, trading and financial data and strategies and operational costs.
The foregoing list  is  not  exhaustive and “confidential  and proprietary information” also includes other information that  is  marked or
otherwise  identified  as  confidential  or  proprietary,  or  that  would  otherwise  appear  to  a  reasonable  person  to  be  confidential  or
proprietary  in  the  context  and  circumstances  in  which  the  information  is  known  or  used.  Participant  shall  treat  all  “confidential  or
proprietary information” as strictly confidential and not disclose or use any such information that a Participant acquired, developed or
created by reason of the Participant’s employment, except (i) if compelled by a valid subpoena or as otherwise required by law but in
any case, and to the extent permitted by law, only after providing the Company with prior written notice as soon as practicable and
with  reasonable  opportunity  to  contest  such  subpoena  or  other  requirement  for  information,  (ii)  for  information  that  is  or  becomes
publicly available other than through Participant’s breach of any of the Participant’s obligations to the Company, (iii) pursuant to 18
U.S.C.  Section 1833(b).  Pursuant  to  18 U.S.C.  Section  1833(b),  Participants  shall  not  be held  criminally  or  civilly  liable  under  any
federal  or  state  trade  secret  law  for  the  disclosure  of  a  trade  secret  that  is  made:  (1)  in  confidence  to  a  federal,  state,  or  local
government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney, and solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected
violation of law; or (2) in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. If a
Participant files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of law, the Participant may disclose the
Company’s  trade  secret  to  an  attorney  and  use  the  trade  secret  information  in  the  court  proceeding  if  Participant:  (1)  files  any
document containing the trade secret under seal; and (2) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order. Nothing
in this Plan prohibits or restricts a Participant from initiating communications directly with, responding to any inquiry from, or providing
information  to  or  testimony  before,  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Commission,  Department  of  Justice,  or  any  other  governmental
agency  or  self-regulatory  organization,  about  actual  or  potential  violations  of  laws  or  regulations,  and  the  Participant  shall  not  be
required  to  obtain  the  Company’s  prior  authorization  before  engaging  in  such  communications,  nor  is  any  Participant  required  to
inform the Company about such communications.

(c) Nonsolicitation. While the Participant is employed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, except in the performance
of his duties to the Company hereunder, and for eighteen months following the termination of the Participant’s employment for any
reason or no reason, the Participant shall not, directly or indirectly: (i) solicit or induce, or cause others to
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solicit  or induce, any employees of the Company to leave the Company or in any way modify their relationship with the Company;
(ii)  encourage  or  assist  in  the  hiring  process  of  any  employees  of  the  Company  or  in  the  modification  of  any  such  employee’s
relationship  with  the  Company,  or  cause  others  to  participate,  encourage  or  assist  in  the  hiring  process  of  any  employees  of  the
Company; or (iii)  solicit the trade or patronage of any clients or customers or any prospective clients or customers of the Company.

(d) Remedies. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the purposes of the foregoing covenants are to protect
the  goodwill  and  confidential  or  proprietary  information  of  the  Company  and  to  prevent  the  Participant  from  interfering  with  the
business of the Company as a result of or following termination of the Participant’s employment with the Company; (ii) because of the
nature  of  the  business  in  which  the  Company  and  its  affiliates  are  engaged  and  because  of  the  nature  of  the  confidential  and
proprietary information to which the Participant has access, it  would be impractical and excessively difficult to determine the actual
damages to the Company if the Participant breached any of the covenants of this Section 7; (iii) remedies at law (such as monetary
damages)  for  any  breach  of  the  Participant’s  obligations  under  this  Section  7  would  be  inadequate;  and  (iv)  the  terms  of  the
covenants are sufficiently limited to protect the legitimate interests of the Company and impose no undue hardship on the Participant.
The  Participant  therefore  agrees  and  consents  that  if  he  commits  any  breach  of  a  covenant  under  this  Section  7  or  threatens  to
commit any such breach, the Company shall have the right (in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other right or remedy that may be
available to it) to temporary and permanent injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction located in the State of California, or
in any state in which the Participant resides, without posting any bond or other security and without the necessity of proof of actual
damage. With respect to any provision of this Section 7 finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable,
the Participant and the Company hereby agree that such court shall have jurisdiction to reform this Plan or any provision hereof so
that it  is enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law, and the parties agree to abide by such court’s determination. If  any
covenant of this Section 7 is determined to be wholly or partially unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such determination shall not be a
bar to or in any way diminish the Company’s rights to enforce any such covenant in any other jurisdiction. In no event may a breach
or  threatened  breach  of  the  covenants  in  this  Section  7  constitute  a  basis  for  the  Company  to  suspend  the  Participant’s  right  to
receive any payments or benefits to which he is otherwise entitled under this Plan.

(e) Participant will  continue to be bound by the confidentiality,  intellectual property and non-solicitation provisions of any
Confidential  Information  and  Property  Agreement,  Proprietary  Information  Agreement  and/or  any  similar  agreement  previously
executed by the
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Participant  and the confidentiality  provisions of  the Company’s Code of  Conduct.  If  the terms of  such agreements and this section
conflict, the terms of the agreement shall prevail.

8. Claims Procedures.

(a) Disputes.  If  any  Participant  (or  his  beneficiary  or  estate)  (a  “claimant”)  believes  that  Severance  Benefits  are  being
denied improperly or that the claimant’s legal rights are being violated with respect to this Plan, the claimant must file a claim with the
Plan Administrator (as defined in Section 9) within the time period set forth in Section 8(b). The Plan Administrator will handle all such
claims in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 8(c). This requirement applies to all claims that any claimant has with
respect to this Plan, except to the extent the Plan Administrator determines, in its sole discretion, that it does not have the power to
grant all relief reasonably being sought by the claimant.

(b) Time for Filing Claims.  A claim must  be filed within ninety (90)  days after  the date the claimant  first  knew or  should
have known of the facts on which the claim is based, unless the Company consents otherwise in writing. The Plan Administrator will
provide a claimant, on request, with a copy of the claims procedures established under subsection 8(c).

(c) Procedures. If the Plan Administrator does not offer a Participant the payment of Severance Benefits under this Plan
within ten (10) days after the Participant terminates employment, the Participant must file a claim for benefits on a form prescribed by
the Plan Administrator and within the time frame set forth in subsection 8(b) above. If the claimant’s claim for a benefit is wholly or
partially  denied,  the  Plan  Administrator  will  furnish  the  claimant  with  a  written  notice  of  the  denial.  This  written  notice  must  be
provided  to  the  claimant  within  a  reasonable  period  of  time  after  the  receipt  of  the  claimant’s  claim  by  the  Plan  Administrator
(generally  within  ninety  (90)  days  after  receipt  by  the  Plan  Administrator  of  the  claimant’s  claim  for  review  unless  special
circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim, in which case a period not to exceed one hundred and eighty
(180) days after receipt by the Plan Administrator of the claimant’s claim for review). If such an extension of time is required, written
notice of the extension will be furnished to the claimant prior to the termination of the initial ninety- (90-) day period, which will indicate
the  special  circumstances  requiring  the  extension.  Written  notice  of  denial  of  the  claimant’s  claim  must  contain  the  following
information: (i) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (ii)  a specific reference to those provisions of this Plan on which such
denial  is  based;  (iii)  a  description  of  any  additional  information  or  material  necessary  to  perfect  the  claimant’s  claim,  and  an
explanation of why such material or information is necessary; and (iv) a copy of the appeals procedures under this Plan and the time
limits applicable to such procedures, including a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil
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action under Section 502(a) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) following an adverse
determination of the claimant’s claim.

If the claimant’s claim has been denied and the claimant wishes to submit his request for a review of his claim, the claimant
must follow the following claims review procedure:

(i) Upon the denial of his claim for benefits, the claimant may file his request for review of his claim, in writing, with
the Plan Administrator or claims processor;

(ii) The claimant must file the claim for review not later than sixty (60) days after he has received written notification
of the denial of his claim for benefits;

(iii) The claimant  has the right  to  review and obtain  copies  of  all  relevant  documents  relating  to  the denial  of  his
claim and to submit any issues and comments, in writing, to the Plan Administrator;

(iv) If  the  claimant’s  claim  is  denied,  the  Plan  Administrator  must  provide  the  claimant  with  written  notice  of  this
denial  within  sixty  (60)  days  after  the  Plan  Administrator’s  receipt  of  the  claimant’s  written  claim  for  review.  There  may  be
times when this sixty- (60-) day period may be extended. This extension may only be made, however, where there are special
circumstances that are communicated to the claimant in writing within the sixty- (60-) day period. If  there is an extension, a
decision will  be made as soon as possible,  but  not  later  than one hundred and twenty (120) days after  receipt  by the Plan
Administrator of the claimant’s claim for review; and

(v) The  Plan  Administrator’s  decision  regarding  the  claimant’s  claim  for  review  will  be  communicated  to  the
claimant in writing, and if the claimant’s claim for review is denied in whole or part, the decision will include: (1) the specific
reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific references to those provisions of this Plan on which such denial is based; (3) a
statement that the claimant may receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents,
records and other information relevant to the claimant’s claim for benefits; and (4) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a
civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

The procedure set forth in this Section 8(c) is intended to comply with United States Department of Labor Regulation Section
2560.503-1 and should be construed in accordance with such regulation.  In no event shall  the claims procedure be interpreted as
expanding the rights of a Participant beyond what is required by United States Department of Labor Regulation Section 2560.503-1.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan to the contrary, any medical benefits shall be provided under the Company’s health
care  benefits  program  pursuant  to  the  terms  of  such  program  and  any  claim  for  a  particular  medical  benefit  shall  be  made  in
accordance with the terms and claims procedures of such program.

9. Plan Administration.
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(a) Discretion. The Compensation Committee is responsible for the general administration and management of this Plan
(the “Plan Administrator”) and shall have all powers and duties necessary to fulfill its responsibilities, including, but not limited to, the
discretion to interpret and apply the provisions of this Plan and to determine all questions relating to eligibility for benefits under this
Plan,  to interpret  or  construe ambiguous,  unclear,  or  implied (but  omitted)  terms in any fashion it  deems to be appropriate,  and to
make any findings of fact needed in the administration of this Plan. The validity of any such interpretation, construction, decision, or
finding of fact shall be given de novo review if challenged in court, by arbitration, or in any other forum, and such de novo standard
shall apply notwithstanding the grant of full discretion hereunder to the Plan Administrator or characterization of any such decision by
the Plan Administrator as final or binding on any party.

(b) Finality of Determinations. Subject to the last sentence of Section 9(a), all actions taken and all determinations by the
Plan  Administrator  will  be  final  and  binding  on  all  persons  claiming  any  interest  in  or  under  this  Plan.  To  the  extent  that  the  Plan
Administrator has been granted discretionary authority under this Plan, the Plan Administrator’s prior exercise of such authority shall
not obligate it to exercise its authority in a like fashion thereafter.

(c) Independent Plan Administrator. In the event of an impending Change of Control, the Compensation Committee may
appoint a person (or persons) independent of the third party effectuating the Change of Control to be the Plan Administrator effective
upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (the “Independent Committee”), and the Independent Committee shall not be removed
or modified following a Change of Control.

10. No Setoff; Payment of Fees.

The Company’s obligation to make the payments provided for in this Plan and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder
shall  not  be affected by any setoff,  counterclaim,  recoupment,  defense or  other  claim,  right  or  action that  the Company may have
against the Participant or others. In no event shall the Participant be obligated to seek other employment or take any other action by
way of mitigation of the amounts payable to the Participant under any of the provisions of this Plan and such amounts shall not be
reduced  whether  or  not  the  Participant  obtains  other  employment.  The  Company  agrees  to  pay  as  incurred,  to  the  full  extent
permitted by law, all legal fees and expenses that the Participant may reasonably incur as a result of any contest by the Company,
the  Participant  or  others  of  the  validity  or  enforceability  of,  or  liability  under,  any  provision  of  this  Plan  or  any  guarantee  of
performance thereof (including as a result of any contest by the Participant about the amount of any payment pursuant to this Plan),
plus, in each case, Interest, provided that the Participant prevails on any material issue in such contest.
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11. Plan Amendment and Termination.

    The Company, acting through its Board or Compensation Committee, has the right in its sole and absolute discretion to amend this
Plan or to terminate this Plan, prospectively; provided, however, this Plan may not be amended by the Board or the Compensation
Committee in any manner that is materially adverse to any Participant without such Participant’s written consent. For the avoidance of
doubt, the termination of this Plan shall not be effective with respect to a Participant prior to the expiration of the Participant’s status
as  a  “Participant”  in  this  Plan  (including  any  extension  thereof  in  connection  with  a  Change  of  Control)  in  accordance  with  the
Participant’s Letter Agreement, without the Participant’s written consent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company, acting through
its Board or Compensation Committee, shall have the right to terminate this Plan and accelerate the payment of Severance Benefits
under this Plan (as if all Participants experienced a Covered Termination as of the date of such termination), without the consent of
Participants, in accordance with the plan termination and liquidation rule set forth in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix)(B) within
thirty (30) days before or twelve (12) months following a Change of Control of the Company that is also a “change in the ownership”
or  “effective  control”  of  the  Company or  a  “change in  the  ownership  of  a  substantial  portion  of  the  assets”  of  the  Company under
Section 409A. In addition, the Company may (but shall not be obligated to) amend this Plan in order to cause the provisions of this
Plan  to  comply  with  the  requirements  of  Section  409A or  comply  with  or  satisfy  an  exception  or  exclusion  under  other  applicable
provisions  of  the  Code,  in  each  case,  so  as  to  avoid  the  imposition  of  taxes  and  penalties  on  the  Participant  pursuant  to  Section
409A.

12. Successors.

This Plan shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company and its successors. The Company shall require any
corporation,  entity,  individual  or  other  person who is  the  successor  (whether  direct  or  indirect  by  purchase,  merger,  consolidation,
reorganization or otherwise) to all or substantially all the business and/or assets of the Company to expressly assume and agree to
perform, by a written agreement in form and in substance satisfactory to the Company, all of the obligations of the Company under
this  Plan.  As  used  in  this  Plan,  the  term  “Company”  shall  mean  the  Company  as  hereinbefore  defined  and  any  successor  to  its
business  and/or  assets  as  aforesaid  that  assumes  and  agrees  to  perform  this  Plan  by  operation  of  law,  written  agreement  or
otherwise.  It  is  a  condition  of  this  Plan,  and  all  rights  of  each  person  eligible  to  receive  benefits  under  this  Plan  shall  be  subject
hereto,  that  no  right  or  interest  of  any  such  person  in  this  Plan  shall  be  assignable  or  transferable  in  whole  or  in  part,  except  by
operation of law, including, but not by way of limitation, lawful execution, levy, garnishment, attachment, pledge, bankruptcy, alimony,
child support or qualified domestic relations order.
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13. Section 409A.

(a) General. The Plan is intended to comply with the requirements of Section 409A or an exemption or exclusion therefrom
and, with respect to amounts that are subject to Section 409A, shall in all respects be administered in accordance with Section 409A.
Any payments that qualify for the “short-term deferral”  exception or another exception under Section 409A shall  be paid under the
applicable exception.  Each payment of  compensation under this  Plan shall  be treated as a separate payment of  compensation for
purposes  of  Section  409A.  To  the  extent  required  to  comply  with,  and  avoid  excise  taxes  and  penalties  under,  the  provisions  of
Section 409A, all  payments to be made upon a termination of  employment under this  Plan may be made only upon a “separation
from service” under Section 409A. In no event may the Participant, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of any payment
under this Plan.

(b) In-Kind Benefits and Reimbursements. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, all  reimbursements and
in-kind benefits provided under this Plan shall be made or provided in accordance with the requirements of Section 409A, including,
where applicable,  the requirement that  (i)  any reimbursement is  for  expenses incurred during the Participant’s  lifetime (or  during a
shorter  period  of  time  specified  in  this  Plan);  (ii)  the  amount  of  expenses  eligible  for  reimbursement,  or  in-kind  benefits  provided,
during  a  calendar  year  may  not  affect  the  expenses  eligible  for  reimbursement,  or  in-kind  benefits  to  be  provided,  in  any  other
calendar  year,  except,  if  such  benefits  consist  of  the  reimbursement  of  expenses  referred  to  in  Section  105(b)  of  the  Code,  a
maximum,  if  provided  under  the  terms  of  the  plan  providing  such  medical  benefit,  may  be  imposed  on  the  amount  of  such
reimbursements  over  some or  all  of  the period in  which such benefit  is  to  be provided to  the Participant  as described in  Treasury
Regulation  Section  1.409A-3(i)(iv)(B);  (iii)  the  reimbursement  of  an  eligible  expense will  be  made no later  than the  last  day  of  the
calendar year following the year in which the expense is incurred, provided that the Participant shall  have submitted an invoice for
such fees and expenses at least ten (10) days before the end of the calendar year next following the calendar year in which such fees
and  expenses  were  incurred;  and  (iv)  the  right  to  reimbursement  or  in-kind  benefits  is  not  subject  to  liquidation  or  exchange  for
another benefit.

(c) Delay of Payments. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan to the contrary, if the Participant is considered a
“specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A (as determined in accordance with the methodology established by the Company
as  in  effect  on  the  Date  of  Termination),  any  payment  that  constitutes  nonqualified  deferred  compensation  within  the  meaning  of
Section 409A that is otherwise due to the Participant under this Plan during the six-month period following his separation from service
(as determined in  accordance with  Section 409A) on account  of  his  separation from service shall  be accumulated and paid to  the
Participant on the first business day after the date that is six months following his separation from service (the “Delayed Payment
Date”). The Participant shall be entitled to Interest (at the
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applicable rate in effect for the month in which the separation from service occurs) on any delayed cash payments from the date of
termination  to  the  Delayed  Payment  Date.  If  the  Participant  dies  during  the  postponement  period,  the  amounts  and  entitlements
delayed on account  of  Section 409A shall  be paid to  the personal  representative of  his  estate on the first  to  occur  of  the Delayed
Payment Date or thirty (30) days after the date of the Participant’s death.

14. Miscellaneous.

(a) Applicable Law. To the extent that state law is applicable, this Plan shall be construed in accordance with the internal
laws of the State of Delaware without regard to the conflict of law provisions of any state.

(b) Construction. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Plan and any related documents shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Plan and any such related document, which shall remain in full force and
effect,  and any  prohibition  or  unenforceability  in  any  jurisdiction  shall  not  invalidate  or  render  unenforceable  such provision  in  any
other jurisdiction. The captions of this Plan are not part of the provisions hereof and shall have no force or effect.

(c) Notices. Notices  and  all  other  communications  provided  for  in  this  Plan  shall  be  in  writing  and  shall  be  delivered
personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or prepaid overnight courier to the parties
at the addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as shall be specified by the parties by like notice):

If to the Company:

Visa Inc. 
P.O. Box 8999 
San Francisco, California 94128-8999 
Attention: General Counsel

If to a Participant:

At the most recent address maintained by the Company in its personnel records

Each party, by written notice furnished to the other party, may modify the applicable delivery address, except that notice of change of
address shall be effective only upon receipt. Such notices, demands, claims and other communications shall be deemed given in the
case of delivery by overnight service with guaranteed next day delivery, the next day or the day designated for delivery; or in the case
of  certified  or  registered U.S.  mail,  five  (5)  days after  deposit  in  the U.S.  mail; provided, however,  that  in  no event  shall  any such
communications be deemed to be given later than the date they are actually received.

(d) Gender and Plurals. Wherever used in this Plan document, words in the masculine gender shall include masculine or
feminine gender, and, unless the context otherwise
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requires, words in the singular shall include the plural, and words in the plural shall include the singular.

(e) Employment  Status.  This  Plan  does  not  constitute  a  contract  of  employment  or  impose  on  the  Participant,  the
Company or the Affiliated Entities any obligation to retain the Participant as an employee, to change the status of the Participant's
employment  as  an  “at  will”  employee,  or  to  change  the  Company’s  or  the  Affiliated  Entity’s  policies  regarding  termination  of
employment.

(f) Plan Controls. In the event of any inconsistency between this Plan document and any other communication regarding
this Plan, this Plan document controls.

(g) Waiver of  Breach.  No waiver  by any party  hereto of  a  breach of  any provision of  this  Plan by any other  party,  or  of
compliance with any condition or provision of this Plan to be performed by such other party, shall operate or be construed as a waiver
of  any  subsequent  breach  by  such  other  party  of  any  similar  or  dissimilar  provisions  and  conditions  at  the  same  or  any  prior  or
subsequent time. The failure of any party hereto to take any action by reason of such breach shall not deprive such party of the right
to take action at any time while such breach continues.

(h) Indemnification.  To the extent  permitted by law, the Company shall  indemnify the Compensation Committee from all
claims for liability, loss, or damage (including the payment of expenses in connection with defense against such claims) arising from
any act or failure to act in connection with this Plan.

(i) Withholding. The Company may withhold from any amount payable or benefit provided under this Plan such Federal,
state, local, foreign and other taxes as are required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.

(j) Unfunded  Plan  Status.  This  Plan  is  intended  to  be  an  unfunded  plan  providing  benefits  to  a  select  group  of
management  or  highly  compensated  employees.  All  payments  pursuant  to  this  Plan  shall  be  made  from the  general  funds  of  the
Company  and  no  special  or  separate  fund  shall  be  established  or  other  segregation  of  assets  made  to  assure  payment.  No
Participant or other person shall have under any circumstances any interest in any particular property or assets of the Company or
the  Affiliated  Entities  as  a  result  of  participating  in  this  Plan.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  the  Compensation  Committee  may
establish a trust with a bank trustee for the purpose of paying benefits under this Plan. If so established, the trust shall be a grantor
trust  subject  to  the  claims  of  the  Company’s  creditors  and,  in  the  event  of  an  impending  Change  of  Control,  the  Compensation
Committee may, in its discretion, provide that, immediately prior to such Change of Control, the trust be funded in cash or common
stock of the Company or such other assets as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate, in an amount equal to 100 percent
of the aggregate benefits payable under this Plan assuming that all
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Participants  in  this  Plan  incurred  a  Covered  Termination  as  of  the  date  of  such  Change  of  Control  or  such  lesser  amount  as  the
Compensation Committee shall determine prior to the Change of Control; provided, however, that the trust shall not be funded with
respect to a Participant if  the funding thereof would result in taxable income to the Participant by reason of Section 409A(b) of the
Code; and provided, further, that in no event shall any trust assets at any time be located or transferred outside of the United States,
within  the  meaning  of  Section  409A(b)  of  the  Code.  Notwithstanding  the  establishment  of  any  such  trust,  a  Participant’s  rights
hereunder will be solely those of a general unsecured creditor.

20



EXHIBIT A

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS

PLEASE READ THIS WAIVER AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS CAREFULLY. IT INCLUDES A RELEASE OF ALL KNOWN AND
UNKNOWN  CLAIMS  UP  TO  AND  INCLUDING  THE  DATE  THAT  THIS  WAIVER  AND  RELEASE  IS  EXECUTED  BY  THE
PARTICIPANT.

1.    For and in consideration of the payments and other benefits due to the undersigned (the “Participant”) pursuant to the Visa Inc.
Executive Severance Plan (the “Plan”) that became on November 3, 2010 and was amended and restated on January 1, 2022 (the
“Effective Date”), and for other good and valuable consideration, the Participant irrevocably and unconditionally releases and forever
discharges Visa Inc. (the “Company”) and each and all of its present and former officers, agents, directors, managers, employees,
representatives,  affiliates,  shareholders,  members,  and  each  of  their  successors  and  assigns,  and  all  persons  acting  by,  through,
under or in concert with it, and in each case individually and in their official capacities (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any
and all  charges,  complaints,  grievances,  claims  and  liabilities  of  any  kind  or  nature  whatsoever,  known or  unknown,  suspected  or
unsuspected (hereinafter referred to as “claim” or “claims”) which the Participant at any time heretofore had or claimed to have or
which the Participant may have or claim to have regarding events that have occurred up to and including the date of the Participant’s
execution  of  this  Waiver  and  Release  of  all  Claims  (this  “Waiver  and  Release”),  including,  without  limitation,  any  and  all  claims
related,  in  any  manner,  to  the  Participant’s  employment  or  the  termination  thereof.  In  particular,  the  Participant  understands  and
agrees that the Participant’s waiver and release includes, without limitation, all matters arising under any federal, state, or local law,
including  civil  rights  laws  and  regulations  prohibiting  employment  discrimination  on  the  basis  of  race,  color,  religion,  age,  gender,
national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, veteran status, marital status and sexual orientation, or any other characteristic
protected by  federal,  state  or  local  law including,  but  not  limited to,  claims under  Title  VII  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  the  Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act of 1990, the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990,  the  Rehabilitation  Act  of  1973,  the  Occupational  Safety  and  Health  Act,  the  Family  and  Medical  Leave  Act  of  1993,  the
Employee  Retirement  Income  Security  Act  of  1974  (except  as  to  vested  benefits,  if  any),  the  Worker  Adjustment  and  Retraining
Notification  Act  of  1988,  the  California  Fair  Employment  and  Housing  Act,  the  California  Family  Rights  Act,  the  California  Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (in each case, as amended from time to time), federal and state wage and hour laws, or
any common law, public policy, contract (whether oral or written, express or implied) or tort law, or any other federal, state or local
law, regulation, ordinance or rule having any bearing whatsoever.

The Participant  must  sign and return this Waiver  and Release by personal  or  guaranteed overnight  delivery to the
attention of «contact_name», Visa Inc., <<address>> no earlier than the Date of Termination (as defined in the Plan and no
later than «Sign_date», which is the 50th day following the Date of Termination. The Participant



can  revoke  this  Waiver  and  Release  within  seven  (7)  days  after  executing  this  Waiver  and  Release  by  sending  written
notification to the Company of the Participant’s intent to revoke this Waiver and Release, and this Waiver and Release shall
not become effective or enforceable until  such revocation period has expired. The Participant’s written notification of the
intent  to  revoke  this  Waiver  and  Release  must  be  sent  to  «contact_name»,  Visa  Inc.,  by  personal  delivery  or  guaranteed
overnight delivery, at <<address>>, within seven (7) days after the Participant executed this Waiver and Release.

2.    The Participant waives all rights under section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California or any comparable or analogous
provision of federal law or any other state law. Section 1542 provides as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor
at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with
the debtor.

The Participant  acknowledges that  he/she may have sustained losses that  are currently  unknown or  unsuspected,  and that
such damages or losses could give rise to additional causes of action, claims, demands and debts in the future. Nevertheless, the
Participant acknowledges that this Waiver and Release has been agreed upon in light of this realization and, being fully aware of this
situation, the Participant nevertheless intends to release the Company from any and all such unknown claims, including damages that
are unknown or unanticipated. The parties understand the word “claims” to include all actions, claims, and grievances, whether actual
or  potential,  known or  unknown,  and specifically  but  not  exclusively  all  claims arising  out  of  the  Participant’s  employment  and the
termination thereof. All such “claims” (including related attorneys’ fees and costs) are forever barred by this Waiver and Release and
without regard to whether those claims are based on any alleged breach of a duty arising in a statute, contract, or tort; any alleged
unlawful act, including, without limitation, age discrimination; any other claim or cause of action; and regardless of the forum in which
it might be brought.

Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary,  this Waiver and Release shall  not affect,  and the Participant does not
waive:  (i)  rights  to  indemnification  the  Participant  may  have  under  (A)  applicable  law,  (B)  any  other  agreement  between  the
Participant and a Released Party and (C) as an insured under any director’s and officer’s liability insurance policy now or previously
in force; (ii) any right the Participant may have to obtain contribution in the event of the entry of judgment against the Participant as a
result of any act or failure to act for which both the Participant and the Company or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Affiliated Entities”) are jointly responsible; (iii) the Participant’s rights to benefits and payments under any stock options, restricted
stock,  restricted stock units  or  other  incentive plans or  under  any retirement  plan,  welfare benefit  plan or  other  benefit  or  deferred
compensation plan, all  of which shall  remain in effect in accordance with the terms and provisions of such benefit  and/or incentive
plans  and  any  agreements  under  which  such  stock  options,  restricted  shares,  restricted  stock  units  or  other  awards  or  incentives
were granted or benefits were made
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available; (iv) the Participant’s rights as a stockholder of any of the Affiliated Entities; (v) any obligations of the Affiliated Entities under
the Plan; or (vi) any claim by the Participant that cannot be released by a private settlement agreement. In addition, in consideration
of  the Severance Benefits  under  the Plan,  the Participant  acknowledges and reaffirms the obligation  to  comply  with  the restrictive
covenants set forth in Section 7 of the Plan.

3.     Participant  understands  and  agrees  that,  by  reason  of  his/her  employment  by  the  Company,  Participant  had  access  to
confidential  and  proprietary  information  and  trade  secrets  about  the  Company,  its  business,  its  customers  and  its  methods  of
operation (collectively, “Confidential Information”), including but not limited to all trade secrets, confidential knowledge, data or other
proprietary information relating to products, processes, know-how, designs, formulas, developmental or experimental work, computer
programs,  technology,  products,  product  specifications,  techniques,  inventions,  discoveries,  improvements,  research,  test  results,
data  bases,  other  original  works  of  authorship,  customer  lists,  customer  data,  marketing,  sales  and  business  plans,  strategies,
forecasts,  budgets,  projections,  financial  information,  unpublished  financial  information,  or  other  subject  matter  pertaining  to  any
business  of  the  Company  or  any  of  its  employees,  clients,  members,  vendors,  consultants  or  licensees.  Participant  agrees  not  to
disclose or use any Confidential Information which Participant acquired, developed or created by reason of Participant’s employment,
except (i) if compelled by a valid subpoena or as otherwise required by law but in any case, and to the extent permitted by law, only
after  providing  the  Company  with  prior  written  notice  as  soon  as  practicable  and  with  reasonable  opportunity  to  contest  such
subpoena  or  other  requirement  for  information,  or  (ii)  for  information  that  is  or  becomes  publicly  available  other  than  through
Participant’s  breach  of  any  of  Participant’s  obligations  to  the  Company.  Participant  acknowledges  that  nothing  in  this  Waiver  and
Release  prohibits  or  restricts  Participant  from  initiating  communications  directly  with,  responding  to  any  inquiry  from,  or  providing
information  to  or  testimony  before,  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Commission,  Department  of  Justice,  or  any  other  governmental
agency  or  self-regulatory  organization,  about  actual  or  potential  violations  of  laws  or  regulations.  Participant  further  acknowledges
that  Participant  is  not  required  to  obtain  the  Company’s  prior  authorization  before  engaging  in  such  communications,  nor  is
Participant  required  to  inform  the  Company  about  such  communications.  Additionally,  pursuant  to  18  U.S.C.  Section  1833(b),
Participant understands that Participant shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the
disclosure of a trade secret that is made: (1) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly,
or to an attorney, and solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (2) in a complaint or other
document filed in a lawsuit  or other proceeding, if  such filing is made under seal.  Participant further understands that if  Participant
files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of law, Participant may disclose the Company’s trade
secret to an attorney and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding if Participant: (1) files any document containing the
trade secret under seal; and (2) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order.
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4.    In addition, Participant agrees that Participant will not, directly or indirectly, use the Company’s trade secrets to solicit, induce or
influence any customer, supplier, lender, lessor or any other person having a business relationship with Company to discontinue or
reduce the extent of such relationship. Participant also agrees that for a period commencing on the Termination Date and ending on
the eighteen-month anniversary of the Termination Date (the “Restricted Period”), Participant will not, without the prior written consent
of  an  authorized  member  of  the  Human  Resources  Department  of  the  Company,  directly  or  indirectly,  recruit,  solicit  or  otherwise
induce  or  influence  any  person  who  is  at  the  time  (or  was  at  any  time  within  six  months  prior  to  the  last  date  of  Participant’s
employment) employed by Company in a managerial capacity in the management, design, production, operation, technology, sales
or  marketing  areas  of  Company  or  any  person  who  is  performing  any  of  the  above  functions  for  Company  as  an  independent
contractor  to  discontinue  such  employment  or  other  relationship.  Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  the  preceding  sentence  shall  not
apply  to  recruiting,  soliciting  or  otherwise  inducing  or  influencing  persons  who  at  the  time  have  already  been  terminated  by  the
Company (or have received notification of such termination).

5.    Participant agrees to cooperate with Company in regard to the transition of business matters handled by Participant on behalf of
the Company.  Participant  agrees to reasonably cooperate with  the Company and its  counsel  in  the defense or  prosecution of  any
claims or actions now in existence or which may be brought in the future against or on behalf of the Company which relate in any way
to  events  or  occurrences  that  transpired  while  Participant  was  employed by  the  Company.  Participant’s  cooperation  in  connection
with such claims or actions will include, but not be limited to, being available to meet with Company counsel to prepare for discovery
or any legal proceeding, and to act as a witness on behalf of the Company at mutually convenient times. The Company will reimburse
Participant  for  all  reasonable,  pre-approved  out-of-pocket  costs  and  expenses  (but  not  including  attorney’s  fees  and  costs,  or
compensation for time) that Participant incurs in connection with Participant’s obligations under this paragraph of the Agreement.

6.    Participant agrees not to make any statements about the Company and/or each and all of its present and former officers, agents,
directors, managers, employees, representatives, affiliates, shareholders, members, and each of their successors and assigns, or to
engage in conduct which could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the reputation or business of the Company and/or each
and all of its present and former officers, agents, directors, managers, employees, representatives, affiliates, shareholders, members,
and each of their successors and assigns.

7.    The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Participant: (a) has been given at least twenty-one (21-) days within which to
consider this Waiver and Release and its ramifications and discuss the terms of this Waiver and Release with the Company before

A-4



executing  it  (and  that  any  modification  of  this  Waiver  and  Release,  whether  material  or  immaterial,  will  not  restart  or  change  the
original  twenty-one  (21)-day  consideration  period)  and  the  Participant  fully  understands  that  by  signing  below  the  Participant  is
voluntarily giving up any right which the Participant may have to sue or bring any other claims against the Released Parties; (b) has
been given seven (7) days after returning this Waiver and Release to the Company to revoke this Waiver and Release; (c) has been
advised to consult legal counsel regarding the terms of this Waiver and Release; (d) has carefully read and fully understands all of
the  provisions  of  this  Waiver  and  Release;  (e)  knowingly  and  voluntarily  agrees  to  all  of  the  terms  set  forth  in  this  Waiver  and
Release;  and  (f)  knowingly  and  voluntarily  intends  to  be  legally  bound  by  the  same.  The  Participant  also  understands  that,
notwithstanding anything in this Waiver and Release to the contrary, nothing in this Waiver and Release shall be construed to prohibit
the  Participant  from  (i)  filing  a  charge  or  complaint  with  the  Equal  Employment  Opportunity  Commission  or  Department  of  Fair
Employment and Housing or any other federal, state or local administrative, regulatory agency or self-regulatory organization, or (ii)
participating in any investigation or proceedings conducted by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or Department of Fair
Employment  and  Housing  or  any  other  federal,  state  or  local  administrative  or  regulatory  agency.  However,  Participant  expressly
promises never to seek or accept any compensatory damages, back pay, front pay, or reinstatement remedies with respect to any
claim that Participant has released in this Waiver and Release, provided that this Waiver and Release does not limit Participant’s right
to receive an award for information provided to any government agencies, including the Securities and Exchange Commission and
any other securities regulatory agency or authority.

This Waiver and Release is final and binding and may not be changed or modified except in a writing signed by the Company
and the Participant.

Date Participant
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13A-14(A)/15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Alfred F. Kelly, Jr., certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Visa Inc.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)       Designed  such  disclosure  controls  and  procedures,  or  caused  such  disclosure  controls  and  procedures  to  be  designed  under  our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)    Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

(d)    Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)       All  significant  deficiencies  and  material  weaknesses  in  the  design  or  operation  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  which  are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: January 28, 2022 /s/ Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.       

 

Alfred F. Kelly, Jr. 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13A-14(A)/15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Vasant M. Prabhu, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Visa Inc.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)       Designed  such  disclosure  controls  and  procedures,  or  caused  such  disclosure  controls  and  procedures  to  be  designed  under  our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)    Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

(d)    Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)       All  significant  deficiencies  and  material  weaknesses  in  the  design  or  operation  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  which  are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: January 28, 2022 /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu      

 

Vasant M. Prabhu 
Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Visa Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),  I,  Alfred F. Kelly,  Jr.,  do hereby certify,  pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

• the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

• the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

Date: January 28, 2022 /s/ Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.   

 

Alfred F. Kelly, Jr. 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer)

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Visa Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2021, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),  I,  Vasant M. Prabhu, do hereby certify,  pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

• the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

• the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

Date: January 28, 2022 /s/ Vasant M. Prabhu      

 

Vasant M. Prabhu 
Vice Chair, Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer)


